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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
F W

This financial year was full of challenges and opportunities.
During the year under review, the Baltic Dry Index (the "BDI") fell
to new record lows in February 2016 and the charter rates
dropped well below operating costs across all vessel sizes. Thus,
the vessel chartering business experienced difficult operating
conditions during the year. On the other hand, the Group’s
trading, money lending and finance leasing businesses provides
a new chapter to the Group’s development and attributed
significant income growth during the year.

The turnover for the year ended 31 March 2017 significantly
uplifted by 56% to approximately HK$2,137 million whilst a loss
for the year of approximately HK$19.1 million was recorded.

The loss was mainly attributable to the impairment loss on other
receivable and a loss on changes in fair value of held-for-trading
investments as a result of the volatile stock market in Hong Kong.

With the ambition, momentum and vision of the management,
while maintaining a prudent philosophy of good governance, we
are striving to maintain excellent assets quality, stability of
financial resource and progressive growth in the Group’s long-
term development.

Looking ahead, the Group will actively identify and explore other
investment and business opportunities to further broaden its
assets and revenue base into a comprehensive portfolio. The
Group will cautiously search for investment opportunities in order
to enhance and improve the business operation and profitability
of the Group.

I would like to express my sincere gratitude to our Board and
colleagues for their effort and dedication. | would also like to
express my deepest appreciation to all our business partners and
shareholders for their continuing confidence in our Group.

Zheng Juhua
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 June 2017
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BRI B 23 B

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group recorded a turnover of approximately HK$2,137.2
million with a gross profit of approximately HK$45.9 million during
the year ended 31 March 2017 which is approximately 1.6 times
and 2.4 times as compared to approximately HK$1,373.6 million
and HK$19.1 million respectively for the last corresponding year.
The administrative expenses of the Group increased from last
year's approximately HK$30.3 million to approximately HK$40.9
million in the current year as a result of business expansion. The
loss for the year was approximately HK$19.1 million as compared
to approximately HK$18.6 million for the last corresponding year.
The loss for the year was mainly attributable to the impairment
loss on other receivable of approximately HK$9.2 million and loss
on changes in fair value of held-for-trading investments of
approximately HK$10.9 million as a result of the volatile stock
market in Hong Kong.

As at 31 March 2017, the total assets and net assets of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$1,153.8 million (2016: HK$1,155.9
million) and HK$845.0 million (2016: HK$877.8 million)
respectively. The financial position of the Group did not have
material changes during the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

In 2016, the global economy still showed apparent characteristics
of post-financial crisis era which include continuous
implementation of monetary stimulus initiatives, slow recovery in
global economy, improvement in deflation with aggravating
economic differentiation and rising asset bubble. With the re-
implementation of easing policies by countries around the world,
the global economy expected some relief especially after slowing
down of pace of interest rate increase by the US Federal Reserve.
Market risk appetite was enhanced and commodity trading
became more active. Prices of bulk commodities including cruel
oil and iron ores remained high and domestic chemical market
experienced growth in time of adversity.
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Vessel Chartering

The Group owned two vessels which are multi-purpose deck
cargo ships with focus on carriage of construction material and
waste from Hong Kong to the PRC.

Although Hong Kong's construction industry was benefit from a
series of infrastructural projects launched by the Hong Kong
Government in the early years, the number of major
infrastructural projects in Hong Kong decreased drastically during
the year as a result of the disruption of public expenditure
approvals. In connection with this, the demand on carriage of
construction material and waste has been decreased during the
year. In addition, the Baltic Dry Index (the “BDI") fell to new record
lows in February 2016 and the charter rates dropped well below
operating costs across all vessel sizes. As such, the Group
disposed one of the vessels at a consideration of RMB19 million
and recorded a gain of approximately HK$1.1 million during the
year.

The Group recognised a turnover of approximately HK$4 million
with a loss of approximately HK$325,000 during the year ended
31 March 2017 whilst a turnover of approximately HK$11.7 million
with a loss of approximately HK$13.5 million was recognised for
the last year. The loss recorded in last year was mainly
attributable to the provision for impairment due to the decrease
in market value of the vessel.

The BDI has been recovered from below 300 in February 2016 to
the level of about 1,200 in April 2017. There is cautious optimism
heading into 2017 with the BDI's price up significantly from a year
ago. Looking forward, the Board expects the Group will tap the
growth potential by the noticeable on-going recovery of the
vessel chartering industry. The Board will continuous take caution
measures to closely monitor the effectiveness of the operation of
the Group’s vessel chartering business.

Trading Business

The PRC's economy was steadily in year 2016, as such the
Group's trading business was well-performed during the year.
According to statistics of Customs of the PRC, import and export
value of general trade in the PRC in 2016 increased by 0.9% to
RMB13.39 trillion, accounting for 55% of total value of import and
export with an increase of 1 percent point as compared with
2015. Import and export of private enterprises in the PRC
increased by 2.2% to RMB9.28 trillion, accounting for 38.1% of
total value of foreign trade. Export of private enterprises
continued to rank first in terms of total export volume.
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The Group engaged in methanol, seafood, frozen meat,
electronics and other commercial products trading business and
the PRC is the major target market. The Group recorded a
turnover of approximately HK$2,109.5 million with a profit of
approximately HK$13.9 million from trading business during the
year ended 31 March 2017 as compared to approximately
HK$1,354.6 million and approximately HK$7.2 million respectively
for the last year. Since the trading of seafood, electronic and
other commercial products were officially launched nearly the
year end of last year, thus the overall turnover from the trading
business increased significantly as compared with last year.

The Group recorded a turnover of approximately HK$1,187.2
million from methanol trading for the year ended 31 March 2017,
as compared to approximately HK$1,086.6 million for the last
corresponding year. As international oil prices began to recover
after hitting the bottom, domestic market price for methanol also
fluctuated upwards. The PRC has emerged as the dominant
country with respect to both methanol capacity and demand
owing to its rapid economic growth, the prices increased from
approximately RMB1,900 per tonne in April 2016 to RMB2,000 per
tonne in September 2016, and was further increased to RMB2,700
per tonne in April 2017. Attributed to the factors of increase in
the price and demand of methanol, the turnover recorded in the
first half of the financial year has been significantly increased.
However, the continuous and further sharp rise of the methanol
prices adversely affect the downstream products, which resulting
in downstream production losses, and consequentially a
significant decline in demand for methanol, such then leading to
the unsatisfactory performance of the Group’s methanol trading
business in the second half of the financial year.

Looking forward, taking into consideration of the increase in cost
brought by rising prices of resources products, the price of
methanol is expected to be volatile in 2017. The management will
closely monitor the impact of the volatility of the resources price
to the Group's trading of methanol.

In April 2016, the Group entered into the PRC frozen meat market
through the acquisition of 70% equity interest in a company in
the PRC, which has been granted a licence to import frozen meat
to the PRC. The Group mainly imports frozen poultry meats from
Brazil, Argentina and Poland and sells in the PRC.
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The Group's food trading business, comprising seafood and
frozen meat products, recorded a turnover of approximately
HK$218.4 million for the year ended 31 March 2017, as compared
to approximately HK$34.8 million for the last corresponding year.
In light of consumer’s rising awareness of health and food safety,
the demand for import food in the PRC is accelerating. Moreover,
following the implementation of stricter import regulations,
customers now tend to purchase food products from proper and
reliable sources with better quality. Therefore, the Group will
expand its business channels and strictly control food quality at
the same time in order to maintain good reputation and stable
profits.

The Group's electronic products trading is principally engaged in
trading of smartphones and parts of communication equipment
which are the core components for mobile phones. The Group
recorded a turnover of approximately HK$703.9 million from
trading of electronic and other commercial products for the year
ended 31 March 2017, as compared to approximately HK$233.2
million for the last corresponding year. Given the PRC
smartphones market has experienced a dramatic increase in
sales volume in recent years, it is expected that the PRC
smartphones market will keep growing in the next few years and
the Group believes that its electronic products trading business
would be benefit therefrom and provides a stable income stream
to the Group.

In view of the positive prospects of the market, the Group has
entered into a capital increase agreement with the owner of one
of its customer (the “JV Partner”), pursuant to which (i) the Group
will contribute RMB150 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$169 million) for 75% of the enlarged capital in a company (the
“JV Company") upon the increment of its registered capital from
RMB10 million to RMB200 million; and (ii) the provision of a
working capital facility of RMB90 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$101.5 million) for its operation. As at 31 March
2017, RMB21.2 million registered capital has been paid up by the
Group.
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The JV Company is focused on the trading of motherboard,
memory card and display screen for smartphones in the PRC.
The JV Partner has over 10 years of experience in the
smartphones components trading in Hong Kong and the PRC and
has established a strong network in both the buyer and seller
market, which is critical to the business development of the JV
Company.

The Board maintains a cautious approach in risk management of
the trading business of the Group to monitor the ever changing
operating environment.

Money Lending Business

The Group’s money lending business was steadily developed
with new loans granted during the year. There were loan portfolio
in Hong Kong with principal amount of approximately HK$35.5
million and two entrusted loans granted in the PRC with
outstanding principal amount of approximately RMB65.3 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$73.7 million) as at 31 March
2017. The Group recognized an aggregate interest income of
HK$10 million for the year ended 31 March 2017 as compared to
HK$993,000 for the last year.

The Group adopted a prudent risk management policy, with the
money lending business continuously carrying out regular review
of credit risk over the existing borrowers. While the Group will
proactively explore customers with good quality to expand its
business scale, it will continue to adopt a prudent credit risk
management strategy to ensure a healthy development in its
money lending business.

Finance Leasing Business

The finance leasing business has attributed a turnover of
approximately HK$13.7 million with a profit of approximately
HK$5.7 million during the year ended 31 March 2017 as
compared to approximately HK$6.3 million and HK$2.7 million
respectively for the last corresponding year.
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The Group continues to focus on expanding businesses in three
industries including new energy and new materials industry,
education industry and cold storage and chain industry, which
have better cash flows and are less cyclical. (1) At the end of
2016, the National Development and Reform Commission publicly
announced new policies on tariff of photo voltaic power stations
and onshore wind power and policies on review of subsidies for
new energy vehicles and new energy vehicle catalogue. The PRC
government has provided guidance to the future innovative
development of the industry by implementing policies in line with
the development pattern of new industries. Meanwhile, we
noticed the industry would be facing reshuffling due to
government policies on reduction in subsidies. Enterprises relied
heavily on government subsidies without advantages in
technology or resources would be affected. Therefore, the Group
will reduce capital investment in certain industry segment; (2) As
for education industry, following the commencement of the
nationwide two-child policy, a new wave of demographic
dividend is expected in the fields of early childhood education,
primary and secondary school, vocational education and tertiary
institutions . The Group will continue to explore new business
segments like upgrading hardware and software for tertiary
institutions and early childhood education, campus information
network and construction of smart campus; (3) As for cold
storage and chain industry, the Group believes there is no
dominant professional cold storage enterprise in China, leading
to a lack of quality and professional cold storage. Thus,
establishment of regional quality cold storage and cold chain will
continue to be focus of finance leasing business.

Apart from the above vertical industry development, the Group
has also attempted to expand new business model laterally, such
as finance leasing and commercial factoring, so as to explore the
needs of existing clients and effectively enhance utilization rate
of capital, with a view to extend the profit growth.

Other Potential Investments

On 22 November 2016, the Company entered into a
memorandum of understanding (the “MOU 1") with an
independent third party in relation to a possible acquisition (the
"Possible Acquisition 1) of not less than 51% equity interest in a
company together with its subsidiaries which are principally
engaged in pawning, entrusted loans and other related business
in the PRC.
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Subsequent to the end of the reporting period on 14 June 2017,
the Group further entered into a memorandum of understanding
(the "“MOU 2") with another independent third party in relation to
a possible acquisition (the “Possible Acquisition 2") of 100%
equity interest in a company together with its subsidiaries which
are principally engaged in equity investment funds management,
equity investment and asset management in the PRC.

The Group believes that the Possible Acquisition 1 and the
Possible Acquisition 2 would enhance the professional expertise
and business development opportunity in the financial industry
for the Group, and further complement the Group's existing
finance leasing and money lending business. The Company has
been identifying suitable investment opportunities to establish a
comprehensive and leading financial holdings platform in the
PRC. The Group is of the view that the Possible Acquisition 1 and
the Possible Acquisition 2 would be a stepping stone for attaining
the Company’s vision.

Securities Investments

The Group has further invested surplus funds in a securities listed
in Hong Kong during the year. The fair value and the cost of
acquisition of the Group’s securities investment amounted to
approximately HK$64.1 million and HK$55.1 million respectively
as at 31 March 2017. The Group recorded an unrealised loss on
changes in fair value of held for trading investments of
approximately HK$10.9 million during the year as compared to a
gain of HK$5.5 million for the last corresponding year. However,
there was still an aggregate unrealised gain of approximately
HK$9 million of the Group's securities investment portfolio as at
31 March 2017. The management will continue to adopt prudent
approach in investment and monitor the stock markets closely
and keep looking for opportunities to realise gains from its
investment portfolio.

Looking forward, the Group will actively identify and explore
other investment and business opportunities to broaden its
assets and revenue base. The Group will cautiously search for
investment opportunities so as to produce a steady growth in the
Group's long term performance.
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Liquidity, Financial Resources, Capital Structure and
Gearing

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had cash and bank balances of
HK$98.1 million (2016: HK$499.8 million) and total borrowings of
HK$6.2 million (2016: HK$101.9 million). The Group's gearing ratio,
calculated by dividing total borrowings by total equity, was 0.7%
(2016: 11.6%). The liquidity ratio, being the ratio of current assets
over current liabilities was 2.99 as at 31 March 2017 (2016: 3.42).

The improvement of the Group's gearing ratio was mainly
attributable to (i) the repayment of finance from a director of the
Company, and (i) decrease in interest bearing bank loan arising
from the trading business. There was no material changes in the
liquidity ratio for the year.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Operations of the Group are mainly conducted in Hong Kong
dollar (“"HK$"), Renminbi ("RMB"), Euro (“EUR") and United States
dollar ("US$") and its revenue, expenses, assets, liabilities and
borrowings are principally denominated in HK$, RMB, EUR and
USS.

The Group does not enter into any instruments on the foreign
exchange exposure. The Group will closely monitor exchange
rate movement and will take appropriate activities to reduce the
exchange risk.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for
the year ended 31 March 2017.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders of
the Company at a special general meeting on 5 September 2016,
every one share of the Company of HK$0.10 each were
subdivided into five subdivided shares of HK$0.02 each. As such,
the number of ordinary shares issued were increased by the
creation of 2,944,480,000 shares from 736,120,000 shares of
HK$0.10 each as at 31 March 2016 to 3,680,600,000 shares of
HK$0.02 each as at 31 March 2017.

All these new shares rank pari passu with the existing shares of
the Company in all aspects.

Save as disclosed above, there was no changes in the capital
structure of the Company during the year.
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FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES AND USE OF

SERBRMEREAR

PROCEEDS

On 15 December 2015, the Company entered into a placing
agreement with a placing agent to place up to 250,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each at a placing price of HK$2.00 per
placing share. The closing market price of the shares of the
Company on that date was HK$3.60. The placing was completed
on 8 March 2016 and a total of 250,000,000 ordinary shares with
nominal value of HK$25,000,000 were issued to not less than six
independent placees at a net price of HK$1.98 per placing share
with net proceeds of approximately HK$494.4 million. Details of
the intended and actual usage of the proceeds as at the date of

this report are as follows:

R-ZE—RAF+-A+HA  AQRFEEER
BEI R E W - SREERMDUAREE2.00
7 7T Bt & & % 250,000,000 % & P& E 1B 0.10 7
TLZEBIGD - RARRORERZKHES
3608 c BBERZZE—NF= A/\BEK
& H4AmE & 425,000,000 7 7T 2 250,000,000 A&
LB A SR ECE D FE 1.98 BT AT
FIEFRE47494,400,0008 TE BEEF DR
NBEIAEBLA c BERREBMERIELZIR
BRERBSFANT

Intended use of ~ Reviseduse of  Revised use of
proceeds proceeds proceeds
as stated in as stated in as stated in
the circular ~ announcement  announcement
dated dated dated  Actual usage of
15 January 2016 26May2016 4 August2016  proceeds as at
BERAHA HRAHA HRAHA the date of
ZE-RE —E-RE —E-5RE this report
-BtxA TA=t+5A NAMA HEXHER
BEAMBRE  AMRFABHE  ARAERE Fri8mEZ
RRzAZ BTz RE BEITZRE ERRZ
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT TEL ThEL TiEx
Finance Leasing Business REMEEK 171,600 171,600 171,600 171,600
Trading Business Bo%H
— Refined petroleum products —BRER 140,000 100,000 = =
— Seafood and electronic products —BERETER 140,000 140,000 140,000 140,000
— Refined petroleum, seafood and — R BER
electronic products E1EM = - 100,000 100,000
280,000 240,000 240,000 240,000
Money Lending Business EEEH - 40,000 40,000 40,000
Working Capital HEES 42,800 42,800 42,800 42,800
494,400 494,400 494,400 494,400
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CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

The following assets of the Group were pledged to secure the
bank borrowing and an other payable, details of which are set
out in notes 31 and 28(ii) to the consolidated financial statements,
respectively.

KEEERA

REBA T AR AIRITERR MR B
ZHEAR - HFEE D B GA M SRR S
% 28(i) °

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F T FHET
Bills receivable A - 62,369
Vessels fufn 20,273 45,142
20,273 107,511
SIGNIFICANT ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL EAXKWBRUHEEE

OF ASSETS

On 30 June 2016, the Group entered into a sales and purchase
agreement, pursuant to which, the Group acquired an investment
property located in Hong Kong at a consideration of HK$9.5
million (excluding stamp duties and other direct costs).

On 12 September 2016, the Group entered into a capital increase
agreement with the owner of one of its customer (the “JV
Partner”), pursuant to which (i) the Group will contribute RMB150
million (equivalent to approximately HK$169 million) for 75% of
the enlarged capital in a company (the “JV Company”) upon the
increment of its registered capital from RMB10 million to RMB200
million; and (i) the provision of a working capital facility of RMB90
million (equivalent to approximately HK$101.5 million) for its
operation. As at 31 March 2017, RMB21.2 million registered
capital has been paid up by the Group.

On 28 December 2016, the Group entered into a disposal
agreement, pursuant to which, the Group disposed a vessel at a
consideration of RMB19 million (equivalent to HK$21.4 million)
with a gain of approximately HK$1.1 million.

Save as disclosed above and the acquisition of held-for-trading
investments in securities as mentioned below, there has been no
significant acquisition and disposal of assets of the Group during
the year.
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SECURITIES INVESTMENTS HELD FEEARRKRE

During the year, the Group further invested in held-for-trading A ZREZ R - 78 £ B i — 1% & £ 13,000,000
investment in securities in Hong Kong (the "Securities BT RBEEE B AEBLFRE((BA %
Investments”) amounting to approximately HK$13 million. Asat &) e RZZE—+HF=F=+—H ' ~AEEFF
31 March 2017, the Group had Securities Investments with a AT {E 494 64,100,000 7 7T 2 B 5% & » IR
market value of HK$64.1 million, representing an investment  &H#& 2 AEREREHEES - R&EER - K
portfolio of five listed equities in Hong Kong. The Group recorded &£ EGZEBZ AR EAHEESRETR AL BEERY
an unrealised fair value loss of approximately HK$10.9 million 10,900,000 7t ( — & — /< 4E © 3 %1 5,500,000
(2016: gain of HK$5.5 million) in respect of the Securities HT) - ZEBERERN T —+E =R
Investments at the balance sheet date. The details of the =+—RHZEHBEHHWOT :

Securities Investments as at 31 March 2017 are as follows:

% of
net assets Unrealised
of the Group gain/(loss)

Fair value asat  onfairvalue
asat  31March 2017 change for
31 March 2017 L] the year
Number of % of Costof  W-E-tf R-B-tE ERDAE
Company name Stock code  Principal activities sharesheld  shareholdings  acquision  ZA=+-B  =ZR=t-R 2HRER
AAER ks IEER frERn#A KRB WERE ZARE JEERE  WE/(FE)
HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS'000
ThT ThL Fitn
1 Hsin Chong Group Holdings 404 Building construction, civil 10,000,000 0.18% 10,000 3500 041% (2,100)
Limited engineering, electrical and 1 7
HEEEERERAR mechanical installation,
property development and
investment.
IESETRE  tATR
HERERIR ZREHR
WHEE MEERREE
RIS RREER
i
2 Royal Century Resources 8125 Provision of design and 8,000,000 220% 9,600 2,000 265% (12,160)
Holdings Limited fitting-out services and design
(formerly known as and procurement of furnishings
Kate China Holdings and materials, money lending
Limited) and trading of fine wine.
CEERERERAR IERERIGRELRE
(AR EEARERAR) RS RABER
RERIH - REREEE
3 China Best Group Holding 30 Trading of fuel oil, electronic 60,000,000 0.83% 12660 12,000 1.42% (480)
Limited (evices and other
BEEEARERAA commodities, the finance

leasing business, the money
lending business, international
air and sea freight forwarding
and the provision of logistics
services, and trading of
securiies.

it EFREREMERL
BE MANEEH RE
£% BRRERELEE
REEIRRBRESEE -
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% of
net assets Unrealised
of the Group gain/(loss)

Fair value asat  onfairvalue
asat 31March 2017 change for
31 March 2017 &8 the year
Number of % of Costof ~W=E-tf R-3-tf ERARE
Company name Stock code ~ Principal activities sharesheld ~ shareholdings acquision  =A=t-B  =B=1-A SBRER
ARER RoRsE  IEER FrERp#A KRB WERE ZARE ZEERE  WE/ (BB
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
T Thr Tir
4 Evershine Group Holdings 8022 Travel agency business, 27,000,000 1.68% 9,8% 16,200 192% 6,885
Limited trading business, mobile
KEEEARERAA application business, properties
(evelopment and investment
business, cemetery business,
money lending business and
marketing and advertising
DUSIness.
TERRER 8555
FHEREAZE %
RERRERK DEXH-
HEEBRIGRERES
5 Elegance Optical International 907 Manufacture and trading of 5,000,000 1.5% 13005 10,000 1.18% (3,009
Holdings Limited Optical frames and sunglasses
RE2ERERERAR and property investment
HERERRABREHER
BELBURNERE

95120 64,100 (10,860)
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PRINCIPAL RISK AND UNCERTAINTIES
FACING BY THE GROUP

Competition

The Group competes in the finance leasing business market with
other lenders in the PRC, which may have substantially greater
financial or other resources than the Group. The Group may also
face competition from new entrants to the industry having
business objectives similar to the Group and have greater
financial resources. Should the Group fail to maintain its
advantages in cost control, customer base and quality of service,
it may lose its market share in the finance leasing business
market.

Business Concentration

A significant portion of our Group's revenues is derived from our
operations in the PRC. Unfavourable events in the country could
disrupt our overall business, lower our revenues, and impact the
valuation of our assets.

Furthermore, the revenue derived from the five largest customers
accounted for approximately 90% (2016: 98%) of the total
revenue for the year ended 31 March 2017. If one of the five
largest customers experiencing significant financial difficulty
could lower our revenues and the collectability of the trade
receivables.

Fluctuations in methanol demand and prices

A substantial portion of the Group’s revenue was contributed
from methanol trading. Therefore, our future business and results
of operations are dependent on the supply and demand of
methanol globally, in particular, the PRC. The fluctuation in supply
and demand of methanol can be caused by numerous factors
beyond the Group’s control, which include but not limited to: (i)
global and domestic economic and political conditions and
competition from other energy sources; and (i) the rate of growth
and expansion in industries with high demand for methanol.
Furthermore, methanol is one of the largest manufactured
trading commodities after oil thus its prices will be fluctuated by
the petroleum prices. There is no assurance that the demand of
the PRC, which we assume as our major market, for methanol
and methanol related products will continue to grow, or that the
demand for these products will not experience excess supply.

Financial Risk

Financial risk factors include credit risk, market risk and liquidity
risk. Details of the aforesaid financial risk factors and the
respective risk management measures are set out in note 3 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at
31 March 2017.

COMMITMENTS
Details of the commitments are set out in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES
As at 31 March 2017, the Group employed approximately 84
employees. The Group continues to maintain and upgrade the
capabilities of its workforce by providing them with adequate and
regular training. The Group remunerates its Directors and
employees mainly based on industry practices and individual’s
performance and experience. On top of regular remuneration,
discretionary bonus and share options may be granted to eligible
staff by reference to the Group’s performance as well as
individual's performance.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with its employees, customers and suppliers to meet
its immediate and long-term business goals. During the year
under review, there were no material and significant dispute
between the Group and its employees, customers and suppliers.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group is committed to maintain high environmental
standards to ensure sustainable development of its business.
During the year ended 31 March 2017, to the best knowledge of
the Directors, the Group complied with the relevant laws, rules
and regulation that have a significant impact on the Group in
relation to its business. The Group has always encouraged all
employees to participate environmental activities to make
contribution to the community.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Board believes that good governance is essential to the
maintenance of the Group’s competitiveness and to its healthy
growth. The Company has adopted practices which meet the
requirements of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”)
as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

The Company periodically reviews its corporate governance
practices to ensure its continuous compliance with the CG Code.
The Company has been in compliance with all code provisions
set out in the CG Code for the year ended 31 March 2017, save
for the deviations from code provision A.6.7 which was explained
below.

Under the code provision A.6.7, independent non-executive
directors and other non-executive directors should attend
general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the
views of shareholders. One independent non-executive Director
did not attend an annual general meeting and a special general
meeting held on 26 August 2016 and 5 September 2016
respectively due to other work commitments. The Company will
strengthen its planning process, by giving all Directors sufficient
time to arrange their work in advance and providing any
necessary support for their presence and participation in the
meetings, so as to facilitate all Directors attending the Company’s
future general meetings.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the control and leadership of the
Group and its duties include the approval and monitoring of all
policy matters, business strategies, internal control systems,
material transactions, appointment of directors and other
significant operational, financial and legal compliance matters.
The Board delegates the authority to manage the daily affairs of
the Group to the Chief Executive Officer and senior management.
Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any
significant transactions entered into by the senior management
on behalf of the Group.
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Specifically in relation to corporate governance function, the
Board is responsible for the corporate governance function as a
whole, and establishes an internal control group to be
responsible for the specific operation. During the year ended 31
March 2017 and up to the date of this report, the Board had
performed the following duties:

1. Developing and reviewing relevant corporate governance
policy and practice of the Company;

2. Reviewing and inspecting continuous professional
development and training of Directors and senior
management;

3. Reviewing and monitoring the policies and practices of the
Company being in compliance with the statutory and other
regulatory provisions;

4. Developing, reviewing and checking code and provision of
conducts applicable to the Directors and employees; and

5. Reviewing that the Company being in compliance with the
CG Code and corporate governance reporting requirements.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant
information in relation to the Group as well as the advice from
and services provided by the company secretary, if and when
required, with a view to ensure that the procedures are in
compliance and all applicable rules and regulations are followed.

There are established procedures for Directors upon reasonable
request, to seek independent advice in appropriate
circumstances for them to discharge their duties and
responsibilities, at the Company’s expenses.
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Directors’ Liabilities Insurance

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Company has
arranged appropriate insurance cover for Directors’ liabilities in
respect of potential legal actions against the Directors arising out
of corporate activities of the Group pursuant to Code Provision
A.1.8 of the CG Code. Such directors’ liability insurance will be
reviewed and renewed annually.

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2017, no claim has been
made against the Directors.

Composition

The Board currently comprises 3 executive Directors and 3
independent non-executive Directors from different businesses
and professional fields. The Directors, including independent
non-executive Directors, have brought a balance of valuable and
diversified businesses and professional expertises, experiences
and independent judgment to the Board for its efficient and
effective management of the Group’s business.

The Board during the year ended 31 March 2017 and up to the
date of this report has comprised the following Directors:

Executive Directors:
Ms. Zheng Juhua — Chairman
Mr. Chan Chi Yuen — Chief Executive Officer and Company Secretary
(Mr. Chan resigned as the Company Secretary
on 13 February 2017)
Ms. Wang Yinggian (appointed on 19 April 2017)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Man Kwok Leung — Chairman of Nomination Committee
Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter — Chairman of Remuneration Committee
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth — Chairman of Audit Committee

The composition of the Board reflects a diverse yet balanced set
of skills and experience which is essential for effective leadership
of the Company. All the Board members possess strong
professional expertise, extensive experience in corporate
management as well as sharp commercial acumen. Biographic
details of Directors are disclosed in the “Biographical Details of
Directors” section of the Report of the Directors.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The positions of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer
("CEQ") are held by different persons for purpose of maintaining
independence and a more balanced basis for judgments and
decisions. The key role of the Chairman is to provide leadership
to the Board. In performing her duties, the Chairman shall ensure
that the Board functions effectively in the discharge of its
responsibilities. The Chairman also has the responsibility of
taking the lead to ensure that the Board acts in the best interests
of the Company and the Group.

The key role of the CEO is to be responsible for the day-to-day
management and operations of the Company and business of
the Group. The duties of the CEO mainly include:

o providing leadership and supervising the effective
management of the Company;

o monitoring and controlling the financial and operational
performance of various divisions; and

o implementing the strategy and policies adopted by the
Company, setting and implementing objectives and
development plans.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Pursuant to Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed three independent non-executive
Directors, of whom Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth has appropriate
professional qualifications and related experiences in financial
matters.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each independent non-executive Director of their independence
pursuant to the requirements of Rules 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers all independent non-executive Directors
to be independent in accordance with the independence
guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of 1
year which could be terminated by either party giving to the
other not less than 1 month’s written notice.
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Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors
The procedures for the appointment, re-election and removal of
Directors are laid down in the Company’s bye-laws. The
Company has established a nomination committee to assist the
Board for reviewing its composition, monitoring the appointment
and independence, where applicable, of Directors, and identifying
suitable and qualified individuals to become board members
where necessary.

In accordance with the bye-laws of the Company, any director
appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board
shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.

At each annual general meeting, one-third of the directors for the
time being, or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three,
then the number nearest to but not greater than one-third, shall
retire from office by rotation but shall be eligible for re-election,
provided that every director shall be subject to retirement at
least once every three years. The directors (including those
appointed for a special term) to retire in every year shall be those
who have been longest in office since their last election but as
between persons who became directors on the same day those
to retire shall (unless they otherwise agree between themselves)
be determined by lot. Any Director appointed by the Directors
either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as an addition to
the existing Board shall not be taken into account in determining
which particular Directors or the number of Directors who are to
retire by rotation.

Induction and Continuous Professional
Development for Directors

Each newly appointed director will receive comprehensive,
formal and tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her
appointment, so as to ensure that he/she has proper
understanding of the business and operations of the Group and
that he/she is fully aware of his/her responsibilities and
obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory
requirements.

There are also arrangements in place for providing continuing
briefing and professional development to Directors whenever
necessary.
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The Directors are continuously updated on latest developments
regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements to ensure compliance of the same by them.

The Directors are committed to comply with Code Provision A.6.5
of CG Code on directors’ training to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills so as to ensure that their contribution to the
Board will be informed and relevant.

According to the records provided by the Directors to the
Company pursuant to the CG Code, all Directors have
participated in appropriate continuous professional development
activities during the year under review. In addition to their own
participation in professional training, relevant training and reading
materials was provided to the Directors by the Company in the
year to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure
that their contribution to the board remains informed and
relevant.

All Directors are provided with monthly updates on the business
and market changes and the Company'’s performance, position
and prospectus to enable the Board as a whole and each Director
to discharge their duties.

Board Diversity Policy
The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”)
which sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board.

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a
diversed Board and sees increasing diversity at Board level as an
essential element in supporting the attainment of the Company’s
strategic objectives and sustainable development.

The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the
consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited to
talents, skills, experience, independence and knowledge. The
Company will also take into consideration its own business
model and specific needs from time to time. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy and candidates will
be considered against objective criteria, having due regard to the
benefits of diversity on the Board.
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Remuneration of Directors

Independent non-executive Directors are paid fees generally in
line with market practice and taking into consideration the
responsibilities and time spent by Independent non-executive
Directors on the Company’s affairs. The remuneration of
Executive Directors is determined by the chairman of the Board
in consultation with the Remuneration Committee after taking
into consideration market trends and responsibilities and
performance of the individual with a view to provide attractive
reward to and retain high performing individuals.

Responsibilities in Respect of the Financial
Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
Group's financial statements. The financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2017 have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, including Hong
Kong Accounting Standards and applicable Interpretations issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
the applicable disclosure requirements of the Listing Rules and
other applicable regulatory requirements. The Directors also
acknowledge their responsibilities to ensure that the
consolidated financial statements of the Group are published in a
timely manner.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief, having made all reasonable enquires, they
are not aware of any material uncertainty relating to events of
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The responsibilities of the external auditor, Lau & Au Yeung C.P.A.
Limited, are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages
74 t0 82.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is responsible to the Board for ensuring
that Board procedures are followed and Board activities are
efficiently and effectively conducted. These objectives are
achieved through adherence to proper Board processes and the
timely preparation and dissemination to Directors comprehensive
meeting agendas and papers. Minutes of all Board meetings and
Board Committees are prepared and maintained by the Company
Secretary to record in sufficient details the matters considered
and decisions reached by the Board or Committee, including any
concerns raised or dissenting views voiced by any Director. All
draft and final minutes of Board meetings and meetings of Board
Committees are sent to Directors and Committee members
respectively for comments and records and are available for
inspection by any Director upon request.

The Company Secretary is responsible for ensuring that the
Board is fully apprised of all legislative, regulatory and corporate
governance developments relating to the Group and that it takes
these into consideration when making decisions for the Group.
From time to time, he/she organises seminars on specific topics
of significance and interest and disseminate reference materials
to the Directors for their information.

The Company Secretary is also directly responsible for the
Group's compliance with all obligations of the Listing Rules and
Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and Share Repurchases,
including the preparation, publication and despatch of annual
reports and interim reports within the time limits laid down in the
Listing Rules, the timely dissemination to shareholders and the
market of information relating to the Group.

Furthermore, the Company Secretary advises the Directors on
their obligations for disclosure of interests and dealings in the
Group’s securities, connected transactions and inside information
and ensures that the standards and disclosures required by the
Listing Rules are observed and, where required, reflected in the
annual report of the Company.
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The appointment and removal of the Company Secretary is
subject to Board approval in accordance with the bye-laws of the
Company. Whilst the Company Secretary reports to the
Chairman, all members of the Board have access to the advice
and service of the Company Secretary. Mr. Chan Chi Yuen (“Mr.
Chan") was appointed as the Company Secretary of the Company
since June 2011. Mr. Chan resigned and Ms. Chan Wai Fung (“Ms.
Chan”) has been appointed as the Company Secretary in
February 2017. Ms. Chan joined the Group since June 2011 and
she has day-to-day knowledge of the Group's affairs. In response
to specific enquiries made, the Company Secretary confirmed
that they have complied with all the required qualifications,
experience and training requirements of the Listing Rules.

BOARD MEETINGS

Regular Board meetings are held at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals for reviewing and approving the
financial and operating performance, and considering and
approving the overall strategies and policies of the Group.
Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all Directors at
least 14 days before the meetings while reasonable notice is
generally given for other Board meetings.

For committee meetings, notices are served in accordance with
the required notice period stated in the relevant terms of
reference.

Agenda and Board papers together with all appropriate, complete
and reliable information are normally sent to all Directors before
each Board meeting to keep the Directors apprised of the latest
developments and financial position of the Group and to enable
them to make informed decisions. All Directors are given the
opportunity to include matters in the agenda for regular Board
meetings. The Board and each Director also have separate and
independent access to senior management whenever necessary.

Apart from the regular board meetings, the Board met on other
occasions from time to time when a board-level decision on a
particular matter was required.

Guidelines are in place which stipulate that any material matter
which involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder
or Director will be dealt with at a duly convened Board meeting.
The Company’s bye-laws also contain provisions stipulating the
procedures according to which any material matters involving
conflict of interests are to be approved at Board meeting.
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Minutes of all Board meetings, recording sufficient details of
matters considered and decisions reached, are kept by the
secretary of the meetings, and are open for inspection by the
Directors.

During the year, 28 Board meetings and 2 general meetings were
held and the individual attendance of each Director is set out
below:
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Meetings Attended/Meetings Held

EHEZEE CRITZEE

Directors General Meeting Board Meeting
5= BRAE EEEER
Ms. Zheng Juhua BRI+ 2/2 28/28
Mr. Chan Chi Yuen PRAER A E 2/2 28/28
Mr. Man Kwok Leung SERLE 2/2 28/28
Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter RIALCKE 2/2 28/28
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth =S e 0/2 28/28
BOARD COMMITTEES EEZET

The Board has established 3 committees, namely the audit
committee (the “Audit Committee”), the remuneration committee
(the "Remuneration Committee”) and the nomination committee
(the “"Nomination Committee”) for overseeing particular aspects
of the Group’s affairs. All Board committees of the Company are
established with defined written terms of reference.

The majority of the members of each Board committees are
independent non-executive Directors. The Board committees are
provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties and,
upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
company’s expenses.
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Audit Committee
The Audit Committee comprises the following independent non-
executive Directors of the Company, namely:

Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth (Chairman)
Mr. Man Kwok Leung
Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter

The Audit Committee is currently chaired by Mr. Chi Chi Hung,
Kenneth, who possesses the appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

The Audit Committee has specific written terms of reference
which lay down clearly its authority and duties, which include the
maintaining of an appropriate relationship with independent
auditor, review of financial information and monitoring the
financial reporting system and internal control procedures.

None of the members of the Audit Committee is a former partner
of the Company’s existing external auditor.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the followings:

(@ To review the financial statements and reports and
consider any significant or unusual items raised by the
Group's staff responsible for the accounting and financial
reporting function, compliance officer or auditor;

(b) To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company’s financial reporting system, internal control
system and risk management system and associated
procedures;

(c)  Toreview and monitor the external auditor’s independence
and objectively and the effectiveness of the audit; and

(d) To review the relationship with the external auditor by
reference to the work performed by the auditor, their fees
and terms of management, and make recommendation to
the Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal
of external auditor.
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The Audit Committee performed the work during the year
includes the followings:

o reviewed the annual and interim reports of the Company as
to whether they are in compliance with the accounting
standards and relevant requirements in relation to financial
reporting under the Listing Rules and other laws;

o reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control system of
the Group and approved the internal control review manual
of the Group; and

o reviewed the Group’s accounting principles and practices,
financial reporting and statutory compliance matters.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, three meetings have been
held by the Audit Committee to review the audit service plan for
the year ended 31 March 2016, approve the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2016 and to review
interim financial statements (including accounting policies and
practices adopted) of the Group for the six months ended 30
September 2016, and recommended such financial statements to
the Board for approval.

In the meeting of the Audit Committee of June 2017, the Audit
committee reviewed the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group, the financial statements and other reports
for the year ended 31 March 2017 and discuss any significant
audit matters with the Company’s external auditor and the senior
management before recommending them to the Board for
consideration and approval. The Audit Committee recommended
the Board in relation to the re-appointment of Lau & Au Yeung
C.P.A. Limited as the Company'’s external auditor for the financial
year ending 31 March 2018 at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.
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The attendance of each member of the Audit Committee at the REE-_ZT—+F=A=+—HIFERXN " &
meeting during the year ended 31 March 2017 is as follows: ZEEBeEKEHESHNBROT :

Director Name Attendance
EEHR HE=E
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth (Chairman) EEMELEE(EE 3/3
Mr. Man Kwok Leung EEREE 3/3
Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter RIALCEE 3/3
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Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee comprises the following
independent non-executive Directors of the Company, namely:

Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter (Chairman)
Mr. Man Kwok Leung
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth

The main duties of the Remuneration Committee include the
followings:

(@)

To review, recommend and approve the remuneration
policy and structure and remuneration packages of the
executive Directors and the senior management,

To review, recommend and approve performance-based
remuneration by reference to corporate goals and
objectives resolved by the Board from time to time;

To determine, with delegated responsibility, the
remuneration packages of individual executive directors
and senior management;

To review, recommend and approve the compensation
payable to executive Directors and senior management in
connection with any loss or termination of their office or
appointment; and

To establish transparent procedures for developing such
remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no
Director or any of his/her associates will participate in
deciding his/her own remuneration, which remuneration
will be determined by reference to the performance of the
individual and the Company as well as market practice and
conditions.

The Remuneration Committee performed the work during the
year includes the followings:

reviewed the remuneration policy for the Directors and
senior management;

assessed performance of executive Directors;
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reviewed and approved the remuneration package of each
Director and the company secretary including bonus
payment, pension right and compensation payable; and

approved the forms of the service agreement for each
executive Director and the appointment letter for each
independent non-executive Director.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, two meetings have been
held by the Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration
Committee had discussed and reviewed the remuneration
packages for all Directors and senior management.
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The attendance of each member of the Remuneration Committee REE—ZE—+E=A=+—HILFERN ' F
at the meeting during the year ended 31 March 2017 isas MMZEeSKELFEE@ENELNOT :
follows:

Director Name Attendance
=y HER
Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter (Chairman) RECEE(EFFE) 2/2
Mr. Man Kwok Leung SEIRE A 2/2
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth FEMLE 2/2
Nomination Committee REEEE®

The Nomination Committee comprises the Chairman and the
independent non-executive Directors of the Company, namely:

Mr. Man Kwok Leung (Chairman)
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth

Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter

Ms. Zheng Juhua

The main duties of the Nomination Committee include the
followings:

@)

To review the criteria and procedures of selection of
directors and senior management members, and provide
suggestions;

To conduct extensive search for qualified candidates of
directors and senior management;

To review the Board diversity policy and the progress on
achieving the objectives set for implementing the said
policy; and

To assess the candidates for directors and senior
management and provide the relevant recommendations.
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Nomination procedures and the process and criteria adopted by
the Nomination Committee include the followings:

o assess the independence of the independent non-executive
directors;

o in considering the nomination of new Directors, the
Nomination Committee will take into account a range of
diversity perspectives, which would include but not be
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service of the individual as the selection criteria;
and

o identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the
Board on the selection of, individuals nominated for
directorships.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, one meeting has been
held by the Nomination Committee to review the structure, size
and composition of the Board and the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors.

The attendance of each member of the Nomination Committee
at the meeting during the year ended 31 March 2017 is as
follows:

REAZBERMZIERIEF - BREMEMHEE
THEIE

o  AMEBUIFRITESFMEULIE
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BRIzt BRETBRR
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REBE_Z—t+F=A=+—HIEFERXN &
FREBECETREH UrJEZEeR
B RERERIBIERTERNB LI -

E_T—+F=A=1T—HIEFERN &
HEZBERKBHEEZNBERAT

Director Name Attendance
EERR HER
Mr. Man Kwok Leung (Chairman) BRRLL () 11
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth FEERE ”n
Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter RIELCESE 11
Ms. Zheng Juhua BEGIE R+ 1M

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules as its own code regarding securities transactions by
Directors of the Company and its subsidiaries and employees of
the Group who are likely to be in possession of unpublished
price-sensitive information of the Company. All the Directors
have confirmed their compliance with the codes throughout the
year.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board has the overall responsibility for the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group on an ongoing basis,
and for reviewing its effectiveness. The Board is also responsible
for establishing and maintaining appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems with regard to the
objectives of the Group. The established systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or 10ss.

During the year under review, the Board, through the Audit
Committee, has conducted a review, via an appointed
professional firm to perform internal audit function, on the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group, covering financial, operational, compliance
and risk management aspects. The systems were considered
effective and adequate.

The Group adopts a complete process style of risk management
in a functional bottom up manner, including risk identification,
assessment, evaluation and treatment. The functional areas
across the Group provide input of risks with treatments, which
are appraised and maintained. The risk management system, as
well as the internal control system, are continuous, proactive and
systematic processes.

With the implementation of internal audit function, the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems is reviewed by conducting internal audit assignments.
Recommendations for major observations of control weaknesses
from the audits will be provided, so as to resolve material internal
control defects.

Inside Information Policy is in place, which aims to set out
guidelines to ensure inside information of the Group is to be
disseminated to the public in equal and timely manner.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee has been notified of the nature and service
charges of the non-audit services to be performed by the
Company’s external auditor, Lau & Au Yeung C.P.A. Limited, and
considered that such services have no adverse effect on the
independence of their audit works.

A summary of audit services provided by the external auditor for
the year and their corresponding remunerations is as follows:

B ET N &
ERZEGRANGANE ZINEZHERIES
SRV EBAARABBITHFEEZRBZEE
MERBWE - RAEEEZTE 2B EL &
BRERTE -

RAFE - SMNEZBEM R 2 B RIS E A
REMBEMESIT -

Nature of services Amount
RS M
HK$'000
FHIT
Audit services for the year ended 31 March 2017
HE_ZT—+F=H=1T—BHLEFEZEZRBE 700
Non-audit services
IEE LIRS 486

AMENDMENTS TO THE COMPANY'S
CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Company has not
amended its Bye-laws.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholders to convene a general
meeting

Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up share capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at the general meetings of the
Company (the “Eligible Shareholder(s)”) shall at all times have the
right, by written requisition to the Board or the company
secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”), to require
a special general meeting ("SGM") to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit
of such requisition. Eligible Shareholders who wish to convene a
SGM must deposit a written requisition (the “Requisition”) signed
by the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned to the principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong at Suite 2202, Floor 22,
China Resources Building, 26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong, for the attention of the Company Secretary.

If within 21 days of the deposit of the Requisition the Board fails
to proceed to convene such SGM, the Eligible Shareholder(s)
himself/herself/themselves may do so in accordance with the
provisions of section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda.

Right To Nominate Directors For Election At General
Meetings

Shareholder who wishes to propose a person other than a
Director of the Company for election as a Director must deposit a
written notice (the “Notice”) to the principal place of business of
the Company in Hong Kong at Suite 2202, Floor 22, China
Resources Building, 26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, or
the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
Tengis Limited (the "Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar”), at Level
22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, for the
attention of the Company Secretary. The Notice must state
clearly the name of the Shareholder(s) and his/her/their
shareholding, the full name of the person proposed for election
as a Director, including the person’s biographical details as
required by Rule 13.51 (2) of the Listing Rules, and be signed by
the Shareholder concerned (not the person to be nominated).
The Notice must also be accompanied by a letter of consent
signed by the person nominated to be elected on his/her
willingness to be elected as a Director.

The period for lodgment of the Notice will commence on the day
after the dispatch of the notice of the general meeting held for
the election of Directors and end no later than seven (7) days
prior to the date of such general meeting.
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The Notice will be verified by the Hong Kong Branch Share
Registrar and upon their confirmation that the request is proper
and in compliance with the rules of procedures, the Company
Secretary will ask the nomination committee of the Company and
the Board to consider to include the resolution in the agenda for
the general meeting proposing such person to be elected as a
Director. The right and procedures to convene a general meeting
and to demand a poll on resolutions at general meetings by
Shareholders are set out in the Company’s amended Bye-laws
headed “General Meetings”, “Notice Of General Meetings”,
“Proceedings At General Meetings” and “Voting”.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at a
Shareholders’ meeting

The Shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth of the total
voting rights of those Shareholders having the right to vote at
such meeting or not less than one hundred Shareholders, at the
expenses of the Shareholders concerned, can submit a written
requisition to move a resolution at a general meeting.

The written requisition must state the resolution, accompanied
by a statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the
matter referred to in the proposed resolution, signed by all the
Shareholders concerned and may consist of several documents
in like form (which between them contain the signatures of all the
Shareholders concerned).

The written requisition must be deposited to the principal place
of business of the Company in Hong Kong at Suite 2202, Floor 22,
China Resources Building, 26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong, for the attention of the Company Secretary not less than
six weeks before the meeting in the case of a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution and not less than one week in the
case of any other requisition.

The signatures and the requisition will be verified by the
Company’s branch share registrar. Upon verification that the
request is valid, the Company Secretary will ask the Board to (i)
include the resolution in the agenda for the annual general
meeting; or (i) convene a special general meeting by serving
sufficient notice in accordance with the statutory requirements
to all the Shareholders, provided that the Shareholders
concerned have deposited a sum reasonably sufficient to meet
the Company's expenses in giving effect thereto.
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DISCLAIMERS

The contents of the section headed “Shareholders’ Rights” in this
report are for reference only and in compliance with disclosure
requirements, which do not represent and shall not be regarded
as legal or other professional advice to the Shareholders.
Shareholders should seek their independent legal or other
professional advice as to their rights as shareholders of the
Company. The Company disclaims any liability for all liabilities
and losses incurred by the Shareholders in reliance upon any
contents of the section headed “Shareholders’ Rights”.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
The Board recognizes the importance of continuing
communications with the Company'’s shareholders and investors,
and maintains ongoing dialogues with them through various
channels. The primary communication channel between the
Company and its shareholders is through the publication of its
interim and annual reports.

The Company'’s registrars serve the shareholders with respect to
all share registration matters.

The Company’s annual general meeting provides a useful forum
for shareholders to exchange views with the Board. The Board
members and management of the Company are available to
answer shareholders’ questions and explain the procedures for
demanding and conducting a poll, if necessary. Any relevant
information and documents on proposed resolutions are
normally sent to all shareholders at least 21 clear days before the
annual general meeting.

All shareholders’ communications, including interim and annual
reports, announcements and press releases are available on the
Company’s website at www.noblecentury.hk. The latest business
developments and core strategies of the Company can also be
found on the website, keeping the communications with
investors open and transparent.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company keeps on promoting investor relations and
enhancing communication with the existing shareholders and
potential investors. It welcomes suggestions from investors,
stakeholders and the public who may contact the Company by
phone on (852) 2598 9868 during normal business hours, by fax
at (852) 2598 9878 or by e-mail at info@noblecentury.hk.

REEH

Ais [BOREN ] —HRATEHRZERR
ERFEREMEL - X TIRRTTERRR
FRREHEERIEMEEER  RRYEE
ERARAIBRMEN MBS - BAITHEGH
BRI EMERER - ARA TSR
B KR8 [ RER MR | — &R rp A2 0] A & 1 HE B )
—EERBREERE -

BERRZBE
EERRAALARRRREHFBTAES
REFBBRFEUE 2 M - hPRER
FHZ B AR TRBR 2 FREA Y BR
R -

ARARBMBPELBR RN ELEER
PR (AR TS

ARABRAFAE/RREREEEEH
BRAZERFRYE ARAEFEKERE
BESRERRZIER  IREERENNTE
RETRRERERRZRER - MARERE
RZEMBEAENEXHERBRBFEARSET
AR 2VEBRRET R EBAIR

FTERRBM(BEFHRERER  2HK
FER)H AR A A 748 (www.noblecentury.
hk) & B o N D B 2 AT E BB R RAZ O KRB
TRl R AEUEE R - DMRFFEIREE 2 BB AR
KB o

REEBIZE

RNA B TER AR E E IR - Winss R AR
RRBEELES ZHAER - RARENEE
E BRERABRALREESE  TTR—K
A B fE 2UE (852) 2598 9868 - 1B 1A {HEE (852)
2598 9878 8k & & info@noblecentury.hk B2 7K A
AJBE AR o



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL
AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
B~ e K

TR



Annual Report 2017 ¢ — = — - F 45

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BREE ~ e XA R

ABOUT THIS REPORT

We are very pleased to present our first Environmental, Social
and Governance report (the "ESG Report”) for Noble Century
Investment Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”). This ESG Report discloses the Group's
policies, guidelines, actions and performance over the past year
on different sustainable development issues in a transparent
manner. The Group recognises the environmental, social and
governance values and it is our commitment to create
sustainable values and environmental protection through caring
of our stakeholders.

This ESG Report covers the reporting period from 1 April 2016 to
31 March 2017 (the “Reporting Period”) and it has been prepared
in accordance with the Environmental, Social and Governance
("ESG") Reporting Guide (the "Guide”) in Appendix 27 of the
Listing Rules of the Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited
("HKEX"). The Guide encourages a listing company to identify and
disclose ESG information that is material and relevant to both its
business and its stakeholders.

The Group is principally engaged in vessel chartering, trading,
money lending and finance leasing during the Reporting Period.
Unless otherwise stated, this ESG report covers our operations in
Hong Kong and the PRC which has contributed almost our
Group's entire turnover in the Reporting Period.

IDENTIFYING PRIORITIES AND BALANCES IN
OUR VALUE CREATION PROCESS

We hope to enhance communication with stakeholders through
this report. To start with the value creation process on
sustainable development, the stakeholders’ participation is
critical to assess the priorities. Then through a variety of
communication channels, we get in touch with important
stakeholders for better understanding their expectations. As a
result, we not only can identify opportunities and challenges, and
develop our business development strategies, but also can
improve our corporate social responsibilities that are considered
as the continuing commitment by the Company to behave
ethically and to contribute to economic development, and at the
same time to improve the quality of life of our employees and
their families as well as of the local community and society at
large.
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For the Reporting Period, we have identified key stakeholders  RiREHA - &1?35;&%&2%‘ MR
and have communicated with them in different ways, such as B == - i.g%iw R N -
physical meetings, email, mail, telephone, interview, lecture etc. FEEHAERERER

Key Stakeholders
FTERZEA
Internal stakeholders External stakeholders
AR A ShERRERE A

e Board of Directors e Customers
o EE® s BP
e Shareholders and Investors e Suppliers
o BRERKRESE o HIER
e Management e Financial Institutions
o ETIEE o TREIMIE
o Staff e Government/regulatory authorities
e BT o BN/ EEHIE

e Local Community groups
o Ribit[m[EEE

e Media
o HIE

One of the key outcomes we expect from the stakeholders WRHEZALEBREPESHTIENRZ —/E
engagement process is materiality assessment where the views — ZERHE - MBE@ERIERME R EZE AR
of what are important to business (in particular for internal ~ ZEHBEREE - AE PSR E B ﬁlf‘ii
stakeholders) and what are important to stakeholders (the Z#ER FRIERR AR ERA) KiER
external stakeholders), are identified through plotting on a matrix ~ REZHHEIR GERNRIMNEERA) - EA&{HE’J
of relevance and importance. This matrix forms a basis for our RFEIZH - WA B ETEIEH MR
decision process to prioritise the focuses for long term planning, & AR - BERNERBERATHATR
disclosure, policy enhancement and enforcement of relevant ~ #IE B FHERCEE -

practices.
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Our businesses have impacts on our key stakeholders, and on  HfINESRE RPN ETERESAEELTZE MW
the other hand our stakeholders also have different expectations  S—FH * BB ANNE RNEZ NG FE
over the Group. Going forward, we shall continuously strengthen — EYHAZE - RIER K - BTG 6T hnsg Bk s A
communication with our stakeholders, and collect their opinions — #i&:® « 2 HENES B R HE - HATE A
and expectations extensively by various means. We shall also  EWEEE - 84k - FEE—E - NREH
reinforce the reporting principles as proposed in the Guide for X ZFrga|RIREHRERA - LAEEARRE
materiality, quantitative, balance and consistency, in order to ~ A E ZHEEAS » WA T B Z &1 DA #
incorporate more relevant contents in the report and to present  ZHABIER AKX E25|E R} -

information in a way that can meet better the expectation of our

stakeholders.

o Internal stakeholders (Board of Directors, management, staff,
shareholders and Investors)
o NEfEREA (EST -  B1BE - 81 RERKESH)
e External stakehoders (Customers, suppliers, financial institutions,
Stakeholder government/regulatory authorities, local community group, media)
o INEPERA (BIEEP - HIER - SEEE -
engagement BT BB - At RERE - )

@ AR

e Through completion of a matrix for relevance and importance
o BBTAEREE - REMEBEEREENN

45

Materiality
assessment
EEIETE

Resources allocation
BRD B

Strategic
planning
REE MRS

Policy enhancement
R E

Enforce practices
EHIBIT

ESG disclosures
ESGH#:#&

Medium and long term strategic planning
FE R REAR ISR S
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OUR ENVIRONMENT

Environmental Protection

The environmental damage that human has caused Earth is
phenomenal. We are contributing to climate change, depleting of
natural resources, and polluting the natural environment at a
high rate. We recognise the importance of environmental
protection that is essential for the sustainable development of
the environment and our business, and as such, we believe that
it is our responsibility to encourage all our stakeholders, internally
and externally, to preserve the environment. We participate
actively in protecting the environment by formulating necessary
procedures to minimize the damage to the environment by
reducing and proper handling of the emissions, efficient use of
resources and proper use of natural resources. The Group also
enhances our employees’ awareness of environmental protection
and increases their involvement in operating an eco-friendly
working environment.

Emissions Management

The vessel chartering business of the Group, as per exclusive
agency agreement signed, the Agent (the “Agent”) will be
responsible for the daily management and to ensure the vessel
to operate with all valid certificates and licenses including: fire,
life-saving, pollution prevention, and operation. Also, all the
supplies and accessories, fuel, lub-oil, fresh water and other
back-up supplies will be taken care by the Agent. During
emergency, the Agent will have the authority to direct the vessel.
As our vessel had been on term charter to the charterer who was
responsible for all the fuel and fresh water during the charter
period. This means that the Group will not have any direct
polluted fluid discharges or polluted air emissions. The possible
wastes generated would be the living wastes of the seamen on
board, and some amount of lub-oils residuals from the
maintenance of the ship equipment. These two wastes have
been stored carefully and will be collected by qualified
companies during vessel berthed in ports.

As required by laws and protection against environmental
pollution resulted from unforeseen accident and disaster, the
Group'’s vessels have arranged the “HULL POLLUTION LIABILITY
INSURANCE" and “PROTECTION AND INDEMNITY LIABILITY
INSURANCE" upto a maximum insured amount of RMB25 million
to protect against potential environmental pollution liabilities and
third parties damages and losses liabilities, which will provide
additional protection against any other circumstances including
environmental pollution.
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Under the charter-party, it is the charterer who will be
responsible for the safety carriage of cargoes of dangerous
nature. The charterer is not allowed to carry any forbidden
cargoes. If dangerous cargoes are under carriage, it will be the
responsibility and liability of the charterer to have in place all the
governmental approval and permits to carry and to make sure all
the precautionary measures and installations have been installed
before carriage. Hence, the Group will not be liable for any
environmental disasters related liabilities resulting from carriage
of dangerous and forbidden cargoes.

The methanol trading business is operated on a back-to-back
contract basis which requires buyers of the goods to be entirely
responsible for its insurance for any public liabilities and
environmental damages which may arise in the course of
conveyance and delivery. By nature of the contract arrangement
and operation, and liability transfer configuration, as such the
Group is bailed out of its liabilities and responsibilities which may
arise from environmental pollutions or damages.

The other two financial business — lending and leasing are only
in-house activities and will not generate any emission and
wastes.

In short, there are no production wastes discharged arising from
the businesses of the Group, which could be considered to have
a significant impact on our operation. There is no Greenhouse
gas emissions from the Group's businesses except the indirect
gas emission of carbon dioxide (CO,) as a result of electricity
consumption. There is no hazardous wastes arisen from the
businesses of the Group.

Non-hazardous wastes from the offices are taken care of by the
local waste collector. Contemplations have always been given to
recycle, reuse, replacement, recovery and reduction (as “5R”) in
the various processes and stages of production in line with the
5R Environmental Measures. During the Reporting Period, the
Group had not received any notice of fine or warning from any
environmental agencies in Hong Kong or the PRC.
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EMPLOYMENT

Well aware of the fact that employees are the main force driving
the future development of the Company, we continue to optimize
human resources management system to improve staff quality
and lay a solid talent foundation for our sustainable development.

Human Resources Policies

The Group strictly complies with the laws, regulations, rules and
standards in Hong Kong and the Mainland China on employment.
To enable every talent to get familiarised with the rules and
policies in their work place, a comprehensive staff handbook is
shared with them on their welcome day. The handbook has
thorough information on policies relating to the recruitment and
promotion, development and training, working hours, rest
periods, other benefits and welfare, compensation and dismissal,
equal opportunity, diversity and anti-discrimination, etc.

We offer competitive salary package to recruit talented people
and in order to retain high caliber talents, we shall provide other
benefits and welfare to them such as share options, discretionary
bonus and training sponsorship.

Employee development and training

The Group recognizes the value and importance of having the
required level of training and skills for job competency and
safety. Measures and procedures are in place to ensure that
training and development in terms of skills and job knowledge,
operation know-hows are provided to employees at various
levels so that they are able to perform their required job duties in
a competent and capable manner and without risk to their health
and safety or damage to plants and operations.

The Group owns the ocean-going vessels for one of its business
operations during the Reporting Period. The ocean-going vessels
is operated and managed by an exclusive Agent, who will charter
it on term or spot charter to charterers. In this connection, the
Group is responsible for providing the vessels with seamen. The
Agent will select, recruit, train and manage the seamen on our
behalf. All seamen will enter into employment contracts with the
Agent on behalf of our ship-owning subsidiary, where their pay
rolls, and other employment benefits are paid. When the seamen
are place on board the vessels, they will follow the work
instructions and safety standards given by the Agent.
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The Agent is required to comply with the Chinese seamen
recruitment standard, and all recruited seamen must obtain their
relevant qualifications and competency certificates. The Agent
provides to the seamen 3 types of training according to the
different types of operations of the vessels viz (1) General
Training (GL), (2) Deck Training (C2) and (3) Engine Training (CZ) as
spelt out in the Seamen Training Program’s. Despite various
topics on seamen skills and know-how of a ship operation are
covered in the seamen training courses, it is noted that great
emphasis has been placed on life-saving, fire safety, use of fire-
fighting appliances subjects which are considered crucial in life
protection and fire safety. The Group keeps clear records to show
the contents, date, names of trainers and trainees of each
training course being conducted.

For new employees on trading and financial activities (lending
and leasing), we normally provide them with “position-taking
trainings” when they commence their work with us and “on-the-
job" training when they are under probation period. The position-
taking trainings for newly recruited employees during probation
periods, include topics on the Group's historical development,
structure, regulations, positions and responsibilities, working
skills, safety in operation, and career development plan etc.,
which will assist them to understand the Group and adapt to their
positions earlier. The on-the-job and specific trainings for regular
employees aim at improving their career development and skills
to perform their required job duties in a more competent and
capable manner and without risking their health and safety and
losing their ethical standard. Meanwhile, the Group also
encourages employees to actively participate in position-related
trainings organized by external institutions in order to enhance
individual professional quality and efficiency, the costs of which
would be paid by the Group on application and by discretion of
the management.
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Health and Safety

The Group undertakes to safeguard the health and safety of our
employees despite the very innocuous nature in our nature and
operations. The employee handbook sets out detailed health and
safety guidance. All employees are required to strictly observe
the health and safety guidelines.

The Group has taken out National Social Securities and Insurance
for all qualified employees in the PRC and Employee
Compensation for employees in Hong Kong in accordance with
the statutory requirements of the two places. We have taken an
additional insurance covers for seamen — the "SEAMEN
ACCIDENTS LIABILITY INSURANCE", to provide extra insurance
coverage for each seamen up to an insured amount of
RMB500,000 for accidental and death liabilities. The Group
confirms that there have been no serious injury incidents or
disastrous events in the Hong Kong and the PRC offices (the
"Offices”) which could have significant impact on the Group in
the Reporting Period.

The Group has equipped the Offices with all the required safety
equipment and facilities, and has passed all the governmental
safety inspections. In case of accidents, regardless of minor or
serious, employees are required by the in-house rules to notify
their superiors immediately or without delays, who will take
appropriate measures to ensure safety is not being
compromised.

In-house rules require all injuries or accidents to be promptly and
properly dealt with and reported in accordance with the local or
national laws as appropriate. Measures are in place to require
corresponding remedial or compensatory actions arising from
safety and health issues or work injuries are taken where
necessary in accordance with the in-house rules. The Group has
not recorded any claim disputes on compensation or work
related injury investigation by the government officials in the
Reporting Period in Hong Kong and in the PRC.
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Observe Labour Standards

We recognise that child labour and forced labour violate
fundamental human rights and the protocol of international
labour conventions, and we agree they pose a threat to
sustainable social and economic development. Therefore we
strictly abide the Employment Ordinance in Hong Kong, and the
Labour Law and Labour Contract Law in the PRC.

The Group prohibits employment of child labour and will carry
out examination of the applicant’s age during the recruitment
stage. We would strictly follow the employment contracts and
would not prejudice the employment relationship in any way
between the employees and the Group, such as detaining a
deposit, forcing to work against their will under any kind of
threat. Employees have the right to terminate their employment
contracts as long as it is in compliance with the relevant laws and
the Group policies. During the Reporting Period, the Group has
not experienced any case of child labour and forced labour.

Use of Resources

We believe that the efforts of our employees can have a great
contribution to the efficient use of resources. Therefore, we are
committed to establishing a culture of energy saving and
resources conservation in our workplaces. We have put forward
policies on reducing the use of resources in the staff handbook.
Employees are encouraged to switch off lighting and electronic
equipment not in use during the office hour. In the daytime,
natural light is recommended as much as possible. Computers
are set as sleep mode when not in use. The temperature of air
conditioners is set at a reasonable temperature for the efficient
use of energy. After office hour, all computers, lightning, air
conditioners and equipment not in use are required to turn off.
Water is also a precious natural resource and water conservation
is highly encouraged. Notices are posted at the prominent places
to remind our employees to save water. Less paper policy is
imposed on our working places. Staff is encouraged to use
electronic communication, such as email, to replace the use of
paper. Double sided printing is adopted. The use of photocopying
is reviewed regularly to avoid wasting of paper and energy.
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES ON OUR
OPERATIONS

Supply Chain Management

The Group opens its purchase acquisitions to all suppliers on a
fair and equitable manner. All purchase transactions are open
and transparent. They are subject to the scrutiny of the internal
hierarchy supervisions depending on its value and significance
and to the overall scrutiny of the external independent audit
checks. Many of our purchases for general purpose and use are
concluded with suppliers in the nearby areas. They encourage
and promote local economy in an unspoken manner.

Quality and standard of the purchases are crucial and
instrumental to our output quality and a stringent stipulation
policy has been applied in the procurement process. Incoming
key products will be subjected to our own quality assurance
check. As far as condition warrants and permits the Group may
impose a condition in the procurement documents to reserve the
right to inspect and examine the raw materials before purchase.

During the Reporting Period, the Group mainly conduct its
purchases of materials and services with reputable local
suppliers with known supply source as far as practicable and
possible. The Group does not foresee its source of supplies of
both materials and services to be a potential threat to our
operation.

The above purchase policy and measures, however, will not be
applied fully to “purchases for supplies to the vessel”. It is the
Agent’s responsibility for the types, quantities and sources of the
purchases. The Group, as the vessel owner will check on the
reasonableness of prices and quantities, before reimbursing the
Agent. The Group will also monitor the overall standard of the
purchases made by the Agent, to ensure that's in compliance
with the Group's policy.

Product Responsibilities

There are three main areas in which the Group is involved in the
supply of materials and service provision where product
responsibility might have an implication. The quality of our
seamen will have a direct impact on their job performance, and
in turn will also directly affect the performance of the charter-
parties and our reputation as well as profit and loss. The Group
therefore maintains close contacts with our Agent to ensure all
the seamen must possess the required qualifications and working
experiences, and their quality must be up to the prescribed
standard.
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Methanol trading is the main and the only significant area where
material supply is involved in the Group businesses. In terms of
quality of the supplied materials from the Group in the methanol
trading, the back-to-back contract trading arrangement neatly
and squarely releases the Group from any foreseeable significant
impacts in terms of liabilities, losses or claims. Any significant
conseqguences or impact to the Group are considered minimal.
Still, the Group sticks to the principle of known reputations,
reliable track records and integrity in picking our trading partners.

On the financial activities — lending and leasing, the employees
are required to follow strictly the rules and regulations on
marketing and sale of their business. They are not allowed to
misrepresent and give any warranties without the approval of the
senior management.

Policies and procedures are in place to ensure that all customer
complaints or concerns are addressed to at the appropriate
levels in a timely manner.

Anti-corruption

The Group is committed to preventing bribery, extortion, fraud
and money laundering. All directors and employees in Hong Kong
are regulated by Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Hong Kong)
(“the Ordinance”). Employees working in the PRC must also
comply with local legislation to prevent bribery. The Group
prohibited all directors or employees to obtain any benefit from
clients, suppliers or any person who has business dealings with
the Group. The Group has formulated policies and procedures to
ensure every employee do not provide, undertake or receive any
improper and illegal benefits. The staff manual of our Group also
standardises the code of conduct. Employees are encouraged to
report any act that contravenes the Ordinance or other relevant
legislation to their department heads and the directors.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had not recorded any
case involving bribery, blackmail, fraud and money laundering in
relation to the Group and its employees.
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OUR COMMUNITY

Community investment

We believe in active contribution to the communities in which we
operate. We hope to create positive impact to the society
through collaboration, corporate philanthropy and employee
volunteerism. We encourage and facilitate active participation of
our staff and their family members in our community
engagement initiatives as we believe their participation not only
can help the community but also can contribute to the holistic
development of our staff in terms of caring, sympathy and
personal integrity. Moreover it enables our staff to be more
conscious on social and environmental issues and in turn this will
reinforce our sustainable value.

We motivated our employees to join our support works and

"o

organized campaigns including “Blood Donation”, “mooncake

noou

and mooncake box recycling”, “Chinese Red Pockets recycling
and reusing”, “Green Monday Corner”, “Annual Recycling —
paper, metal and plastic” etc. The Group will continue through
the day to day contact with the community officials and leaders
to explore and to examine what and how the Group can further

its support to the community and environment.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
A

The Directors present their report together with the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS
REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and
the activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements. There was no significant
changes in nature of Group’s principal activities during the year.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by
Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a
discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Group and an indication of likely future developments in the
Group’s business, can be found in the sections “Chairman’s
Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” set out
on pages 5 to 20 of this annual report. This discussion forms part
of this directors’ report.

SEGMENT INFORMATION
An analysis of the Group’s performance by operating segments is
set out in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2017 are
set forth in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 83 to 84.

The Board did not recommend the payment of any dividend for
the year ended 31 March 2017 (2016: Nil).

INVESTMENT PROPERTY, PROPERTY, PLANT
AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in investment property, property, plant
and equipment of the Group are set forth in notes 14 and 15 to
the consolidated financial statements respectively.

DONATIONS
No charitable donations has been made by the Group during the
year (2016; HK$243,000).
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set forth in note 26 to the consolidated
financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share options scheme below, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into by the Group or existed during the
year ended 31 March 2017.

SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 2 September 2013 and the
Stock Exchange granting approval of the listing of and permission
to deal in the shares to be issued under the share option scheme
(the "Share Option Scheme”) on 3 September 2013, the Company
adopted the Share Option Scheme in replacement of a share
option scheme adopted on 25 March 2003 which had been
expired on 24 March 2013.

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period
of 10 years from 2 September 2013, unless otherwise terminated.
The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide the
Company with a flexible and effective means of incentivizing,
rewarding, remunerating, compensating and/or providing
benefits to the directors, employees and other participants of the
Company and the Group.

The exercise price, vesting period, exercisable period and the
number of shares subject to each option will be determined by
the Board at the time of grant. No option has been granted by the
Company under the Share Option Scheme since its adoption to
the date of this report.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company
during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 87 and in note 38(b) to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE KRB ZADIKREE
COMPANY
The Company'’s reserve was as follows: RRABZHEAT
2017 2016
—E2—+tF —ERF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Contributed surplus EMAG 34,178 34,178
Accumulated losses REtEsia (31,885) (4,627)
2,293 29,551

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the REBEBFRE-NN—FRADE(KIERT), AR
contributed surplus of the Company is available for distribution. " Z E@@ERAIH DK AW - £ T FIER
However, the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or T ARBPMFE RN RR - HEEHR
make a distribution out of the contributed surplus if: BRAPEL DK

(@) the Company is, or would after the payment be, unable to (@) AR RIRE IR B ERELEESH
pay its liabilities as they become due; or afg: %

(b)  the realisable value of the Company would thereby be less  (0)  ARFZAZEREEBELTMIRER
than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share & - BBITIRA LM RER G -
capital and share premium accounts.

BORROWINGS (EEN
Particulars of borrowings of the Group as at 31 March 2017 are  AEBR -_T—+F=A=+—HBZEXFE
set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements. BN ER A BTSRRI 5E 29 o

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION HMRERNBE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the AEEBEREMRFEZFEREEARBHE
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 184 of EHNAFHRFE184H -

the annual report.
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DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors:

Ms. Zheng Juhua

Mr. Chan Chi Yuen

Ms. Wang Yinggian (appointed on 19 April 2017)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Man Kwok Leung

Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter

Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth

In accordance with bye-law 86(2) of the Company’s Bye-laws, Ms.
Wang Yinggian will hold office until the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company and being eligible, offer herself
for re-election.

In accordance with bye-law 87(1) of the Company’s Bye-laws and
to comply with the requirements of the Listing Rules, Mr. Chan
Chi Yuen and Mr. Man Kwok Leung will retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election.

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers that all of the Independent Non-executive Directors are
independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Other than the transactions as disclosed in note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements, no contracts of significance in
relation to the Company’s business to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at 31 March 2017 or at any time during the year then ended.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year under review and up to the date of this report,
the Directors had an interest in any business apart from the
Group's business, which competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the Group’s business that need to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules were as
follows:

EENHEFRE2ER

REBEFARBEEAREAY  EFRELE
BE B ER N ERBAR R A BB ERF 2
AR (BRAREEBIN) PHRERE LR
AIF8I0RA THENERIT

Director Name of company Nature of business Nature of interests

Bz DRER ERNE BEmE

Mr. Chan Chi Yuen Royal Century Resources Holdings Limited Money lending Chairman and executive

BREREE (“Royal Century”) (formerly known as business director of Royal Century
Kate China Holdings Limited) and EEER CRERCERZNTES

its subsidiaries
CEgRERERAR (M- E8R]) (FE
HIFEEERERAR) REMBAR

Asia Energy Logistics Limited (“Asia Energy”)
and its subsidiaries

SRR ERER AR ([2MEER]) &
HHt B AR

Ms. Wang Yinggian
FRTrL

Fortunes United International Leasing Co., Ltd
(“Fortunes United")
Binla R EHEER AR ([BRka )

As the board of Directors (the “Board”) is independent to the
boards of the above mentioned companies, the Group is capable
of carrying on its business independently of, and at arm’s length,
from the business of those companies.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors was interested in
any business (apart from the Group’s business) which competed
or was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
business of the Group during the year.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER'S INTERESTS
IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements, at no time during the year had the Company or any
of its subsidiaries, and the controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries entered into any contract of significance or any
contract of significance for the provision of services by the
controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries to the Company
or any of its subsidiaries.

Vessel chartering

AR E R

Finance leasing

Independent non-executive
director of Asia Energy
MR B FNTES

business

Supervisor of Fortunes United

business ERBACESE

HREFR(EFR)BIR LRARNZES
& WAEEAENBINEE AT EBER
AT RBEEE LT o

R EXFIREEIN EFNAFEAGERE
AR B TS B B S R R PO S S AT BE R AR
FZAEMER (BRARBEBEIN) h A T

E_o
ERBRRREN2ER

Brire IS MR M6 AIREEI - ARF]
sk ELE (TP B A B B B R A R e B
EAIMB AR M EMNEARGL - HAERBZER
PR S EATAAIP B 2 Rl AR B AN R BRI
TP R AR RIS 2 (E M EAREX -
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The transactions as set out in note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements were connected transactions which were
exempt from any disclosure and shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As far as the transactions set out in note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements are concerned, the remuneration of the
Directors as determined pursuant to the service contracts/letters
of appointment entered into between the Directors and the
Group were connected transactions which were exempt from
any disclosure and shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Directors have confirmed that the Company has complied
with the disclosure requirement in accordance with Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2017, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the chief executives of the Company and their
associates in the shares of the Company (the “Shares”),
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ")) which have been
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded
in the register as required to be kept pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules were as follows:

Directors’ interest in the Company:
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Approximate
percentage of

Name of director Number of shares shareholding Capacity
EEHE ROEE RESNESILE B2
Ms. Zheng Juhua Long position 1,073,680,000 shares 29.17% Interest of the controlled
by e (Notes (i), (i) & (iii)) corporations
& & 1,073,680,000 B% RERN AR

(BREE () ~ (i) Bz (iii))
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Notes:

(i) 694,095,140 shares were held by Superb Smart Limited (“Superb
Smart”), a company wholly and beneficially owned by Ms. Zheng Juhua,
and accordingly, Ms. Zheng Juhua is deemed to be interested in the
relevant shares under the SFO;

(i) 14,720,000 shares were held by Good Virtue Capital Limited, a company
beneficially owned as to 70% by Ms. Zheng Juhua and 30% by her son,
and accordingly, Ms. Zheng Juhua is deemed to be interested in the
relevant shares under the SFO; and

(ifi) Pursuant to a put option deed (the “"Option Deed”) dated 29 April 2016
and executed by Superb Smart in favour of Sea Venture Investments
Limited (“Sea Venture”), Sea Venture was granted a right (the "Put
Option”) to require Superb Smart to purchase from Sea Venture
364,864,860 shares of the Company (as adjusted after the subdivision
of one share of HK$0.10 each into five subdivided shares of HK$0.02
each became effective on 5 September 2016 and subject to the
adjustment provisions in the Option Deed) (the “Option Shares”) during
the period from 29 March 2018 to 28 April 2018 (or such other period
commencing from the date of occurrence of a specified event as
contained in the Option Deed). As such, Superb Smart, and accordingly,
Ms. Zheng Juhua, are deemed to have a long position and to be
interested in the relevant Option Shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2017, none of the
Directors nor chief executive of the Company had or was
deemed to have any interested or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and/or debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO or otherwise required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Model Code.

ARRANGEMENT FOR DIRECTORS TO
ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the “Share Option Scheme” section on page
57 in this annual report and note 26(c) to the consolidated
financial statements, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debt securities (including debentures)
of, the Company or any other body corporate, and none of the
Directors, or their spouses or children under the age of eighteen,
had any right to subscribe for the securities of the Company, or
had exercised any such rights during the year ended 31 March
2017.

BT

() 694,095,140 R IR BB ELX T2 ERERH
& 2 Superb Smart Limited( Superb Smart)#7% -
Bt - RIBFEHFRAE RIS G L TR RN
HEAROER R

(i) 14,720,000 B R BB fE 2+ R E 7+ 5 Rl
B70%R0%E=ER 2 CEERBRAFF
BB RIEES RS KROEEEZ TR
ARARRGEEER &

iy WEBBMA=-ZT—FMNA =+ BSuperb
Smart £ & 177 77 BA & Sea Venture Investments
Limited ([ Sea Venture]) fE &= 2 A 2 AR %)
(5% [ER#EZ4) |) - Sea Venture &% FHEFI ([ R
HHEDAIRZE-N\F=ZA=+tIBE=F
—N\FMA=Z+N\BEMA (b EER AR
ZHEBEHBEE AR ZEMEIE) 2K
Superb SmartiaSea Venturess B 364,864,8600% (18
BHRZOARGS  ER=2E—"FNLARA
SRz 5 REREEIOE T ZRHIFMAR
IR SRR EE 0.02 78 T 2 Hr A AR 10 M /B 3 28 ) K
AR ([ BARERR 9 ]) o B 1tk Superb Smart ( &
#em B Te 2 ) #AR BRI B RN A8 B fE
MRt A RS ©
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B ARREENERITBRAEBMEEARRF
sk ELAEROAE (E%& B 57 LR HRAIEXVER)
2Bt~ HBRERG K&LESFT - EAIES
REREAERIORR MR IEE S &3
BIEPIEI2IGARBETEEZERMA
FARIFARAE T R B AN A N B R B S Py ©

EEBARDHES 2L
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I MARM 26 TS ARBREAE
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 March 2017, so far as it is known by or otherwise
notified by any Director or the chief executive of the Company,
the particulars of the corporations or persons who had 5% or
more interests in the following long positions in the shares and
underlying shares as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 336 of the SFO or were entitled to exercise, or
control the exercise of, 10% or more of the voting power at any
general meeting of the Company (the “Voting Entitlements”) (i.e.
within the meaning of substantial shareholders of the Listing
Rules) were as follows:

Name of substantial
shareholder
FERRHA

Number of shares
BAEE
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FERRRAEMALTRREG REEHE
Rz EER KR

R-ZZE—+F=ZA=+—8  BARXRIME
EIERITHRAEMBXRESFANE X
PR IE R H LA E IGHIZE 336 KA T E R ER
B FTateR 2 B D RABRBE IR D 2 T B F 5%
A B SREARRMEMRE RS B
TR HI10%sk A R (TR =)
(BN EMARARNEZREFAERE) CAFIHA
TZFFIEIAE

Approximate
percentage of

shareholding Capacity
RESNEIE B2

Ms. Zheng Juhua
Esgie e+

Long position 1,073,680,000 shares
(Notes (i), (ii) & (iii))

¥ 1,073,680,000 I&
CRREEG) ~ (i) Bz (i)

Superb Smart Limited Long position 1,058,960,000 shares
(Notes (i) & (iii))

¥ A 1,058,960,000 A& (B 5E () K (iii))

Good Virtue Capital Limited Long position 14,720,000 shares
CEERBRATA (Note (ii))
¥ A 14,720,000 B% (Bt £ (i)

Sea Venture Investments
Limited

Long position 364,864,860 shares
(Note (iii))

4 B 364,864,860 I A% 15 (B #E (iii))

Short position 364,864,860 shares
(Note (iii))

KB 364,864,860 AR AR 153 (BT 7 (iii))

China Construction Bank Long position 364,864,860 shares

Corporation (Note (iii))
B RRERTT R D 1772 364,864,860 B 19 (B 7% (iii))
BRAH Short position 364,864,860 shares

(Note (iii))
KB 364,864,360 B 17 (B &E (iil))

Interest of the controlled
corporations
SR A/NCI L

2917%

Beneficial owner
EnHEAA

28.77%

Beneficial owner
EnHEAA

0.40%

Beneficial owner
Ema A

9.91%

9.91% Beneficial owner

ESBEAA

Interest of controlled
corporations
PN AR
Interest of controlled
corporations
RN RlfE R

9.91%

9.91%
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Name of substantial

Approximate
percentage of

shareholder Number of shares shareholding Capacity
FTERRHE RGO EE RESHEILE 52
CCB International Group Long position 364,864,860 shares 9.91% Interest of controlled
Holdings Limited (Note (iii)) corporations
EITEIFR SR EEAR 1T 2 364,864,860 B AR 1 (B 7% (iif)) RN
BRAT Short position 364,864,860 shares 9.91% Interest of controlled
(Note (iii)) corporations

KB 364,864,860 BB 17 (B &E (iil))

CCB Financial Holdings Long position 364,864,860 shares
Limited (Note (iii)
RITERMITRAER AR 1 & 364,864,860 BB A% (FH3E (iii))
Short position 364,864,860 shares
(Note (iii)
KB 364,864,860 % I 17 (P 5 (i)

CCB International Long position 364,864,860 shares
(Holdings) Limited (Note (iii) & (iv))
EIRBIR (R AR AR 178 364,864,860 R A 15
(B = (i) X (iv))
Short position 364,864,860 shares
(Note (iii))
B 364,864,860 AR AR 153 (BT 7 (iii))

CCBI Investments Limited  Long position 364,864,860 shares
(Note (iii))
41 8 364,864,860 A% I 1 (B & (iil))
Short position 364,864,860 shares
(Note (iii))
KB 364,864,860 % B 17 (P & (i)

Central Huijin Investment  Long position 364,864,860 shares

Limited (Note (iii))
PRIESIRERRET 412 364,864,860 A& B {n (B 7 (iii))
NG| Short position 364,864,860 shares
(Note (iii))

KB 364,864,860 B I 1 (B &E (i)
Notes:

(i) 694,095,140 shares were held by Superb Smart, a company wholly and
beneficially owned by Ms. Zheng Juhua, and accordingly, Ms. Zheng
Juhua is deemed to be interested in the relevant shares under the SFO.

(i) The 14,720,000 shares were held by Good Virtue Capital Limited, a
company beneficially owned as to 70% by Ms. Zheng Juhua and 30% by
her son, and accordingly, Ms. Zheng Juhua is deemed to be interested
in the relevant shares under the SFO.

SR NEIL 3

9.91% Interest of controlled
corporations
R /N
9.91% Interest of controlled
corporations

SNl 3

9.91% Interest of controlled
corporations
RN RS

9.91% Interest of controlled
corporations
R /N T

9.91% Interest of controlled
corporations
SR /NEIL T
9.91% Interest of controlled
corporations

SR YNEIL 3

9.91% Interest of controlled
corporations
/NI Sy
9.91% Interest of controlled
corporations
AR

694,095, 140N BE L2 ERERE
& 2z Superb Smart Limited 3 & » &t - RIEFE
HREEEHI BRI L WA AR ERRGOEES
MRS o

14,720,000 3% B 15 R BB fE 2 = R B 52 F 5 Bl
B70% KRO%EmiEm s CEERNEGRAFF
BBl BEEFRAEEASETEL TR
ARARRG EEES -
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(i) The 364,864,860 shares (the “Relevant Shares”) were held by Sea
Venture, which is wholly owned by CCBI Investments Limited.

Each of CCBI Investments Limited, CCB International (Holdings) Limited,
CCB Financial Holdings Limited and CCB International Group Holdings
Limited is wholly owned by China Construction Bank Corporation.

Accordingly, each of CCBI Investments Limited, CCB International
(Holdings) Limited, CCB Financial Holdings Limited, CCB International
Group Holdings Limited and China Construction Bank Corporation
(collectively, the "CCB Companies”) is deemed to be interested in the
Relevant Shares under the SFO.

China Construction Bank Corporation is owned as to 57.31% by Central

Huijin Investment Limited (“Central Huijin”). Accordingly, Central Huijin
Investment Limited is deemed to be interested in the Relevant Shares
under the SFO.

Pursuant to the Option Deed, Sea Venture was granted the Put Option.
As such, Sea Venture, the CCB Companies and Central Huijin are
deemed to have a short position and Superb Smart, and accordingly,
Ms. Zheng Juhua, are deemed to have a long position and to be
interested in the relevant Option Shares.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any
other corporations or person who, as at 31 March 2017, had the
Voting Entitlements or any interests or short positions in the
Shares or underlying shares as recorded in the register required
to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

Ms. Zheng Juhua, aged 45, is an executive Director and the
chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company. Ms. Zheng
conducts a property rental and investment business in Shenzhen,
the People’s Republic of China. She has over ten years of
experience in securities investment in Hong Kong. She is the sole
beneficial owner of Superb Smart Limited, a substantial and
controlling shareholder of the Company which holds
approximately 29.17% of the issued share capital. She has not
held any directorships in the last three years in any other public
company the securities of which are listed on the securities
market in Hong Kong or overseas.
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Mr. Chan Chi Yuen, aged 50, is an executive director and chief
executive officer of the Company. Mr. Chan holds a bachelor
degree with honours in Business Administration and a master of
science degree with distinction in Corporate Governance and
Directorship. He is a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and The Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales. He is a practicing certified public
accountant and has extensive experience in financial
management, corporate development, corporate finance and
corporate governance.

Mr. Chan was appointed to the Board as an executive Director
and the chief executive officer in June 2011. He is currently an
executive director and chairman of Royal Century Resources
Holdings Limited (formerly known as Kate China Holdings Limited)
(stock code: 8125) and an executive director of e-Kong Group
Limited (stock code: 524). He is also an independent non-
executive director of Affluent Partners Holdings Limited (formerly
known as Man Sang Jewellery Holdings Limited) (stock code:
1466), Leyou Technologies Holdings Limited (stock code: 1089),
Asia Energy Logistics Group Limited (stock code: 351), China Baoli
Technologies Holdings Limited (stock code: 164), Jun Yang
Financial Holdings Limited (stock code: 397), Media Asia Group
Holdings Limited (stock code: 8075), U-RIGHT International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 627) and New Times Energy
Corporation Limited (stock code: 166). He was an executive
director of South East Group Limited (now known as China
Minsheng Drawin Technology Group Limited) (stock code: 726)
from December 2013 to July 2015, Co-Prosperity Holdings Limited
(stock code: 707) from December 2014 to October 2015, Kong
Sun Holdings Limited (stock code: 295) from February 2007 to
November 2009 and from December 2011 to September 2013,
and an independent non-executive director of China Sandi
Holdings Limited (stock code: 910) from September 2009 to July
2014.

BREBESLE - 505%  AARAAITESRITI
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Ms. Wang Yinggqian, aged 53, is an executive director of the
company. Ms. Wang holds a bachelor degree of Finance from
Renmin University of China and a qualification of intermediate
economist issued by Beijing Municipal Human Resources and
Social Security Bureau. Ms. Wang was the deputy general
manager of corporate banking department of Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China Beijing Municipal Branch from 2005 to
2006. Ms. Wang was the vice president of Bank of
Ccommunications Beijing Municipal Branch from 2010 to 2013 and
a director of Bank of Communications Financial Leasing Co., Ltd.
from 2010 to 2012. She is currently the supervisor of Fortunes
United International Leasing Co., Ltd., a company established in
the People’s Republic of China. Ms. Wang has over thirty years of
experience in the commercial banking industry and has extensive
experience in project management and financing. She has not
held any directorships in the last three years in any other public
company the securities of which are listed on the securities
market in Hong Kong or overseas.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Man Kwok Leung, aged 70, is an independent non-
executive Director and the chairman of the Nomination
Committee of the Company. He is a solicitor of the High Court of
Hong Kong and a civil celebrant of marriages. Mr. Man has
extensive experience in the legal practice and was appointed by
Xinhua News Agency as a district advisor between 1995 and
1997. He is currently a director of Apleichau Kai Fong Primary
School, the deputy chairman of Apleichau Kai Fong Welfare
Association, the secretary of Apleichau Promotion of Tourism
Association and the honorary legal advisor of Junior Police
Officers’ Association. Mr. Man is not related to any directors,
senior management or substantial or controlling shareholders of
the Company.

Mr. Man is currently an independent non-executive director of
DeTai New Energy Group Limited (stock code: 559). He was an
independent non-executive director of Kong Sun Holdings Limited
(stock code: 295) from June 2009 to September 2014 and
KuangChi Science Limited (stock code: 439) from May 2008 to
August 2014.
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Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter, aged 66, is an independent non-
executive Director and the chairman of the Remuneration
committee of the Company. He has over 28 years of experience
in real estate and financial services industries. Mr. Yu has a
Bachelor Degree in Management from Youngstown State
University in Ohio, the United States and a Master of Science
Degree in Financial Services from American College in
Pennsylvania, the United States. Mr. Yu is a member of the
Certified Commercial Investment Member Institute and was the
first Chinese-American elected to the board of the San Francisco
Association of Realtors. Mr. Yu worked in Pacific Union Real
Estate Company in the United States between 1980 and 1995 and
held senior positions in MetLife and New York Life Insurance
Company in managing Asian customers in North America. Mr. Yu
is not related to any directors, senior management or substantial
or controlling shareholders the Company.

Mr. Yu is currently an executive director of Far East Holdings
International Limited (stock code: 36) and an independent non-
executive director of China Sandi Holdings Limited (stock code:
910). He was an executive director of Kong Sun Holdings Limited
(stock code: 295) from August 2008 to September 2014 and an
independent non-executive director of GET Holdings Limited
(stock code: 8100) from July 2010 to January 2014 and Kingston
Financial Group Limited (stock code: 1031) from September 2008
to September 2016.

Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth, aged 48, is an independent non-
executive Director and the chairman of the Audit Committee of
the Company. He has over 20 years of experience in accounting
and financial control area. He holds a Bachelor of Accountancy
Degree from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University and is a fellow
member of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in
the United Kingdom, an associate member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, The Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators in the United Kingdom. Mr. Chi is
not related to any directors, senior management or substantial or
controlling shareholders of the Company.
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Mr. Chi is currently an executive director of DeTai New Energy
Group Limited (stock code: 559) and an independent non-
executive director of Perfect Shape Beauty Technology Limited
(stock code: 1830) and L'sea Resources International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 195). He was an executive director of
Ceneric (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 542) from October 2010
to June 2017, e-Kong Group Limited (stock code: 524) from
September 2014 to July 2015, GET Holdings Limited (stock code:
8100) from July 2010 to June 2014, a non-executive director of
China Sandi Holdings Limited (stock code: 910) from January 2015
to August 2015 (redesignated from executive director with effect
from 31 January 2015) and an independent non-executive
director of Hong Kong Life Sciences and Technologies Group
Limited (stock code: 8085) from January 2010 to August 2015,
Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited (stock code: 8148) from
March 2010 to October 2015 and Silk Road Energy Services Group
Limited (stock code: 8250) from December 2011 to November
2015.

Senior Management

Ms. Chan Wai Fung, aged 35, is a company secretary and
financial manager of the Company. Ms. Chan holds a bachelor
degree of Accountancy from University of South Australia. She is
an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. She has extensive experiences in auditing,
accounting, financing and company secretarial matter. She joined
the Group since June 2011.

Ms. Li Yue, aged 29, is a finance manager of the Company. Ms.
Li has a bachelor degree in Business Management (Accounting)
from Jilin University of Finance and Economics and she has the
certificate of accounting profession issued by Finance
Commission of Shenzhen Municipality. She has over 5 years of
experience in banking industry. She joined the Group since July
2015.

Mr. Zhou Dezhao, aged 39, is a general manager of the Group'’s
finance leasing department. He has a Master degree of Business
Administration from University of Northern Virginia and a
bachelor degree in Finance from Sun Yat-Sen University. He has
over 15 years of experience in banking industry. He had worked
in several banks as a general manager in business department or
business development department before joining the Group. He
joined the Group since October 2015.
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Mr. Fan Guocheng, aged 50, is a financial controller of the
Group PRC division. Mr. Fan graduated from Guangdong
University of Finance and Economics and he has the certificate of
accounting profession issued by Finance Commission of
Shenzhen Municipality. He has over 25 years of experience in
accounting and financial management. He was an accounting
supervisor and financial controller in several companies before
joining the Group. He joined the Group since October 2015.

One of the senior management who is the general manager of
the Group finance leasing department has been resigned in
November 2015.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year ended 31 March 2017.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, approximately 90% (2016: 98%) and 56% (2016:
79%) of the Group's turnover was attributable to the five largest
customers and the largest customer respectively.

During the year, approximately 86% (2016: 67%) and 33% (2016:
26%) of the Group's purchases were attributable to the five
largest suppliers and the largest supplier respectively.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had an interest in the major
suppliers or customers above at any time during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the laws of
Bermuda or the Company’s bye-laws, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

SEEIWM L E 505 AASEBEF R HFA
B BRALERERNEREUEEMR ﬁﬁﬁ%
N REEGEEMNS A NEERF -LE
EHEBBFEI AV IEEELER - HMA
REBR - FERZHEAREESHEE R
EHEEZRG - TR T —HF+AMARE
°

MEBAR  ERAKERENE
—T-RFt+— AR

EEEYN

BRERALHN  RBE-T—LF= ﬁ +-—
EiigmﬁﬁﬁijﬁﬁﬁM$ 2H%
Eﬁéﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁZ%ﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁﬁZé%o

FEXFRMER

RER  AEBRAARFEEEARFPDBIEAR
SEEETFHNO(ZZT—NF : 98%) & 56%
(ZZ—RF 1 79%) °

RER - REBAREER REAHERS B
RAREBREELIO ( —T—RF  67%) &%
#)33% (ZZE—74F 1 26%) °

BEREE 5 WA T TR (G E
AR AR A B BITRAS% R 2 A
) REREREGER LR BREARES
RS o

BrRBEEE

S AT ONS PN E L Thi: 320 S
BEMBE X - MEADAERLIIAR
BRRBEHRL -



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
A

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to bye-law 168(1) of the Company’s Bye-laws, every
director or other officer of the Company shall be entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses
or liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in or about the
execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation
thereto, and no Director or other officer shall be liable for any
loss, damages or misfortune which may happen to or be incurred
by the Company in the execution of the duties of his/her office or
in relation thereto, provided that the Bye-laws shall only have
effect in so far as its provisions are not avoided by the Bermuda
Companies Act. The Company and its listed subsidiary have
maintained Directors and officers liability insurance during the
year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

To the best knowledge of the Directors, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company'’s shares during the year ended 31 March 2017.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications, experience and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.

PENSION SCHEME ARRANGEMENTS

The Company and its subsidiaries operating in Hong Kong are
required to participate in a contribution retirement scheme of the
Group set up in accordance with the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the Laws of
Hong Kong). Under the scheme, employees are required to
contribute 5% of their monthly salaries up to a maximum of
HK$1,500 per month and they may choose to make additional
contributions. The employer’s monthly contribution is at the rate
of 5% of each employee’s monthly salary up to the maximum
limit of HK$1,500 per month.

Subsidiaries operating in the PRC are required to participate in
contribution retirement schemes organised by the relevant local
government authorities since incorporation.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set
out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 22 to 41 of this
annual report.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has complied with the sufficiency of public float
requirement under the Listing Rules at any time during the year
and as at the date of this report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period on 14 June 2017,
the Group entered into a memorandum of understanding (the
“MQOU 2") with an independent third party (the “Vendor 2").
Pursuant to the MOU 2, the Group may acquire 100% equity
interest of a company and its subsidiaries (the "Possible
Acquisition 2“), which is principally engaged in equity investment
funds management, equity investment and asset management in
the PRC.

The consideration for the Possible Acquisition 2 will be subject to
further negotiation between the Group and the Vendor 2 and is
expected to be satisfied by way of cash, allotment and issue of
the Company’s new shares and/or the issue of convertible bonds
carrying rights to convert into the Company’s new shares, or a
combination of any of the above means or by any other kind of
consideration.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee, comprising three independent non-
executive directors, has reviewed the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year, the Group has complied with the relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the operations
of the Group.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by Lau
& Au Yeung C.P.A. Limited who retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board
Zheng Juhua
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 June 2017

REZDRBRE
REFAREEZAMANREEERD - R
FEREASHRNARSE DS  AAAEET
ERRAZTRDABHRERE -

REHRER
RIFERARBE_T—FA+TIHA » AR
AE—BYE=F (B —HmEE
S (BT ]) RESBERSE_ -
AARE AN EE — I EERNP RN ERERE
HeETE RELENEETEERZARR
E B AR Z100% /% A ([ AT s BE £ 18
=]

AREEER_CREAFAKERE T —#
—HER - YRHKESURE EERERET
AR BV B,/ S B 1T A i A AT S R AR
RAEFRD 2 IR ESF XN - SEE Ll E
AR - HRBEMEMABLR -

BREEG
BRZARH=EBVHATESAR BF
PR BA AR BT RE -

BpIRRRIER
RER  FEBERTHAEBLBEEAY

B EBAENRIEM

B BN
RAMBBRROEIBRBEHAERAERA
AE L - ERERER Y AR -

RERE=S
I
]

e —T—tFXRA-TN\R



INDEPENDENT
AUDITOR’S REPORT

488 A 4 Vol it



NOBLE CENTURY INVESTMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED o {“Ini& &1 AR A Al

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

188 S b 4t o

LAU B R B G w1 Rl 2 T A R 2
INOR'4D O\ (E€W| LAU & AU YEUNG C.P.A. LIMITED

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
NOBLE CENTURY INVESTMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Noble
Century Investment Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 83 to 182,
which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March
2017, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 March 2017, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“"HKSAS") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

21/F, Tai Yau Building
181 Johnson Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our

PARESNSER
REGEE ST IR RAR B T B R

BERMNER -

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as

follows:

o Goodwill impairment assessment

o Accounting for business combination

o Recoverability of trade and loan receivables

Key Audit Matter
BEEGSE

BMEET T ER S ET FEMA T

o EEBERE
s EBAHMEFEE
o BRI ERER I E T

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BN EA NARERREN SR

ARG EMBRENETRA/EENER -5
LREITERMBABBEAMBRRELA
BRRETEREN - RATSHZFFHER

Goodwill impairment assessment
[k AT

Refer to note 4(d), note 16 and note 32(i) and (ii) to the
consolidated financial statements.
BRHGEPEIRERIM A « B 5E16 LA K B 5 32()
R (ji)

As a result of the acquisitions of finance leasing
business in prior years and the acquisitions of trading
business during the year, the Group recognized
goodwill arising from business combinations amounted
to HK$1,000,000 and HK$1,074,000 respectively.
HEBTFEREREHEEBRRNFAREES X
% BEEEDHBERNE O EEE £ HRE 1,000,000
7570 K% 1,074,000 7T °

Management assessed goodwill for potential
impairment as at 31 March 2017 by comparing the
carrying amount of the each cash-generating unit to
which goodwill has been allocated with the recoverable
amount determined by assessing the value-in-use by
preparing a discounted cash flow forecast.

EREEBEIFREN T —+tF=ZA=+—HRGH
RETRER 2 ERENHeEEEMER
BEEAAKOSEARRRSRIEGEEITHER -

Our audit procedures in relation to the impairment

assessment of goodwill included:
BMEARNERETENEIEFBE

o We evaluated and challenged the process by which
the management’s future cash flow forecasts and

impairment assessment was prepared.

o  RMHERERRANRSRERALBENED

BIELE R S IR E AR -

o We assessed the appropriateness of the key
assumptions including revenue growth rate, gross

profit margin and discount rate.

s HBMTBEARR(BREKEERE  EMELK

BE)NABERE -

o We carried out sensitivity analysis to assess the
impact of reasonable possible changes in key
assumptions such as the revenue growth rate and

discount rate on the value-in-use calculations.

o HMETHREIMUFGKEERXLEREER
AEENBRREEEARKHASEALESHOF

28 .
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Key Audit Matter
BRETSE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BANETNAEERREEE

We focused on this area due to the management’s
assessment of the value-in-use of each cash-generating
unit involved significant judgements and estimates
about the future results of the businesses, the revenue
growth rate within the forecast period, gross profit
margin and discount rates applied to the future cash
flow forecasts.

ZMEINLERE  REAAERENHEREEAS
UHFEREBEY REYEBRKRESR  BAHR KR
BRE - ENERLARKRKBESRETB AT XRE
8B K BT e (5T o

Accounting for business combination
EBEHNETEE

Refer to note 32(iii) to the consolidated financial
statements.
B2 A BTSRRI T 32(0) -

During the year, the Group acquired a trading business
at a consideration of RMB150 million by way of capital
injection into the subsidiary pursuant to the capital
increase agreement. The management considered that
the acquisition constituted a business combination.
FRN - BEEERBEEHZ  ERARMEBRAFNIEN
AR E AR 150,000,000 T EE—HE 5 %75 ©
BEEERRZBIBEREBEH -

Further, the consideration for the acquisition included
contingent consideration receivable (profit guarantee
provided by the vendor) and an embedded redemption
option (put option) to sell back the equity interests to
the vendor as specified in the capital increase
agreement. Such contingent consideration receivable
and redemption option were measured at fair values on
initial recognition and as at 31 March 2017.

UEoN - R R (B B IEIE & &5 A RIS ANRE
(BAE A REENRE) RRES & ERERN R AR
[B] B fE (FRUG BA%E) - B8 ME U Sk AR (B % i o] HR #E
TP BRERRZZE—+tF=H=1T—BZAAE

=
=

We checked the mathematical accuracy of the value
in use calculation in the management’s impairment
assessment.
BMBEBEEERETHFOFERABENEENH
BRI o

We agreed the input data to supporting evidence
such as approved budgets and considered the
reasonableness of these budgets.

BATREMEE (Blangs it BB E) NE ABBRIT Z &
BHAEENSEN -

Our audit procedures in relation to this area included:
ZMEHLSEENETIZEFEE

We reviewed the capital increase agreement and
interpretation memorandum, and considered and
challenged the management’s assessment of the
appropriate accounting treatment of the acquisition.
BMERILEmELEEETE  TEEREREE
BERRZWEREAEBED -

We have also considered the adequacy of the
Group's disclosure in respect of the acquisitions in
note 32(iii) to the consolidated financial statements.
BMMER BEBRGRE B R ER M & 32i) Bt
EH BB EENHEE

We assessed the independency and competency of
the external valuation specialist appointed by the
Group to calculate the fair value of the contingent
consideration receivable and redemption option.
LMy BESEMZEUTERKSARERE
EHEARERIMNEEESROE LS D RER -

We assessed the accuracy and relevance of the
input data provided by the management to the
external valuation specialist by challenging and
reconciling the input data to supporting evidence
such as market data.

BAME IR E B FE O AR (Pl ISEE) RIE
AR - STEEEERHTINEHEZRNE AR
BREREM R AEEE

We assessed the appropriateness of the key
assumptions including revenue growth rate, net
profit margin and discount rate.

TR AR (F e & 2 JFF) X K AL
WER)HE @ -
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Key Audit Matter
BRETSE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BANETNAEERREEE

We focused on this area because accounting for
business combination requires the identification and
valuation of identifiable assets and liabilities acquired,
which involve significant judgements, assumptions and
estimates.
BMEITRHEBE T ENEBEHNRTEETER
AFHEMNEERBENETHE  ERFRERAE
R S A5t o

Recoverability of trade and loan receivables
FE U AR o 2 P L R T L [

Refer to note 20 and note 23 to the consolidated
financial statements
E2MERE SRR M TE 20 &5k 23

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had trade and loan
receivables of HK$422 million and HK$112 million
respectively. Trade receivables of the Group comprise
mainly receivables from trading business. Loan
receivables of the Group comprise mainly receivables
from money lending business.

R-ZE—tF=A=+—H  SESENERERLE
W& 5l /422,000,000 7T % 112,000,000 7T &
SENERURERTERBRESEGNREREFIE . &
SENRUREREZBREEEEBREIGIR

We carried out sensitivity analysis to assess the
impact of reasonable possible changes in key
assumptions such as the revenue growth rate and
discount rate.
BIETHRED M AT RS E R ERAR RE
BEABRERERSBARZEESNTE -

Our audit procedures in relation to the recoverability of
trade and loan receivables included:
BME AR RERER TR E B IRF 2

We tested the accuracy of aging of trade and loan
receivables on a sample basis.
F AP AR 558 K R R % B MR TR B S ) RN ©

We obtained understanding on the management’s
basis and assessment in relation to the
recoverability of trade and loan receivables.
BAVERE IR E A W WER S R B E FmT Y a1
B I ST o

We verified the balances of trade and loan
receivables by request and received of
confirmations on a sample basis.

BAEB MR RIVNEE WA K - BE BUER R R
FEW S R A5 ER o
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Key Audit Matter
BRETSE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BANETNAEERREEE

Management assessed the recoverability of trade and
loan receivables, in particular of certain trade and loan
receivables that were past due but not impaired as at
31 March 2017, by reviewing customers’ aging profile,
credit history and status of subsequent settlement, and
determine whether an impairment is made.

EREERBEHRPMNERRMAS FELEIERE
TGRS AT M AR R R B E R AT B iR E (L EE
FRZZE—EF=A=+—HEBHAERRBEEY
R REWERR) - WER G IELRIE

We focused on this area due to the amounts are
significant and the identification of doubtful debts
requires significant management judgement and
assumptions, including the credit risks of customers.

BMEIREBETHERNEHEEEBEEAR - BEAR
REEEAEREMERERR  BREEPONEERR -

We discussed the status and potential exposures in
respect of the litigation and claims against with
debtor with the Group’s external legal advisor, if
any.

BfE EEREIMNOEEEEFmEERSARLF
AR R REIA N BB R R (InF) ©

We evaluated management’s assessment on the
recoverability of the amount due from individual
debtors with significant balances past due but not
impaired by:

BATRTAZ B TR B e W (E 5 & 75 A BRI mT U [Bl 1 v
HEEHE - BAFIES REBRERRENERES
BR - JER

. Examining the subsequent settlement from
these individual debtors on a sample basis.
o HEEMZEENEFANEEEE -

. Critically challenging management’s
assessment of the recoverability of those
individual debtors with little settlement
subseguent to the end of the reporting period.

s NEEEUREHREEIEERNERE
7% A BRI Y BI 1 VR A A T R SR B i o

° For those individual debtors with little and no
subseguent settlement, analyzing the Group's
business relation with them and their payment
history.

e  HEHAEHAEIEHAEBERNBRIES
AT BESEERBESNEBERRES
RIS SRAC 8% ©

o Evaluating the historical accuracy of the
allowance estimation by management by
comparing historical allowance made to the
actual settlement and actual loss incurred.

s FBBLNBBEMELBERABRENRME
FEREBBLER  THEEERATIELEE
fEETHY RN o
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all the information
included in the Group’s 2017 annual report, but does not include
the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

Hit 55

BERREEAHEMEEAR - HLEERER
T EEBANMERS  ETEREGEM
BmR MR PR BERE

BHAEGEEMBHRRNERL MREEME
B o R HZFEMEREREMP A

A e =
EECEMEGR ©

BERMLREPBEREMEFS - RANEET
EHEEMER  FULBET  TEEMES
EREEAMBRRIBRMEETBEST T
BN FEEREELEUFFHEERERR
AR - ZERIEMID AT TIE - R
RBEMESRBRBEAHERRL - HFIHER
ERFE -HESHE  BORAEARE -

EENFFEZEERGREMBEHRE
ARENEE

BERAREFARRREEAGMAGRMH
(BB BHHREEL) RBBC(RRED)HIHK
BRETREREMTENGAMBEE LY
HRBREZREUHRROBRBE T FEHRER
FF Sk BR RR M B 2R /0 B K #5 SRR AL P 75 O PO BB 42
HRE -

B EL LGS - WAEER BN T 5% E s
BREBANER  URERFHBELERGRT
i RIFEFAEL BEEEBRIFLE
2 FRIEAMERNERTER -

ERAGAMBHRRE  EFAHNE &
F

ZZBRARARE BEENUH@RER

o
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AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAS will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAS, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

BB E R S M |RAEN

BfE

BANBEE  RHGRAMBRABERETF
FEF PO EREF 3 B AR T 8 B0 BB A8 SR BB AR
BERE - XHABERME R A XA &
FeoHfER BTERER)ZRAREZE
1981 F(RAPE) BOMBEHMERMNER - B
Sz INARIRERIBEA B H) - RAITE AR
ENARMEMEMALTE FABEERNE
£

BERBERKFORE  BIERBRR
(BABEADETHET  EX—EXRER
BRI TF R 4R AL 3 IR - SERRIRIM AT A EREF 3
fHaR ol - RS EFAME M BB EARR
ARERF BRAM B MR ERBRBERA MR
RFTEHEEIRTE - B BE A0 55 R PR a2 AT 4%
BIEEKX -

AR ECE B BEER) R TE S 0BT -
RIVER T LA R5 T TRERD
B o BT

(\\y

o BERRFHERRKEFRBERMERSEE
MBBREFEERERBANORER - R
St RENITEETZ P AR EE L @R - LA
RESTRRMEENERTRE  ERHK
PIERMER - AN LSRR
BRARESZ L Hit ReEHBRRAKR
FRIECE GUED N EE SR AN S
REHBRBRMEMEAHRRAMNE

LA
oo
AR

o

o THREZFMHEMOAMES - URETE
ENEEF BEEMLFY E5H
HAEHEHIN AR HRER -

s EEFMRAETERRNBEERE
HEFHEFT AR EN SN -
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

BB E RS M |RAEN

B

s HEERAFELESHTERNBEMN
TR o IRIBPIEMAERE
ERAFEEFHIBEREHENEAT
BEM EMARERY BERBENE
BREENEEERRE - WREMA
REEEATHEEN  AABEERH
B s IRFBEREIERAVBEHRER
FERENE BEEHEORETR
AIRPEERRIFEREER - LA
i BN BE SR E A LU E
AHERE o A RERFEKBER LS
B BERETRESELE -

s HERAMBHRIRNEBINHmSIN &
BNAS  BREEKE  URGEUMBR
REBHEHRRZHNEIE -

e 3 BERENERIEHKIDHMBE
BERBRRE EENENRE UEY
RAEMBRRERER - RMAE &
SEEFNGR  EBMAT - BHAR
B RRRERAEE-

FREMFRIN  HMEBESZRE QBB T
METHE  KRERE BEAFAERS B
TR PIFEERT P 8 A BRI S M R B AR
B o

BRERAEZZESRIEN - SARMERN
ERBBEIIENERERBIEER YRGB
BBBAESENKR/EFERFIEILIEN
FAIBERREMEMEIR  UREERNERLT
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AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Lau & Au Yeung C.P.A. Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Franklin Lau Shiu Wai

Practising Certificate number: P01886

Hong Kong, 28 June 2017

BB E RS M |RAEN

B

felEERZZESABNEAD - HIIREEDRL
SHHARG AV BHRERNEARRER
B RRE IR - TAEZBEN RS T
MIELFIR - BRIDERER AN RFERES
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Aok 17 45 2 B U 2 i 4 3%

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z=—F—+F=HA=+—HILF/Z

2017 2016
—E—tF —ZT—RF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5T FET FHIT
Revenue WA 5 2,137,192 1,373,585
Cost of sales SHE KA 8 (2,091,279) (1,354,488)
Gross profit S| 45,913 19,097
Other income H A A 7 1,669 516
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary i — IR B A Al iz 33 - 835
Gain on bargain purchase E BB E 32 6,263 -
(Loss)/Gain on changes in fair value FH{EEBEREANE
of held-for-trading investments 28 (E8), W (10,860) 5,540
Loss on changes in fair value of HiheMEELANE
other financial asset )& 17 (2,598) =
Impairment loss on property, plant — #% - BB LB #E 2
and equipment BEEE - (9,652)
Impairment loss on other receivable  E fb & Ys 7R (E B 18 (9,229) (1,216)
Impairment loss on goodwill HEREERE 16 (1,074) -
Administrative expenses THER 8 (40,850) (30,292)
Operating loss K ESIE (10,766) (15,172)
Finance costs ¥ %N 9 (1,412) (720)
Loss before taxation MREL AT ETE (12,178) (15,892)
Taxation charge M\ 10 (6,880) (2,680)

Loss for the year AEFEE (19,058) (18,572)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Aok 17 45 2 B U 2 i 4 3%

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z=—F—+F=HA=+—HILF/Z

2017 2016
—E—+t5F A
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt aE FET FETT
Other comprehensive income: Hih 2wz :
Items that may be reclassified PEE Al REEFT S HEE
subsequently to profit or [0Ss: Bmh)EE -
— Exchange differences arisingon  — & = 4 HfE =58
translation (31,736) (14,186)
Total comprehensive l0ss FEHEZHEE
for the year (50,794) (32,758)
(Loss)/Profit for the year UTATRIEEE
attributable to: (E518), &7 -
Owners of the Company PIN/NEIESY SN (17,693) (18,754)
Non-controlling interests IEE R R = (1,365) 182
Loss for the year REEEE (19,058) (18,572)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income AR A+ E{HFE
for the year attributable to: mrmE (EE), IRE
Owners of the Company VIN/NETEE =N (49,238) (32,827)
Non-controlling interests IEIE R (1,556) 69
Total comprehensive loss FEREEEBE
for the year (50,794) (32,758)
Restated
gl
Basic and diluted losses BREXRES HK (0.48) cents  HK (0.82) cents
per share [ 12 (0.48) &1l (0.82) 7Bl

The notes on pages 89 to 182 form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 83 to 182 were
approved by the Board of Directors on 28 June 2017 and were

signed on its behalf.

HEFREMBEREBTHNEIE182HZHW

HNEBERAZEEMBRREN-F
—tFRAZT \HEETSRAEURER

%o
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2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5T FET FHIT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Yz - RAE AN 14 103,108 132,315
Investment property TEYE 15 11,400 =
Goodwill (EES 16 1,000 1,000
Other financial asset EemEE 17 3,125
Finance lease payment receivables FElE AR E kI8 18 84,576 70,322
Loan receivables FEWE R 23 27,736 441
230,945 204,078
Current assets REEE
Inventories =& 19 12,423 668
Trade receivables FEU AR K 20 421,749 22,790
Bills receivable FEWEIR - 62,369
Deposits, prepayments and B ENFER
other receivables H b e U I8 21 126,215 285,406
Other financial asset HMorEE 17 540
Held-for-trading investments BIEEERE 22 64,100 61,955
Finance lease payment receivables JE U & A & 5008 18 73,956 13,639
Loan receivables R E R 23 84,510 5,133
Tax recoverable FEURER 5K 246 -
Restricted bank deposits SRR HERI TR 25 40,935 -
Cash and bank balances Re NIRITET 24 98,144 499,817
922,818 951,777
Total assets EEHE 1,153,763 1,155,855
EQUITY R
Capital and reserves EARR &
Share capital [N 26 73,612 73,612
Reserves E & 754,181 804,073
Total equity attributable to PIN/NEIESY PN
owners of the Company 827,793 877,685
Non-controlling interests eI R 17,254 87
Total equity A 845,047 877,772
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

wr B B R

Asat31March2017 R-ZE—+F=HA=+—H

2017 2016
—EB—+tHF —E—RF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
M5 F&T TFET
LIABILITIES =L
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables FE{SER TR 27 213,701 5,208
Bills payables N 40,935 -
Accruals, other payables and EEtER - EiEA
deposit received REMEWIZS 28 38,903 159,518
Amount due to a director B —REEFIE 29 6,210 39,482
Amount due to non-controlling FEAS FEIRE AR i 25 FRIR
interests 30 1,688 8,020
Tax payables P18 7.279 3,487
Bank borrowing, secured IRITEE - BHEA 31 - 62,368
Total liabilittes e 308716 278,083
Total equity and liabilities EEkEEAE 1,153,763 1,155,855
Net current assets hBEEFHE 614,102 673,694
Total assets less current liabilities EEZAERABEE 845,047 877,772
Zheng Juhua Chan Chi Yuen
[=1E P A BRE&E
Director Director
EE 2
The notes on pages 89 to 182 form an integral part of these It E4RAMERERB SEHNE I E 182 B Z it

consolidated financial statements. e
The consolidated financial statements on pages 83 to 182 were
approved by the Board of Directors on 28 June 2017 and were

signed on its behalf. o

HNEBEIRNAZERS
—tFRAZT \HEEZTSRAURER

FERREN-Z
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
bR 52 W) o

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z=—F—+F=HA=+—HILF/Z

Attributable to owners of the Company Attributable to non-controlling interests
FATREARE FERERER
Share-
based
Retained compensation
eamings/ reserve  Share of net
(Accumulated HRAREE assets of
Share Share  Contributed  Exchange Surplus losses) ZHERE  subsidiaries
capital premium surplus reserve reseve  REEH/ Sub-total HKS000  EEEHEAR Sub-total Total
B& RBER R4EH ERfRRE BROR  (RiER) gt TER FRE gt st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 (Note) HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tikn Tikn Tin Tikn Tikn Fin Fin (M) Tikn Fir Tin
A1 April 2015 R=F-1%MmA-A 33,760 140,355 3,178 (1,645) = 8,697 215345 22 18 20 215625
Comprehensive loss 2EFE
Loss for the year TEEEE = = = = = (18754) (18754) = 182 18 (18572)
Other comprehensive income R2EHA
Exchange difference on transiation of BB ERIBERRL
financia! statements of foreign EXER
Operations - - - (14,073) - - (14,073) - 113 113 (14,186)
Lapse of equity-settled share- MRHBEEZ %R
based payment - - - - - 262 262 (260) - (260) -
Transactions with owners HEAAZRS
Placing of new shares RETRA 39852 665,368 - - - - 705220 - - - 705,220
Transaction costs attributable fo ssue BIHRABERFRA
of new sfiares = (10315) = = = = (1031) = = = (10315)
At31 March 2016 W=E-7E=f=1-A 73412 795,408 B8 (15,718) = (9,799) 877,685 = 87 87 871,112
A1 April 2016 W-E-AFMA-A 73612 795,408 4178 (15,718) = (9,795) 877,685 - 87 87 871,112 8 7
Comprehensive loss k3] i}
Loss for the year TEEER - - - - - (17699 (17699 - 1365) 1365) (19,058)
Other comprehensive income Eb2ERA
Exchange difference on transiation of BERNEBHBRR
financialstatements of foreign operations Eiz8 = = = (31,545) - - (31,545) - (191) (191) (3173
Transactions with owners HEEAZRS
Acquisition of subsidiaries WeEHBAA = = = = = = = = 1181 1181 1181
Difference between the consideration paid R — e e s
and the portion of the non-controling “FHBAAZBH
interests arising rom acquisition of ERMEEZERRE
partial equiy interest n a subsidiary from RS EE
a non-controling sharefolder - - - (359) - (296) (654) - 63 63 17
Eouity nterest in a subsidiary acquired from 48— Jem Al B
anon-controling sharefolder R-FHELR B = = = = = = = = 697 697 697
Contribution from non-controling interest FEERTE - - - - - - - - 6908 6908 6908
Transfer to statutory reserve B\ERRE = = = = 1001 (1,001) = = = = =
At 31 March 2017 RZE-t5=A=1-R 73612 795,408 34,178 (47.621) 1,001 (28,785) 827,793 = 17,254 17254 845,047

Note: During the year ended 31 March 2015, a subsidiary of the Company — Kis : REE—Z—HE=F=1+—BEEBHB A2
granted an option to an employee (the “Employee”) to subscribe for up Al—MEHBARTIRT —%EE (ZIEEDER
to 5% equity interest of that subsidiary at a price calculated based on BAZHBARRBRETFEACEEFEAE
the net assets value of the subsidiary as at the date the option is T E 2 BAR KRBT A Z M B A 7 5% R A
exercised. The option is vested on 1 October 2015 and is exercisable o RREBR_Z—AF+ A —BEBRA
up to the termination of services of the employee to the subsidiary. As TEEZEERIERERZMB AT - ARZIE
the Employee resigned during the year ended 31 March 2016, thus the BREE-ZT—"F=-A=+—HILLFEHAED
option lapsed. BHE - FEULRERIER KR -

The notes on pages 89 to 182 form an integral part of these ISR EMBRERESHNEIE 1828 2/t

consolidated financial statements. it e
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

A Bl e R

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z=—F—+F=HA=+—HILFZ

2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE-RF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
hE=s F#&T FETT
Cash flows from operating activities F& EERESRE
Cash used in operations REXBFAER 35(a) (205,113) (301,953)
Profit tax paid EXFEH (3,233) =
Net cash used in operating activities &&ZBARLFR (208346) | (301,953)
Cash flows from investing activities R&EEEREHKE
Purchase of held-for-trading BERIEEERE
investments (13,005) (22,515)
Purchase of property, plant and A « REREN
equipment (6,303) (84,490)
Purchase of investment property BAKEME (11,688) -
Net cash outflow on disposal HE—FNBARZ
of a subsidiary e m i F5E - (35)
Net cash outflow on acquisition WM B AR Z
of subsidiaries REMm I FE (724) =
Placement of restricted bank deposits FAZBRAIERITER (40,935) -
Interest received BRI B 547 196
Dividend received B AR E - 320
Net cash used in investing RETEFTARESTE
_ activites (72,708) | (106,524)
Cash flows from financing activities BEFZEHREHRE
Interest paid EAFE (1,412) (720)
Proceeds from placing of new shares == %ﬁﬂxfﬁﬁﬁ’%%’&lﬁ 705,220
Shares issue costs fo’\i—%ﬁﬁﬁzzli - (10,315)
(Repayment of)/proceeds from RITERCBR),
bank borrowings Frf8 5038 (64,206) 62,368
(Decrease)/increase in amount e — %i%m
due to a director CRLA), /124N (33,272) 39,461
Decrease in amount due to a FEAST IEPERR M 2R SRR
non-controlling interest A (4,628) -
Capital contribution from non- FEEIRERIT R
controlling interests 6,908 7,840
Net cash (used in)/generated from @& ;ES (FrH), Frg
_financing activites Re®® (96,6100 803,854
Net (decrease)/increase in cash iﬁﬁﬁiﬂﬁé’f{ﬁlﬁ =]
and cash equivalents W) hnEsE (377,064) 395,377
Cash and cash equivalents at i%ﬂzfﬁi KRE
beginning of the year £EEE 499,817 118,659
Effect of foreign exchange EESE) 8 55
rate changes, net (24,609) (14,219)
Cash and cash equivalents at end ERAZEERRS
of the year £EER 24 98,144 499,817
The notes on pages 89 to 182 are an integral part of these HZE&H4E BEHFHNESIE 1828 2 i

consolidated financial statements. i o
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Noble Century Investment Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda and listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The Company’s registered office is located at Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton Il, Bermuda. The principal
place of business in Hong Kong is situated at Suite 2202,
22/F, China Resources Building, 26 Harbour Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”)
are principally engaged in vessel chartering, trading, money
lending and finance leasing.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for
issue by the Board of Directors on 28 June 2017.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)
and the applicable disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). These
consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for investment property, held-for-trading investments
and other financial asset, which have been measured
at fair value.

—RER
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RRBREAMKLZERAF @ R
BEBBERSGBRAT (B E
REmme NAQaEMM#ESEUR
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton I, Bermuda - £ & BT B & %
HBEAE BT B EE 2657 E R RNE 22
2202 %E o

RRABETEXBRREER - AR R
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R BIEBIN  ZFREPHRERNAE
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESTHE#ME @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 mBEEEE)
The preparation of consolidated financial statements BRNEEBYBERELEL 26
in conformity with HKFRSSs requires the use of certain SRR EEEAE TEES G
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management B NEEEEERNERAEE Y
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying S RBRERITEEHE - PR
the Group's accounting policies. The areas involving a SEH S ER I &iE - S &
higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas RSP RBERBRRMGEE
where assumptions and estimates are significant to ZEENHI AT -
the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
Note 4.
(@) New and amended standards adopted by (@) HNEECHEAZIHITIREZE
the Group: TR :
The following new standards and amendments REE DA TG & T £ A
to standards are mandatory for the Group and NMEERZEFTR 2T —~
have been adopted by the Group for the FNA—BRBRZTRFE
financial year beginning 1 April 2016: BRI ANEE A ¢
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and Investment Entities: Applying the EAUBREENE0S . REZE ER
HKAS 28 (Amendments) Consolidation Exception BEURREENENE  GAAEZ
REREHENESRE  MER
(fE31%)
HKFRS 11 (Amendments) Accounting for Acquisitions of BRUBRERAENS  UBHALLER
Interests in Joint Operations (B31%) LEitE
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts EAUBALEAE U  EEETER
HKAS 1 (Amendments) Disclosure Initiative BAHENZ 1R (BIR) KEHE
HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarification of Acceptable BRGHENZ 165N BETREE
(Amendments) Methods of Depreciation and BRETENS BN R&#nE
Amortisation (31%)
HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 Agriculture: Bearer Plants BRSHENZ16HR BE :ERREN
(Amendments) EAHENENG
(lE31%)
HKAS 27 (Amendments) Equity Method in Separate BRETEAR TR BUMBERL
Financial Statements (31%) B
Annual Improvements Projects  Annual Improvements EREE Bk HHREE
HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle “3-2%%
“T-mERH
LEESE
The application of these new standard and RAFERERAME] REIER]
amendments to standards in the current year RAHAREARFE R BT
has had no material impact on the Group's FEMHBEERRRRAR
financial performance and positions for the K/ S ARG BT R R Pk
current and prior years and/or on the ZBEBRERAVREALE -

disclosures set out in the consolidated financial
statements.



2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)

New and amended standards not yet
adopted

The following new, and amended standards and
interpretations have been issued but are not
effective for the financial year beginning 1 April
2016 and have not been early adopted.

HKFRS 2 (Amendments)  Classification and Measurement
of Share-hased Payment
Transactions®

HKFRS 4 (Amendments)  Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS4
Insurance Contracts®

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments®

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets

(Amendments) between an Investor and

its Associate or Joint Venture®

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?

HKFRS 15 Clarification to HKFRS 15°

HKFRS 16 Leases*

HKAS 7 (Amendments)  Disclosure Initiative’

HKAS 12 (Amendments)  Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses!

HKAS 40 (Amendments)  Transfers of Investment

Property?
Annual improvements HKFRSS
2014-2016 cycle?

Annual improvement
projects

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions

and Advance Consideration?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2017.

z Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2017 or 1 January 2018, as appropriate.

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2018.
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2019.
E Effective date to be determined.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)

New and amended standards not yet
adopted (Continued)

Management is in the process of assessing the
impact of these new standards and
amendments to standards and set out below
are the expected impact on the Group's
financial performance and position:

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” addresses the
classification, measurement and recognition of
financial assets and liabilities. The complete
version of HKFRS 9 was issued in July 2014. It
replaces the guidance in HKAS 39 that relates
to the classification and measurement of
financial instruments.

HKFRS 9 retains but simplifies the mixed
measurement model and establishes three
primary measurement categories for financial
assets: amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income and fair value through
profit or loss. The basis of classification
depends on the entity’s business model and the
contractual cash flow characteristics of the
financial asset. Investments in equity
instruments are required to be measured at fair
value with the irrevocable option at inception to
present changes in fair value in other
comprehensive income not recycling, provided
the instrument is not held for trading. If the
equity instrument is held for trading, changes in
fair value are presented in profit or loss. For
financial liabilities, there are two classification
categories: amortised cost and fair value
through profit or loss. Where non-derivative
financial liabilities are designated at fair value
through profit or loss, the changes in the fair
value due to changes in the liability’s own credit
risk are recognised in the other comprehensive
income, unless such changes in fair value
would create an accounting mismatch in profit
or loss, in which case, all fair value movements
are recognised in profit or loss. There is now a
new expected credit losses model that replaces
the incurred loss impairment model used in
HKAS 39.
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2.1
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)

New and amended standards not yet
adopted (Continued)
HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”(Continued)

HKFRS 9 relaxes the requirements for hedge
effectiveness by replacing the bright line hedge
effectiveness tests. It requires an economic
relationship between the hedged item and
hedging instrument and the “"hedged ratio” to
be the same as that used by management for
risk management purposes. Contemporaneous
documentation is still required but is different
to that currently prepared under HKAS 39.

The Group considers that there will be no
material adverse change in the credit risks in
respect of the Group’s future financial assets
and the adoption of the new expected credit
losses model under HKFRS 9 will not have
significant impact on its financial performance
and position. The standard is effective for
accounting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018. Early adoption is permitted.

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with
customers”

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with
customers” replaces the previous revenue
standards HKAS 18 “Revenue” and HKAS 11
“Construction Contracts” and the related
interpretations on revenue recognition. The
new standard is based on the principle that
revenue is recognised when control of a good
or service transfers to a customer. The standard
permits either a full retrospective or a modified
retrospective approach for the adoption.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)

New and amended standards not yet
adopted (Continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with
customers“(Continued)

Management is currently assessing the effects
of applying the new standard on the Group's
financial statements and has identified the
following areas that are likely to be affected:

o Revenue from service — the application
of HKFRS 15 may result in the identification
of separate performance obligations
which could affect the timing of the
recognition of revenue.

o Accounting for certain costs incurred in
fulfilling a contract — certain costs which
are currently expensed may need to be
recognised as an asset under HKFRS 15.

o Rights of return — HKFRS 15 requires
separate presentation on the consolidated
balance sheet of the right to recover the
goods from the customer and the refund
obligation.

At this stage, the Group is in the process to
estimate the impact of the new rules on the
Group's consolidated financial statements. The
Group will make more detailed assessments of
the impact.

HKFRS 15 is mandatory for financial years
commencing on or after 1 January 2018. At this
stage, the Group does not intend to adopt the
standard before its effective date.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)

New and amended standards not yet
adopted (Continued)
HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16 will result in almost all leases being
recognised on the consolidated balance sheet,
as the distinction between operating and
finance leases is removed. Under the new
standard, an asset (the right to use the leased
item) and a financial liability to pay rentals are
recognised. The only exceptions are short-term
and low value leases.

The accounting for lessors will not significantly
change.

The standard will affect primarily the accounting
for Group’s operating leases. As at the balance
sheet date, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of HK$5,403,000,
see note 34. However, the Group has not yet
determined to what extent these commitments
will result in the recognition of an asset and a
liability for future payments and how this will
affect the Group’s profit and classification of
cash flows.

Some of the commitments may be covered by
the exception for short-term and low value
leases and some commitments may relate to
arrangements that will not qualify as leases
under HKFRS 16.

The new standard is mandatory for financial
years commencing on or after 1 January 2019.
At this stage, the Group does not intend to
adopt the standard before its effective date.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

2.2 Subsidiaries
2.2.1Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include

the financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2017. A subsidiary is an
entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group
the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee). All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at
their acquisition date fair value, unless another
measurement basis is required by HKFRS.

(@  Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations.
The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair
values of the assets transferred, the
liabilities incurred to the former owners of
the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any
asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The Group recognises
any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis. Non-controlling interests in the
acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the entity’'s net
assets in the event of liquidation are
measured at either fair value or the
present ownership interests’
proportionate share in the recognised
amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net
assets.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.2.1cConsolidation (Continued)

@

Business combinations (Continued)
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is remeasured to
fair value at the acquisition date, any
gains or losses arising from such re-
measurement are recognised in profit or
loss.

Any contingent consideration to be
transferred by the Group is recognised at
fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of
the contingent consideration that is
deemed to be an asset or liability is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 39 in
profit or loss or other comprehensive
income. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured,
and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and
the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If
the total of consideration transferred,
non-controlling interest recognised and
previously held interest measured is less
than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired in the case of a
bargain purchase, the difference is
recognised directly in the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.2.1cConsolidation (Continued)

@

®)

©

Business combinations (Continued)
Intra-group transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the transferred asset.
When necessary, amounts reported by
subsidiaries have been adjusted to
conform with the group’s accounting
policies.

Changes in ownership interests in
subsidiaries without change of control
Transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in loss of
control are accounted for as equity
transactions — that is, as transactions
with the owners of the subsidiary in their
capacity as owners. The difference
between fair value of any consideration
paid and the relevant share acquired of
the carrying amount of net assets of the
subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or
losses on disposals to non-controlling
interests are also recorded in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control,
any retained interest in the entity is
remeasured to its fair value at the date
when control is lost, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying
amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an
associate, joint venture or financial asset.
In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at
cost less impairment. Cost also includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving
dividends from these investments if the
dividend exceeds the total comprehensive
income of the subsidiary in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.

2.3 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating
decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as executive
directors of the Company that makes strategic
decisions.

2.4

Foreign currency translation

(@

Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of
each of the Group'’s entities are measured using
the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in HK dollars
("HK$") which is the Company'’s functional and
the Group’s presentation currency. Other
functional currency is Renminbi (“/RMB").

The Directors consider that presentation of the
consolidated financial statements in HK$ will
facilitate analysis on financial information of the
Group.
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ok 1 U5 A M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions
or valuation where the items are remeasured.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate
to borrowings and cash and cash equivalents
are presented in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income
within ‘finance income or cost’. All other foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income within ‘other
gains/(losses) — net'.

Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets and liabilities such as equities
held at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised in consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income as
part of the fair value gain or loss.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the
Group entities (none of which has the currency
of a hyper-inflationary economy) that have a
functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

— assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at the
closing exchange rate at the date of that
balance sheet;

— income and expenses for each statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not
a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at
the rate on the dates of the transactions);
and

— all resulting currency translation
differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and
translate at the closing rate. Currency translation
differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(d) Disposal of foreign operation and partial

disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of
control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, a disposal involving loss of joint
control over a joint venture that includes a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of
significant influence over an associate that
includes a foreign operation), all of the currency
translation differences accumulated in the
equity in respect of that operation attributable
to the owners of the Company are reclassified
to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not
result in the Group losing control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the
proportionate share of accumulated currency
translation differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised in
profit or loss. For all other partial disposal (that
is, reductions in the group’s ownership interest
in associates or joint ventures that do not result
in the group losing significant influence or joint
control), the proportionate share of the
accumulated exchange difference is reclassified
to profit or loss.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment. Historical cost includes expenditure that
is directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the item’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income during the financial period in which they are
incurred.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

2.5

2.6

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their costs to their residual values over the estimated
useful lives, as follows:
Property over the unexpired
period of the lease

Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Vessel 10-20 years
Leasehold improvement 3years

When a vessel is acquired, the costs of major
components which are usually replaced or renewed
at the next dry-docking are identified and depreciated
over the period to the next estimated dry-docking
date. Costs incurred on subsequent dry-docking of a
vessel are capitalised and depreciated over the
period to the next estimated dry-docking date.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
balance sheet date. The carrying amount is written
down immediately to its recoverable amounts if the
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

Gains or losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.

Investment property
Investment property is property held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment property is initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment property
is measured at its fair values. Gains or l0sses arising
from changes in the fair value of investment property
is included in profit or loss for the period in which
they arise.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

2.6

2.7

Investment property (Continued)

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries
represents the excess of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identified net assets
acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated to
each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs"), or groups
of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of
units to which the goodwill is allocated represents the
lowest level within the entity at which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes.
Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or
more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of
the CGU containing the goodwill is compared to the
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in
use and the fair value less costs of disposal. Any
impairment is recognised immediately as an expense
and is not subsequently reversed.

2 FESHBEBME#®)

2.6

2.7

REWE (&

& B EBIR TS FOR EAREER =
MET ThEGSHESIEMEZE
Was R EERRERR ©

[k
BEELRKBNEBAREMEE
RME -~ B R URE B 2 3k
ZRciE s & R M B ER K
BATRBZEAERANEEZ
RBEBLTIRNBAFEEANE
B 2817 -

RETRENR  BXRBAHEE
ZEEENREERHRHZENE G
B RIME 2 S EZ AR S EE
B((ReEELEM]) - BOERE
ERBEMAZSEAEMRRRAR
EEENMEREBETERAZR
BEER BEEARELLENE
BHEXPIEL -

BESFETREERRZ  XERF
1t 3R Sk 500 B S U T RE H BRI
BF  (FLEATEZ - REEL
BURHEEEREETKESER
fELLE - AR B AEREERSR
ARNBEBRLERAZESE £
MRENRER RS - BEET
SRME -



Annual Report 2017 ¢ — = — - F 45

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ok 1 U5 A M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

2.8

2.9

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not
subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Other assets subject to amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss
is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair
value less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each balance sheet
date.

Financial assets

(i) Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: loans and receivables and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
The classification depends on the purpose for
which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

Classification (Continued)

)

@

(b)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current
assets, except for the amounts that are
settled or expected to be settled more
than 12 months after the balance sheet
date. These are classified as non-current
assets. The Group’s loans and receivables
comprise trade receivables, bills
receivable, deposits and other receivables,
finance lease payment receivables, loan
receivables and cash and bank balances
in the consolidated balance sheet.

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or l0ss

Financial assets designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit
or loss are designated as at the date of
initial recognition and only if the criteria
under HKAS 39 are satisfied.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts
are accounted for as separate derivatives
and recorded at fair value if their
economic characteristics and risks are
not closely related to those of the host
contracts and the host contracts are not
held for trading or designated at fair value
through profit or loss. These embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in
the statement of profit or loss.
Reassessment only occurs if there is
either a change in the terms of the
contract that significantly modifies the
cash flows that would otherwise be
required or a reclassification of a financial
asset out of the fair value through profit
or loss category.

The Group'’s financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss comprise held-for-
trading investments and other financial
asset in the consolidated balance sheet.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade-date, the
date on which the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Investments are initially
recognised at fair value plus transaction costs
for all financial assets not carried at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets carried
at fair value through profit or loss are initially
recognised at fair value, and transaction cost
are expensed in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the
investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are subsequently carried at fair value.
Loans and receivables are subsequently carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of the financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss category are presented in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income in the period in
which they arise. Dividend income from
financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss is recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as part of other income when the
Group's right to receive payments is
established.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.10 Impairment of financial assets

2 FESTHE#BE#®)
210 ¢ MEEZHE

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date
whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A
financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if
there is objective evidence of impairment as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss
event (or events) has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that
the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinguency
in interest or principal payments, the probability that
they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation, and where observable data indicate
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.10 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

2 FESTHE#BE#®)
210 BB E 2 FME (F)

For loans and receivables category, the amount of
the loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the
amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income. If a loan has a floating interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is
the current effective interest rate determined under
the contract. As a practical expedient, the Group may
measure impairment on the basis of an instrument’s
fair value using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised (such as an improvement
in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the
previously recognised impairment loss is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

2.11 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for goods sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they
are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair values and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less
provision for impairment.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
2.12 Inventories

Inventories comprise (i) bunkers on board of vessels
and lubricating oil, (i) marine products and (iii) frozen
foodstuff, all are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using first-in,
first-out (FIFO) method. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less applicable variable selling expenses.
Bunkers will be used for the operation of the vessel,
therefore the bunkers are not written down to net
realisable value when the market price falls below
cost if the overall shipping activity is expected to be
profitable.

2.13 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held
at call with banks and bank overdrafts. In the
consolidated balance sheet, bank overdrafts are
shown within borrowings in current liabilities.

2.14 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of
tax, from the proceeds.

2.15 Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Trade and other
payables are classified as current liabilities if payment
is due within one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they
are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESTHE#BE#®)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.16 Borrowings 216 f8E

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or l10ss and other comprehensive income over
the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the
extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred
until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a
prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over
the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the balance
sheet date.

2.17 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

2.18 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation; and
the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions
are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even
if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one
item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESHBREME#®)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
2.18 Provisions (Continued) 2.18 &B&E (&)

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the
provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

2.19 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date in the countries where the
Company and its subsidiaries operate and generate
taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements.

However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if
they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill. The
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises
from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at
the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantially enacted by the balance
sheet date and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.19 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

2 FESTHE#BE@®)
2.19 ENEA R IEFE RS (&

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income taxes assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle
the balances on a net basis.

2.20 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods and
services in the ordinary course of the Group’s
activities. The Group recognises revenue when the
amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is
probable that future economic benefits will flow to
the entity and when specific criteria have been met.
Revenue is shown net of sales tax, returns, rebates
and discounts and after eliminating sales within the
Group.

Revenue from voyage chartering of vessel are
recognised on a percentage of completion basis.

Sale of goods is recognised on the transfer of risks
and rewards of ownership, which generally coincides
with the time when the goods are delivered to
customers and the title has passed.

Finance lease income is recognised using the
effective interest rate implicit in the lease over the
term of the lease. Contingent rent is recognised as
income in the period in which it is earned.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method.

Rental income from investment property is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease
terms.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

2.21 Employee benefits

(@

(b)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity or paternity leaves are not recognised
until the time of leave.

Retirement scheme obligations

In accordance with the rules and regulations in
the PRC, the PRC based employees of the Group
participate in various defined contribution
retirement benefit plans organised by the
relevant municipal and provincial governments
in the PRC under which the Group and the PRC
based employees are required to make monthly
contributions to these plans calculated as a
percentage of the employees’ salaries.

The municipal and provincial governments
undertake to assume the retirement benefit
obligations of all existing and future retired PRC
based employees payable under the plans
described above. Other than the monthly
contributions, the Group has no further
obligation for the payment of retirement and
other post retirement benefits of its employees.
The assets of these plans are held separately
from those of the Group in independently
administered funds managed by the PRC
government.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.21 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Retirement scheme obligations (Continued)
The Group also participates in a pension
scheme under the rules and regulations of the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance
(“MPF Scheme”), which is a defined contribution
retirement scheme for all employees in Hong
Kong. The contributions to the MPF Scheme are
based on minimum statutory contribution
requirement of 5% of eligible employees’
relevant aggregate income subject to a cap of
HK$1,500 per month. The assets of this pension
scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in independently administered funds.

The Group’s contributions to the defined
contribution retirement scheme are expensed
as incurred.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the Group before
the normal retirement date, or whenever an
employee accepts voluntary redundancy in
exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits when it is
demonstrably committed to a termination when
the entity has a detailed formal plan to terminate
the employment of current employees without
possibility of withdrawal. In the case of an offer
made to encourage voluntary redundantly the
termination benefits are measured based on
the number of employees expected to accept
the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12
months after balance sheet date are discounted
to present value.
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(c)

R REBIAE ()
AEETREBFEAES
atEI([RE &) &Hl 2
ALK - BEE2EEE
BERIEBRHFTEAKREF
2 - REFEHIERE
BiE BRBBABES% 2
RIAEHKREFL - #
KRBT H1,5008 T © %
BARSFEZEERBILE
BESHKA YHAREZ
BENHRTE °

A 8 B 1 B AR AT B
PLSN-Z TR

BE IR A
BEBENRERTHELER
R AT AN SR B A IE T 1E
BT ERZEXBERAREUE
LEARFIBS A 2 B A » AN&
B 2 1R 15 H AR R ARG LR
ez AREAGSRILE
RBEBE T 2B ERBER
B - 2T B B FRRE R
B cRILEEN &R
BEEAEXAEZBETIHA
AE - RNEERKRI12MEA A
ERBIBz BASRIRER
=0




NOBLE CENTURY INVESTMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED o {“Ini& &1 AR A Al

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ok 1 U5 A M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.21 Employee benefits (Continued)

(d)

Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

The Group operates an equity-settled share-
based compensation plan, under which the
entity receives services from employees as
consideration for equity instruments (options)
of the Group. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of
the options is recognised as an expense. The
total amount to be expensed is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options
granted. In determining the fair value of the
options granted:

° including any market performance
conditions are taken into considerations;

o excluding the impact of any service and
non-market performance vesting
conditions (for example, profitability, sales
growth targets and remaining as
employee of the entity over a specified
time period); and

o including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.21 Employee benefits (Continued)

(d)

Share-based payments (Continued)
Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions (Continued)

Non-market performance and service
conditions are included in assumptions about
the number of options that are expected to
vest. The total expense is recognised over the
vesting period, which is the period over which
all of the specified vesting conditions are to be
satisfied. At each balance sheet date, the
Company revises its estimates of the number of
options that are expected to vest based on the
non-market performance and services
conditions. It recognises the impact of the
revision of original estimates, if any, in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company
issues new shares and the proceeds received
net of any directly attributable transaction costs
are credited to share capital (nominal value)
and share premium.

The options granted by the Company over its
equity instruments to the employees of
subsidiary undertakings in the Group are
treated as a capital contribution. The fair value
of employee services received, measured by
reference to the grant date fair value, is
recognised over the vesting period as an
increase to investment in subsidiary
undertakings, with a corresponding credit to
equity in the parent entity account.

A cancellation during the vesting period (other
than a grant cancelled by forfeiture when the
vesting conditions are not satisfied) is
accounted for as an acceleration of vesting, and
therefore recognize immediately the amount
that otherwise would have been recognised for
services received over the remainder of the
vesting period.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESHBREME#®)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
2.22 Leases 2.228E

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and
risks of ownership of assets to the Group, other than
legal title, are accounted for as finance leases. At the
inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased
asset is capitalised at the present value of the
minimum lease payments and recorded together with
the obligation, excluding the interest element, to
reflect the purchase and financing. Assets held under
capitalised finance leases, including prepaid land
lease payments under finance leases, are included in
property, plant and equipment, and depreciated over
the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such
leases are charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income so as
to provide a constant periodic rate of charge over the
lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a
financing nature are accounted for as finance leases,
but are depreciated over their estimated useful lives.

When the Group is a lessor under finance leases, an
amount representing the minimum lease payment
receivables and initial direct costs is included in the
balance sheet as finance lease payment receivable.
Any unguaranteed residual value is also recognised
at the inception of the lease. The difference between
the sum of the minimum lease payment receivables,
initial direct costs, the unguaranteed residual value
and their present value is recognised as unearned
finance income. Unearned finance income is
recognised over the period of the lease using the
effective interest rate method.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESHBREME#®)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
2.22 Leases (Continued) 2.22E (&

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group
is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets,
and rentals receivable under the operating leases are
credited to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the
Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating
leases net of any incentives received from the lessor
are charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss other comprehensive income on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.

2.23 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and
Company's financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or directors, where appropriate.

2.24 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group. It can also be a
present obligation arising from past events that is not
recognised because it is not probable that outflow of
economic resources will be required or the amount
of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed
in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.
When a change in the probability of an outflow occurs
so that outflow is probable, they will then be
recognised as a provision.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 BXEREREEEERBE
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
3.1 Financial risk factors 3.1 HEERREE

The Group's major financial instruments include other
financial asset held-for-trading investments, finance
lease payment receivables, loan receivables, trade and
other receivables, bills receivable, trade deposits paid,
restricted bank deposit, cash and cash equivalents,
trade payables, bills payables, other payables, trade
deposit received, bank borrowings, amount due to the
non-controlling interests and amount due to a director.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments, include liquidity risk, credit risk,
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and price risk,
and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The Group has adopted the risk
management policies and guidelines. The board of
directors meets periodically to analyse and formulate
measures to manage the Group’s exposure to different
risks arising from the use of financial instruments.
Generally, the Group employs conservative strategies
regarding its risk management. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

(@) Liquidity risk

Cash flow forecasting is performed for each
operating entity of the Group and are
aggregated by the Group finance department.
The Group finance department monitors rolling
forecasts of the Group's liquidity requirements
to ensure it has sufficient cash to meet
operational needs while maintaining sufficient
headroom on its undrawn committed borrowing
facilities at all times so that the Group does not
breach borrowing limits or covenants (where
applicable) on any of its borrowing facilities.
Such forecasting takes into consideration the
Group’s debt financing plans, covenant
compliance, compliance with internal balance
sheet ratio targets and, if applicable external
regulatory or legal requirements.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 BXREREEEBERBE®)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 B¥EBEE#)
(@) Liquidity risk (Continued) (@) FBESEAR(E)

The table analyses the Group's financial TERBERLEERESHE
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based HHZ FIHEBEEAER 2
on the remaining period at the balance sheet TRIBEE S REMAIHAE
date to the contractual maturity date. The Ale RNFIEELTEEE L
amounts disclosed in the table are the RARIASRE °

contractual undiscounted cash flows.

Between
Less than 1and Over
1 year 5 years 5 years Total

PR1E 1E5F  5FHLE Bt
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
THRT TR TR TR

At 31 March 2017 RZT—+5F
ZR=t-H
Trade payables JEBRTX 213,701 = - 213701
Bills payables ERNERE 40,935 - - 40,935
Accruals, other payables [EET B - HAER
and deposit received FEREWIEZES 38,903 = = 38,903
Amount due to a director EN—R2EEHRE 6,210 = = 6,210
Amount due to e e 2 7RI
non-controlling interests 1,688 = = 1,688
301,437 = = 301,437
At 31 March 2016 RZT—R%F
ZA=+—H
Trade payables FEFERRR 5,208 - - 5,208
Accruals, other payables [EEER - HiER
and deposit received FEREW RS 159,518 = - 159,518
Amount due to a director EN—R2EEHE 39,482 = = 39,482
Amount due to JE I FEE R TRIR
non-controlling interest 8,020 = - 8,020
Bank borrowing, secured RITEE - HHEA 62,368 = = 62,368

274,596 = = 274,596
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to
its cash and bank balances, restricted bank
deposits, trade receivables, bills receivable,
other financial asset, finance lease payment
receivables, loan receivables, deposits and
other receivables. The Group’'s maximum
exposure to credit risk is the carrying amounts
of these financial assets.

To manage this risk, management has
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In
addition, management reviews regularly the
recoverable amount of each individual trade
receivable, loan receivables, finance lease
payment receivables and trade deposits paid to
ensure that adequate impairment provision is
made for the irrecoverable amounts.

The Group does not have any significant
exposure to any individual debtors or
counterparties.

Most of the Group's customers of finance
leasing and money lending do not have
independent rating. Before accepting any new
customer, where available at reasonable cost,
the Group prepare credit report to assess the
potential customer’s credit and defines credit
limits by customer. Credit limits of customers
are reviewed periodically. In order to minimise
the credit risk, the management of the Group
has established credit limits, credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts.

The credit risk on deposits with bank is limited
because deposits are in banks with sound
credit ratings.

3

BREREEE

ZENRBEK (&)

3.1 UBBEBEEE

(b)

EERR
AEERER S RRTE
7 RRHBETER - EK
B EKER Hom
B EREERERE -
M B - RS R E A
REMAREERR - A%
BEY 2 SASERRBZ
=S BARE Y REE -

REBEMRAR EEE—H
ERAHREF - UERAEKR
RERETHREEAGE -
s - B E E B AR AT & (A
RIREBRR - BRER &
WREHERERENES
Be 2RO - AER
REMF AR M@ S RREL B
R E R

7K 45 [ 3 4 £ 0] B 75
A FEF A AEAR
% -

REBARD “ﬂé‘%ﬁi’?&f
ENEFPHEBIER
Ao WERKARRE - K;‘%@

REMRETAHELA - R
FE®RE  FHEBEERFPZ
ERARBERFZEER

B UEHERMAXPZEER
REE - REEEERR &
SEHEEEEHIEER
B EEEHLREMEER
Fro BEREEBURETEEW
EEER -

RITFERZEERRBR
ARZSFFAERRAR
IHEER AR ZERTT °
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates. The Group was not exposed to
significant interest rate risk as at 31 March 2017
and 2016 as there was no variable interest
bearing assets or liabilities at the balance sheet
date.

Foreign currency risk

The Directors are of the opinion that almost all
of the transactions of the Group and recognised
financial assets and liabilities are denominated
in HK$, Renminbi (“RMB"), United States dollar
(“US$") and Euro (“EUR"). Given the Hong Kong
dollar is pegged to the USS$, the management
does not expect that there will be any
significant currency risk associated with such
US$ denominated balances and therefore no
sensitivity analysis is presented thereon.
Otherwise, the Group had no material exposure
to currency risk as majority of the Group’s asset
were denominated in its functional currency of
either HK$ or RMB. The Group currently does
not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, the management will monitor the
foreign exchange exposure should the need
arises.

()  Exposure to foreign exchange risk
The following table details the Group’s net
exposure at the balance sheet date to

3

BREREEEERBE®)

31 BBEBREE
() R=REkR
AEEZRLEREREARK
EREMGNEREEGHZE
HREAERYENSEE
FEE At AEER -
F—tRk=-_FT-—R"F=A
=+ AYWERN KRR

(d) SR
EZRB ARENETH
EXGRCHEACBEER
BEHOUET  ARETA
RE ] =x(ET]) RE
(BT DEHE - ARET
EETHE  BEEERE
g HBREMEXTHES
FHBAZEAEERARRL
BRI 2IHRE DI - bR
ez 4N BRAKE A D
BENEDEEHBITHA
REFHE - RSB EA
XEARERER - AEEHA
Al 3 8 S0 BE 300 B o A
i &R R s B A R P S
FEE JE Bzt

() AZIMNELE R
TRFAIAKEIARE
ERZEEENINZ

currency risk arising from recognised BEEGTEZERRE

assets/ (liabilities) denominated in a E/(aB)MELLE

currency other than the functional R AEE B 2 B k%
currency of the entity to which they £ o

related.

2017 2016

—E—+t5F T —RF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FHIT

RMB AR 15,186 -

us$ T 8,139 21,847

EUR BT (50) 3,423

23,275 25,270
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(d) Foreign currency risk (Continued)

3 BXREREEEBERBE®)

3.1 BBEBEEE)
(d) sSheEmEBE (&)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the
approximate change in the Group loss/
profit after tax (and accumulated losses/
retained earnings) in response to
reasonably possible changes in the
foreign exchange rates to which the
Group has significant exposure at the
balance sheet date.

(i) SEEST
TRETAEEHEER
SEREERAXEXR
Bz 2 41N BEE R & 7 AT
BEE B M Z BB
BiE,a A (R REE
B RE ) B &
) o

2017 2016

—E—+tF ZE—RF
Increase/ Effect on Increase/ Effect on
(decrease) loss after (decrease) loss after
in foreign tax and in foreign tax and
exchange accumulated exchange accumulated
rates losses rates losses
il PE SR 4 0,
(R 2) (R A)
HERBLE YR
ExEMm BERESN EXEN/ BBERZF
(R2) EBENTE (D)  EBEHEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHTT
RMB AR® 10% (1,519) 10% =
(10%) 1,519 (10%) -
EUR &K 7T 10% 5 10% (342)
(10%) (5) (10%) 342
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

(i) Sensitivity analysis (Continued)
The sensitivity analysis has been determined
assuming that the change in foreign
exchange rates had occurred at the
balance sheet date, and that all other
variables, in particular interest rates,
remain constant.

The stated changes represent management's
assessment of reasonably possible changes
in foreign exchange rates over the period until
the next annual balance sheet date. Results of
the analysis as presented in the above table
represent an aggregation of the effects on the
Group loss/profit after tax measured in the
respective functional currencies, translated
into HK$ at the exchange rate ruling at the
balance sheet date for presentation purposes.
The analysis is performed on the same basis
for 2016.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk
through its held-for-trading investments in listed
equity securities. Decisions to buy or sell listed
equity securities are based on daily monitoring
of the performance of individual securities
compared to index of relevant stock markets
and other industry indicators.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to equity
price risks at the balance sheet date. If the
prices of the respective equity instruments had
been 10% (2016: 10%) higher/lower, the Group’s
post-tax loss for the year ended 31 March 2017
would decrease/increase by HK$6,410,000
(2016: post-tax loss decrease/increase by
HK$6,195,500) as a result of the changes in fair
value of held-for-trading investments.

3

BREREEEERBE®)

3.1 UBBEBEEE
(d) sSheEmEBE (&)

() SRS (E)
BURE DM T RERINE
EXRNEEAHRES
A AE e &2 KHx
(LERMN ) REFTE
MEE e

it EEEEERER T
—FEAER FHRY
HNEEIE R S TR AT R

R Z 7l - ERATZE
SN RIEHAEE
NEDREERE 2R
BigEE a8z F 8
B WIENGEERB
TTEXBEREIT - A
HE2I - ZoWE=-F
—NFR—EEHET

(e) ERER
AEBBRBERKFEEERE
P T P AN 58 2% 1 [ ¥ 58 55
EBRER BEELEWMRANE
FHORENRESAERME
AESHREERBARED
B REMITREERLRRNAE

tljo
HRZ T

U TEHEREDINERER
EE B AR ERRRRET
B MSTANMBRATAMNE
BEE FFHTRER10% (=F
— N 10%) 0 BIAREER
B ZT—+tF=A=1+—
BLEEENBRREBEERS
AR EEERENAREE
&) i 5 >, 45 /11 6,410,000 75
T(ZZT—RF : BR%EE
L, 1 h06,195,5005 7T) °
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(f)

Fair value estimation

The table below analyses the Group's financial
instruments carried at fair value as at 31 March
by level of the inputs to valuation technique
used to measure fair value. The different levels
have been defined as follows:

o Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities
(level 1).

° Inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (that is, as
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from
prices) (level 2).

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (that s,
unobservable inputs) (level 3).

The Group uses independent valuers to perform
valuations of financial instruments which are
categorised into level 3. Valuation reports with
analysis of changes in fair value measurement
are prepared by the independent valuer at
annual reporting date, and are reviewed and
approved by the management of the Group.
Discussion of the valuation process and results
with the management of the Group is held once
a year to coincide with the annual reporting
date.

3

BREREEEERBE®)

3.1 BBEBEEE)

(f)

D AEME

TR AEBEIZARESD
RZeEMTAR=A=1—
FERNTEAREBEZGE
TERERIELEZRE -
TRZRIZEZIT

s MHREEXARAEE
M52 HECREHE)
(F—/) -

s BEAMBRIWME
S BERAEZAE
R AR A REE
(BB 18) sk M #& (AVR
BER) ZBE(E =
&)

o  BEXBEIIMMRER
BEMSEEB 2 BAHK
BRI BRI A
B E=R) -

AEBEZFEBLEENE S
BAE=-RzeRMTRET
e LHREHB QL ET
EEYOMcFREREAH
BE®RSE  ARIAEEE
BEERMt - BF-RAESF
EEBEHENKEEEREEN
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(f)

Fair value estimation (Continued)

The following table presents the Group’s assets
that are measured at their fair values at 31
March 2017 and 2016.

3 BXREREEEBERBE®)

3.1 MKEEZEE
H AREGEE)
TREIWR=ZZE—tFR=
T—RNE=ZA=+—HUA
REFEZREE I EE -

2017 2016
—E-tF ZERE
Level 1  Level2 Level3 Total  Llevel1  Level2  Level3 Total
-8  E=f  #E=# B B-H FZH F=R AFf
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS'000 HK$'000  HKS'000
THr THEx TEx TEx TEr TAT  TEr  TExn
Financial assets CREE
Other financial A eraE
asset
— Profit — HHlRE
guarantee - - 3,665 3,665 = = = =
Held-for-trading BIEEER
investments: RE
— Listed equity — LA
securities #5 64,100 - - 64100  619% - - 61955
Total a5t 64,100 - 3,665 67,765 61,955 - - 61,955

There were no transfers between any levels
during the year.

Financial instruments in level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets is based on quoted market
prices at the balance sheet date. A market is
regarded as active if quoted prices are readily
and regularly available from an exchange,
dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service,
or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market
transactions on an arm’s length basis. The
quoted market price used for financial assets
held by the Group is the current bid price.
These instruments are included in level 1.
Instruments included in level 1 comprise equity
securities listed in Hong Kong Stock Exchange
classified as held-for-trading investments.

The fair values of current financial assets and
liabilities carried at amortised cost approximate
to their carrying amount.

RAFER - SR2ZHEILE
BB o

F—RFe @ TA
REBRMSEENSRTA
MAREDNREREEBNT
BHETE - WAEBBRES
REREHMER S &
HE - KL TEEE B
RRFXEERE BT
BERRERMEHERF
RAETHMIHER S %W
5 R AR R B o NEE R
BENEREEMERNTS
BERBRTEAE - %F
BIARE - - FIAE &
MTABREBEARKIELE
KREMNZBB M LM

*ja‘” o
Rz

EReREEMBAZEE
BEARERS -
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(f)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HXEREEEERBE®)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BXEBEE (&
Fair value estimation (Continued) ) 2DAREMEE)
Financial instruments in level 2 —RzemTA
The fair value of financial instruments that are WIERNERMIZE BN R
not traded in an active market is determined by TR/ AR BB GE R
using valuation techniques. These valuation BT ZEMHERMEST
techniques maximise the use of observable RAAESHNAEBRTSH
market data where it is available and rely as B TEEREEEEER
little as possible on entity specific estimates. If FHETNER - M= T AR
all significant inputs required to fair value an REFHEMEEZSETE
instrument are observable, the instrument is = BIZTAFAE -
included in level 2.
Financial instruments in level 3 FE=RzeHITA
If one or more of the significant inputs is not fisd — B 8k LA _E = B g A BUE
based on observable market data, the I FEE A ] R T 35 B
instrument is included in level 3. BIZZT Bt AE =/
The valuation techniques and key inputs used REEBEMEMEERSE
of other financial asset of level 3 fair value =HMARBEFEMAKNHE
measurement at the balance sheet date are as iy KGR A BHRA ¢
follows:
Significant
Valuation unobservable
Other financial asset technique inputs Rate
BEAFAEHE
Hih S mEE fER % LN ¢ b=
Profit guarantee Monte Carlo simulation Discount rate 17.71%
i MR FE SERERE AL IR &
Volatility 47.78%
IS
Put option Monte Carlo simulation Discount rate 17.71%
Roh HARE SERERE AR35 =
Volatility 47.78%
&
Both the fair value of the profit guarantee and AR TE KR AR

put option are determined using Monte Carlo
simulation.

BEEURARBRETEETE °



3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(f)

Fair value estimation (Continued)

Financial instruments in level 3 (Continued)

The fair value measurement is descendingly
correlated to the discount rate used, i.e. an
increase in discounted rate used in isolation
would result in a decrease in the fair value
measurement, and vice versa.

The fair value measurement is ascendingly
correlated to the volatility used, i.e. an increase
in volatility used in isolation would result in a
increase in the fair value measurement, and
vice versa.

No sensitivity analysis is disclosed for the
impact of changes in discount rate and volatility
as the exposure is insignificant to the Group.

The following table presents the changes in
level 3 instruments for the year ended 31 March
2017 and 31 March 2016.

3

Annual Report 2017 ¢ — = — - F 45

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ok 1 U5 A M

BREREEEERBE®)

3.1 BBEBEEE)

(f)

DAREEE(E)
E=Rzo@TAE)

AR EEEAEARNLIE
KA ER B % - BB E (s
BRI E FRAEER AR
B2 T RZIFA -

DS {ERHE B AT E A AR R
BRIEAE - AEBMER
HR IR B S SR AR ER
BE RZIA -

HRARBERAR ZBH X
REERBEEEY NBRE
AR B REHRE DT ©

TRIFBE_F—LF=
A=Z+—BR=ZF—R"EF=
A=Z+—-RLEFEZE=R
TA%

Other
financial asset Total
HihemEE a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT T
At 1 April 2015, 31 March 2016 ~ A-Z—RFMA—H -
and 1 April 2016 —E-RF=ZA=+—H
R=ZF—"FMNA—H - -
Acquisition of a subsidiary IiE—REWE AR
(note 32 (iii)) (Bt =% 32(ii)) 6,263 6,263
Fair value loss recognised in RIB=ERN A EBE
profit or loss (2,598) (2,598)
At 31 March 2017 R-_F—+&F=A=+—H 3,665 3,665
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group'’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity
and borrowings. In order to maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders or sell assets to
reduce debt. The Group monitors capital on the basis
of gearing ratio. The total debt to equity ratio is
calculated as net debt divided by total equity. Net
debt is calculated as total borrowings (including
amount due to a director) less cash and bank
balances. The total debt to equity ratio at 31 March
2017 and 2016 were as follows:

3

RS EEEERBE®)

32 EXERER

AREEREAL BRRREAR
EEHEEE 26N R ARE
HHE R -

REB v ERNEEDFEERS MG
B BERNARERERE K&
B gHABRYNTRREZRE S
REEEENRDEER - REELL
BENRERER - BEAEEE
LR B EFERERERTHE -
BEFENREE(BIEEN—2
EERE)RE S RRTEF
H - RZE—tFRZF—RF=
A=+t—Rrza@EREEEn =X
I

2017 2016

—E—tF ZE—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHIT

Bank borrowing, secured IRITIEE - HEHF - 62,368
Amount due to a director FER —REERIA 6,210 39,482
Less: Cash and bank balances W R e RIRITETT (98,144) (499,817)
Net cash e FE (91,934) (397,967)
Total equity B 845,047 877,772
Net debt to equity ratio BEFEEERLE N/A RiEH N/A “INiE A
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 4 EESTHEFTRAR

AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and HEt R A EE TE TS WABELER
are based on historical experience and other factors, REMEEAER  BEKRRBRIBEREER

including expectations of future events that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are addressed below.

(@) Useful lives and impairment assessments
of property, plant and equipment and
other intangible assets
The Group’s management determine the estimated
useful lives, residual values and related depreciation
and amortisation charges for property, plant and
equipment and other intangible assets by reference
to the estimated periods that the Group intends to
derive future economic benefits from the use of these
assets. Management will revise the depreciation and
amortisation charges where useful lives are different
to those previously estimated, or it will write-off or
write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold. Actual
economic lives may differ from estimated useful lives
and actual residual values may differ from estimated
residual values. Periodic reviews could result in a
change in depreciable lives and residual values and
therefore depreciation and amortisation expense in
the future periods.

The Group reviews tangible and intangible assets for
impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the related carrying
amounts may not be recovered. Assessing the
impairment loss requires a determination of fair value
which is based on the best estimates and information
available.

REHELRERGEZTER -

AEEDHRFELGEF RBR - E
At ZERTE  BREE B8
HEHERGRAR - # TN EMBFE
ZEERABRBERZE ZAF AER
AfFmANT ©

(@ W% RE- B[YRHEMBEY
B E Ayl A A B AR E RE A5

AEBEEEBRAEYE  &E - &=
M R EAMER B EEE bt A(E A
FH - FSREEMBEITE R #H
B DAEBERAZEEER
EREERREEMNBNFHRES
Z o BRI ERFHIRAAMER
TR EEESERAERBIHE
A HERERERHENRER
fily 5 FE SR BK 1 B A T BH SR - B
BB ERFH A ERE A
ERFMBELA  EERSREER
R FSEEEER - BHM
BB Rl E R EF R RIREE
EVEE B - IR It 5 BUR R AR 94T
ENBHBERNED -

ELUEHREHNBIRBRET
BERENEEMREERN TR
Y Bl - A5 & B (R E R
et o SHEREERR  FEEE
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continuead)

(b)

()

(d)

Impairment assessments of trade
receivables, finance lease payment
receivables, loan receivables, deposits,
prepayments and other receivables
(Continued)

The Group's management determines the provision
for impairment of trade receivables, finance lease
payment receivables, loan receivables, deposits,
prepayments and other receivables based on an
assessment of the recoverability of the receivables.
The assessment is based on the credit history of its
customers and other debtors and the current market
condition, and requires the use of judgments and
estimates. Management reassesses the provision at
each balance sheet date.

Fair value of financial instruments

Where the fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded in the consolidated balance sheet
cannot be derived from active markets, they are
determined using valuation techniques including the
discounted cash flow model. The inputs to these
models are taken from observable markets where
possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of
judgement is required in establishing fair values. The
judgements include considerations of inputs such as
liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in
assumptions about these factors could affect the
reported fair value of financial instruments.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired
at least on an annual basis. This requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating
units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating
the value in use requires the Group to make an
estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value
of those cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill
at 31 March 2017 was HK$1,000,000 (2016:
HK$1,000,000). Further details of impairment testing
of goodwill are given in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.

4 EESIETTRHAE 2

(b)

(c)

(d)

Wi BREEEEX
B EBREXR BE BEX
TR B A B F R R E R G ()

AEBZEEEBREHBERIALZ
AT Bl 2 BF 4 B E R KRR - B
WHEBERE  BRER &
T~ BN TR R E M ERIA R
BERE - SHEDIRIBEEFP R EAM
B AZE R NE R mRIE
- R ME A R (AT - BIRE
ERBHEENEHEMREE -

SRMIAENDIAE

EiffAGEEEABRRNEREE
FemBENALETEREED
HEGE - BIRAMESE(BERM
RREeRBER)EE - ZFEXD
BABBEEZENEAERME © W
9T - AIZEREE R L ERED
—ERENHE - ZEHEBRER
ABENZEERZ  WESRIDM
Rk - EERBREREEE - BREZ
ERARNBREEEZTTFESH
TEHZRAAME -

EERE
AEESVESFEEHEESSLR
BE - BEERAMTEEMIESR
ZHeEEBEMZFERERE - - H5t
FREER  AEEAGTRSE
EEM AR SRE A
BEABEMNAERFGEZSESR
ENRE - R —+E=H
=+t —H BEZEEDMAEA
1,000,000 L( = & — X F:
1,000,000 7T ) ° F [ 79 2R E A
AOEZF B GRE VIS ®RKM
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(e)

)

(®

Fair value of investment property

The fair value of investment property is determined
by using valuation technigue. Details of the
judgement and assumptions have been disclosed in
Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

Income taxation

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. Where
the final tax outcome is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the current income tax in the period in which
such determination is made.

Deferred taxation in respect of temporary
differences attributable to the
undistributed profits of subsidiaries in the
PRC

The Group’s management determines the dividend
distribution plan of the subsidiaries in the PRC. Based
on the dividend distribution plan, retained profits as
at 31 March 2017 amounting to HK$13,880,000 (2016:
HK$3,506,000) will not be distributed by the
subsidiaries as dividend in the foreseeable future. The
Group’s management further reassesses the dividend
withholding tax rate based on current dividend
distribution plan and determines that certain of these
subsidiaries should be entitled to a withholding tax at
the rate of 5% for dividend payments instead of 10%.
Future change in the dividend distribution plan may
have a material impact on the amount of deferred
taxation being recognised.

4 EESIETTRHAE 2

(e)

(f)

(®

REWMEIRE
REMEZ AR ERBEETEE
TE o HET RBRBRZFHBERGEEH
TEIRRMIFE1SHEE -

Frie®t
AEBEEZ @R ERABAAG
B BEEEMBHBARERTEEXN
B HIE - REMBEITER 2
BAZER  ZERGRNEHZE
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o B Y B 2 B iz R 9 ik s K P
SIHMNERMEER CARIEL
BiIE

AEEEREETTEMNBARZ
BB 7 kT & o RIEAE 2 IR ET
g ZEMBARN T —tF=
A=t—Bz&REBE&EMNEHK
13,880,000 jT( = T — /X & :
3,506,000 % 7T ) i Al R AR R T &
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B B IR R B TE AR T M B
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REVENUE

Revenue represents (i) income from vessel chartering; (ii)
net invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for
returns and trade discount; (iii) interest income from money
lending; and (iv) interest income and handling fee income
from finance leasing business.

A

Y AB(G) 2K B A AR AR E WA ¢ (i) 7 aR 3
ERRFR(MBREEREZITH) - (i)
EEMBBA  RiVEREREMNSRF
BBWA -

An analysis of the Group's revenue for the year is as AEBFERWRAZDITET
follows:

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Income from vessel chartering AR E WA 3,960 11,743
Sales of goods P miHE 2,109,468 1,354,589
Interest income from money lending BEEF 2 A 10,025 993

Interest and handling fee income
from finance leasing

MEMEEMERFEBERA

13,739 6,260

2,137,192 1,373,585

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as
the Board of the Company. The Board reviews the Group’s
internal reporting in order to assess performance and
allocate resources. Management has determined the
operating segments based on these reports.

The Group’s operating businesses are structured and
managed separately according to the nature of the
operations. Each of the Group's reportable segments
represents a strategic business unit that is subject to risks
and returns that are different from other reportable
operating segment.

PEEH
AAREFRIEATELEREA B
BAEEZ NHBE  KTFERDR
AEAR - EREDHELSREDS S
BHE -

AEE R L AB IR RIRES
MEEH BT ER - AEENSAZR
WESEREBERELEEL - B
RE A2 BRI D EFRAZHER R
B4 -
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
The Group's reportable and operating segments are as
follows:

Vessel chartering segment engaged in voyage
chartering in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC") and Southeast Asia region;

. Trading segment engaged in trading of goods in Hong
Kong and the PRC;

. Money lending segment engaged in provision of loan
financing in Hong Kong and entrusted loan financing
in the PRC; and

o Finance leasing segment engaged in provision of
finance leasing and sale-leaseback in the PRC.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies. Segment profit/
loss represents the profit/loss earned by each segment
without allocation of incomes or expenses which are not
recurring in nature and unrelated to the Group's operating
performance, including central administration costs,
directors’ emoluments, (loss)/gain on changes in fair value
of held-for-trading investments, loss on changes in fair
value of other financial asset, impairment loss on other
receivable, impairment loss on goodwill and gain on
bargain purchase.

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and
allocating resources between segments, all assets are
allocated to operating segments other than investment
property, goodwill, held-for-trading investments, other
financial asset, cash and bank balances and other
corporate assets.

TEER &)
AEEY SHRQLHEIT -

e MMEEIBERPEARKNE
(B ) Ko 3R e om 4 [ A S A A AR
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e REMHESENTENSFREMNE
MEREDHEE -

REDBEZ G RREANKEE 2 51K
KR - 2 FREHNEIEESE S BEY
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B -E2Me HEEEREQRER
B(EBR) s EtemEERAAE
EEEiE - HREEFURERR B
BEBBREZEERERS) ZBERT
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The Board assesses the performance of the operating
segments based on their underlying operating profit/(I0ss),

which is measured by profit/(loss) before taxation.

NOBLE CENTURY INVESTMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED o {“Ini& &1 AR A Al

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ok 1 U5 A M

(@) Segment revenue and results

6 DEER®E
EEERBLENE MBI LH
F,(B518) SER R - TR A
BIEZ % (BiB) 5 E -

(@) DEBRAREER

Year ended 31 March 2017
BE-_Z-—tF=fA=1-HLEE

Vessel Money Finance
chartering Trading lending leasing Total
MMEE g5 BE MEHRE Bt
Segment revenue HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
and results PERARES TR TR TR FET THET
Segment revenue DEWA 3,960 2,109,468 10,025 13,739 2,137,192
Segment results R CES (325) 13,862 8,847 5,737 28121
Corporate expenses PERX (22,899)
Operating profit mE g A 5,222
Corporate income EBA 9
Gain on bargain purchase & {E Ui iz 6,263
Loss on changes in fair BEEERE
value of held-for-trading DA EEE
investments BB (10,860)
Loss on changes in fair Hih e REE
value of other financial ANREED
asset B (2,598)
Impairment loss on other ~ E s ek
receivable REER (9,229)
Impairment loss on HEREESE
goodwill (1,074)
Loss before taxation BRiRIEE (12,178)
Taxation charge HIEL (6,880)
Loss for the year TEEER (19,058)



Annual Report 2017 ¢ — = — - F 45

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ok 1 U5 A M

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6 DEER®
(@) Segment revenue and results (Continued) (@) PEWARESEE)

Year ended 31 March 2016
BE-E—RF=A=t—HIt5E

\Vessel Money Finance
chartering Trading lending leasing Total
MM E 25 T BMEHE #at
Segment revenue HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
and results FEWARES THT THT THT THT THT
Segment revenue SERA 11,743 1,354,589 993 6,260 1,373,585
Segment results PEEE (13,504) 7,161 979 2,685 2,679)
Corporate expenses TERY (19,909)
Operating loss meER (22,588)
Corporate income TERA 321
Gain on changes in fair BEEERE
value of held-for-trading AR EZE
investments Yz 5,540
Gain on disposal of a HE—F]
subsidiary NGl e B35
Loss before taxation BRI AIE IR (15,892)
Taxation charge BMESH (2,680)

Loss for the year AEEEE (18,572)
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6 DEER@®
(b) Segment assets and liabilities (b) PEEERERE
As at 31 March 2017
R-E—t§=A=+-H
Vessel Money Finance
chartering Trading lending leasing Total
MHREE ES B8 MERE @t
Segment assets HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
and liabilities STEEERERE THT THT TER TER TER
Non-current assets FnEE
Property, plant and mE - RER
equipment = 20,275 99 2 77,035 97,411
Finance lease payment [EEERE
receivables A - - - 84,576 84,576
Loan receivables ERER - - 27,736 - 27,736
20,275 929 27,738 161,611 209,723
Current assets MENEE 8,901 585,262 84,558 74,216 752,937
Segment assets SEEE 29,176 585,361 112,296 235,827 962,660
Unallocated: RO® :
Cashandbank balances & RF1T4EE 98,144
Others Hity 92,959
Total assets per balance ~ BEEEREE
sheet (g 1,153,763
Segment liabilities PEEE 13,587 273,015 936 11,886 299,424
Unallocated: KoE:
Amount due to a director B —ZEZZIE 6,210
Others Hit 3,082
Total liabilities per balance  BEAEXAE
BE
sheet 308,716
Other segment HipBER
information
Capital expenditure EARMS 4 15 - 3,973 3,992
Unallocated capital AOREARYT
expenditure 13,999
17,991
Depreciation nE 1,917 25 1 3,295 5,238
Unallocated depreciation — RO EHTE 2,323

7,561
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6 DEER®
(b) Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) (b) PEEEREREE)

As at 31 March 2016
R-E—RE=A=1+—H

Vessel Money Finance
chartering Trading lending leasing Total
mMAE 25 B8 MEME Bar
Segment assets HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
and liabilities PTREEREE THT THL T THL THET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and mE - RER
equipment =) 45,141 115 - 81,017 126,273
Goodwill e - = = 1,000 1,000
Finance lease payment EUHERE
receivables FE - - - 70,322 70,322
Loan receivables ERER - - 441 - 44
45,141 115 a4 152,339 198,036
Current assets RBEE 721 214,888 5,133 145,485 366,227
Segment assets THEEE 45,862 215,003 5,574 297,824 564,263
Unallocated: FoHE
Cashand bank balances ~ H&R#BITEE 499,817
Others Hit 91,775
Total assets per balance ~ AEABRAE
sheet #E 1,155,855
Segment liabilities TEEE 28,928 194,086 280 12,156 235,450
Unallocated: AAE
Amount due to a director B —ZEZEZIE 39,482
Others Hit 3,151
Total liabilities per balance  BEAEXRARE
BE
sheet 278,083
Other segment HipEER
information
Capital expenditure BARREY 45,520 123 - 81,239 126,882
Unallocated capital APEEARY
expenditure 3,128
130,010
Depreciation nE 1,102 9 - 304 1,415
Unallocated depreciation KA A E 1,749

3,164
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6 DEER®
(b) Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) (b) 2 EEEREREE)
Geographical information B2 &R
The Group's operations are located in Hong Kong and BHE_Z—+tFR-_ZT—XF=H
the PRC for the year ended 31 March 2017 and 2016. =T—HLEFE AEEZEEM

REBLFPHE -

Information about the Group’s revenue from external BRAAREBRRBHINEE 2 WETH
customers is presented based on the location at R ESIR M E e RS Z 2 2
which the goods or services are delivered or %l o
provided.
The Group's total revenue from sales of goods and AREBIRMEE D 2 & RIRFEHE
services by geographical location is detailed below: SRS T ¢
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
PRC F 2,132,536 1,372,592
Hong Kong BB 4,656 993
2,137,192 1,373,585
The Group’s non-current assets excluding goodwill RNEBIZEEMEMEID 2 IEmED
and other financial asset by geographical location of BE(TEERERAMEREE)
the assets are detailed below: FEALAAR ¢
2017 2016
—E-+tF ZE-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHTT
PRC B 209,422 196,595
Hong Kong B 17,398 6,483

226,820 203,078
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6 TEERE 2
(c) Revenue are derived from the following KWATKBETHEERF :
major customers:
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TFET
customer A =FEH 1,187,165 1,086,611
Customer B 2E7 301,224 34,749
Customer C ZER 190,933 -
Customer D Z2ET 151,021 40,070
Customer E 2R 95,074 -
Customer F z2HE5 - 121,652
Customer G ZEEE - 63,434
1,925,417 1,346,516
All the major customers are customers of trading FIEXEERFNESEBER
business
7 OTHER INCOME 7 HfiA
2017 2016
—E—tHF —ET—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&T FET
Bank interest income SRITH S WA 547 196
Dividend income fig BUZA - 320
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEYE - REMREMIK
and equipment 960 -
Rental income e WA 151 =
Others Hih 11 -

1,669

516
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8 EXPENSES BY NATURE

8 BHUHIZZXH

2017 2016

—E—+tF ZE—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET BT

Fuel costs BRBHRK AR 676 6,562

Cost of inventories sold FEIHERK K 2,084,678 1,339,800
Staff costs, including directors’ BINA  BREEEME

emoluments 17,802 11,540
Contribution to defined contribution R ERFRAEFFT IR

retirement benefit scheme (BIEESR)

(including directors) 604 327
Auditor’s remuneration % EREH N & 765 674
Depreciation e 7,561 3,164
Exchange loss, net b E51E - FEE 1,742 623
Unrealised loss on investment RERIGEMEEHEBE

property revaluation 288 -
Operating lease charges inrespect of KR AEZEFHESHT

property rental 3,276 3,356
Professional fees HEEH 5,110 4,756
Repair and maintenance HAE RIRE 429 39
Vessel management fee MANEEE R 847 7,004
Others HAith 8,351 6,935
Total cost of sales and SHERR AR

administrative expenses THRERER 2,132,129 1,384,780

9 FINANCE COSTS 9 ®WMERK
2017 2016
—ZE—tF ZE—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Interest expenses on bank borrowing  R1T{EE T2 1,412 720




Annual Report 2017 ¢ — = — - F 45

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ok 1 U5 A M

10 TAXATION 10 #1\E
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Current income tax BUERFR1S

— Hong Kong profits tax — BB B 2,331 1,338
— PRC corporation income tax — R EREE 4,549 1,342
6,880 2,680

Hong Kong profits tax EBNEBH

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2016: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits for
the year.

PRC corporate income tax

The PRC corporate income tax in respect of operations in
Mainland China is calculated at the applicable tax rates on
the estimated assessable profits for the year based on
existing legislation, interpretations and practices in respect
thereof.

Withholding tax on distributed/undistributed
profits

The PRC tax law imposes a withholding tax at 10%, unless
reduced by a tax treaty, for dividends distributed by PRC
subsidiaries to its immediate holding company outside the
PRC for earnings generated beginning on 1 January 2008.

Deferred taxation has not been provided in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of the temporary difference
attributable to retained profits of the PRC subsidiaries as the
Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not release in the foreseeable future.

EBFNERIBIBEAFE 2 (AT ERH
S AIRT R 16.5% ( —ZF — /N F : 16.5%)
HHE

B3PS B

BRATEAEEKZEZTHLEME
HMERBRITAD - 2ERBREMN
REZEERN BN IZBE AT RTE

B2k RDIKEF Z EMB

—ZEENF-A—HRE RIFRE
TG RA) T LA D - AR BIBOE R TE
B R EEERNMAESEIRINE
BEER AR DK SR 10%TAHT ©

A A 7R SR B BE 4945 ) B A 1 = R B Y
R MEZEREEZERAERAR
RETEEHH - FUL R B E AR
DIRRE S PSR ERIEER 2R
BRIER AN R AN S IR Pt

1’ -
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10 TAXATION (continued)

The amount of taxation charge for the year can be

10 Bl (&)
AEERIERY BB AR YiEM

reconciled to the loss before tax as follows: T:
2017 2016
—E—+tHF ZE—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&TT
Loss before taxation BREA B ESIE (12,178) (15,892)
Calculated at domestic income LA AT 16.5%
tax rate of 16.5% (2016: 16.5%) (ZZF—7"F : 16.5%)
HE S RIIA (2,009) (2,622)
Effect of different tax rates of ) NCINEI T -2
subsidiaries 1,192 244
Tax effect of; HIAE -
Income not subject to tax T T N (1,042) (1,051)
Expenses not deductible for tax TRIHF 2 &
pUrposes 5,570 3,256
Underprovision in prior year BAEFERETR 99 -
Tax losses for which no deferred WERERELEMEH 2
income tax was recognised i Esa 3,110 2,913
Tax concession HEER (40) (60)
Taxation charge FRIASE 6,880 2,680

11 DIVIDEND

1 RE

The directors do not recommend the payment of any
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2017 (2016: Nil).

E=ZTRENBE_ZFT—LtF=A
=+ RAEFERMEAMRE(ZT—X
FE)
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12 LOSSES PER SHARE 12 BERERE
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
(Restated)
(&%)
Loss attributable to shareholders A% R FE(L E5 18 (17,693) (18,754)
Weighted average number of ordinary — stE&MRERNEE 2 L@k
shares, for the purposes of calculating — iniEE¥98 (Fi%) (FizE)
basic losses per share (shares in
thousands) (Note) 3,680,600 2,273,355
Basic and diluted losses per share FREAREEEE HK(0.48) cents  HK(0.82) cents
(0.48) &l (0.82) 711l
Note: The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the i R=ZB—RNFAATR M (T
purpose of calculating basic losses per share for both year has 26(b)ii)) - R EFEERNA AT EFRE
been retrospectively adjusted for the effect of share subdivision NE1E 2 RN T EE (B
completed in September 2016 (Note 26(b)(ii)). Lo
As there are no dilutive potential ordinary shares RIE—+tFR_E-—RF=HA=1+—
outstanding as at 31 March 2017 and 2016, the diluted H #MEAgEr#ErE s Tak.

losses per share are equal to the basic losses per share. WEREEEEEATREREEMER o
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13 EMOLUMENTS FOR DIRECTORS AND
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
Directors’ and senior management’s

(a)

13 EERBEEHFALTHE

(@) EEREREEASHMH

emoluments
Year ended 31 March 2017 BE—E—tH&E=A=+—HLHE
E
Employer’s
Fees, contribution
salaries and to pension
other benefits scheme
Name of director B FEA EREHEIZ Total
EEnR HEFl B E S #at
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET F#&xT
Executive directors HITES
Ms. Zheng Juhua BREG e+ 2,160 18 2,178
Mr. Chan Chi Yuen PRER S AE 3,135 18 3,153
Independent non- BIFHTES
executive directors
Mr. Man Kwok Leung BERRLE 150 - 150
Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter RIALCEE 150 - 150
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth FEHERE 150 - 150
5,745 36 5,781
Year ended 31 March 2016 BE-ZE—-A"F=A=1+—HLHF
E
Employer’s
Fees, contribution
salaries and to pension
other benefits scheme
Name of director Z2R - HeM BIRETEIZ Total
BEERHR EEA B E 5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T
Executive directors HITES
Ms. Zheng Juhua BRI+ 1,550 18 1,568
Mr. Chan Chi Yuen PR AR ST A 2,470 18 2,488
Independent non- BYEHITES
executive directors
Mr. Man Kwok Leung SEIRE A 128 - 128
Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter RELCEE 128 - 128
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth FEERAE 128 - 128

4,404 36 4,440




Annual Report 2017 ¢ — = — - F 45

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ok 1 U5 A M

13 EMOLUMENTS FOR DIRECTORS AND

HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (continued)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ and senior management’s

emoluments (Continued)

(a)

No directors waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments during the year (2016: Nil). Fees paid to
independent non-executive directors during the year
amounted to HK$450,000 (2016: HK$384,000).

No emoluments have been paid to the individual or
the directors as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office during
the year ended 31 March 2017 (2016: Nil).

Emolument bands

13 EERBEHFALEHES @

EEREREBASHME)

FA - EEMEREXREREL
e (ZF—RF: &)  FRAX
NBIFERNTESTZ2HE A
450,000/ 7T (=Z — 734 : 384,000
BIL) °

RBE_Z—tF=A=+—H1t
FEA - WEAEMNEEERA
M - VBT 00 88 = BN A% H0 B8R AN
KEZ BSRBERBE(ZFT K
FE) e

Number of individuals

BENF A
2017 2016
—®-tF  “T-AF
HK$Nil — HK$1,000,000 T T2 1,000,000 7T 3 3
HK$1,000,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 5 7T % 2,000,000 7T - 1
HK$2,000,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,000,001 77T 2 3,000,000 47T 1 1
HK$3,000,001 — HK$4,000,000 3,000,001 8 7T 2 4,000,000 7T 1 -
5 5

Five highest paid individuals (b) EEEEHFAL

The Directors’ emoluments presented above include
the emoluments of the two (2016: two) highest paid
individuals in the Group. The emoluments of the
remaining three (2016: three) highest paid individual
during the year ended 31 March 2017 were:

EXFEINESHFHRERE(Z
ZE—R"FRMB)AEEERRFA
TrMe  REBEE-ZE—+F=A
=Tt HRIEFEART=4(=ZF
—A"F:ZR)BRFATZHME
=3

2017 2016
—E—+F ZE—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT T

Salaries, bonus, other allowances &4 - fE4L - H 2L R
and benefits in kind EWHz= 2,144 1,967

Employer’s contributions to RIKET 82 B EH

retirement scheme 54 23
2,198 1,990

Emolument bands

Number of individuals

MENF A
2017 2016
—E—tHF T —RF
HK$Nil — HK$1,000,000 T 7T 2 1,000,000 7T 3 2

HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000

1,000,001 /& 7T % 1,500,000 7 7T

- 1
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14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14 Y% - RERSFIHM

Furniture
Leasehold and Motor
Property improvement fixtures vehicles Vessel Total
E HEXE HEREE a2 i @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TATL TATL TATL TATL ThL TAT
At 31 March 2015 RZE-RF=A=1-H
Cost A = 994 2859 2369 36,676 42,898
Accumulated depreciation ZHITE - (331) (551) (547) (1,337) (2.766)
Net book amount REFE - 663 2308 1822 35339 40,132
Year ended 31 March 2016 BE-Z-7"5=A=1-H
IHEE
Opening net book amount ENEEFE - 663 2,308 1822 35,339 40,132
Currency translation differences B3 5% 4 - (5) — 6 5
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-RHEAR = = = - (24,969) (24,969)
Additions RE 81,179 1,226 1975 110 45,520 130,010
Write-off s = = “7) - - 47)
Depreciation il (290) (438) (845) (493) (1,102 (3,164)
Impairment i - - - - (9.652) (9,652)
Closing net book amount EXRRETE 80,893 1455 3,386 1439 45,142 132315
At 31 March 2016 RZE—R"E=A=1-H
Cost A 81,179 2,220 4,782 2479 45,520 136,180
Accumulated depreciation ZitE (286) (765) (1,39) (1,040) (378) (3,865)
Net book amount REFE 80,893 1,455 3,386 1,439 45,142 132,315
Year ended 31 March 2017 BE-S—tE=A=1-H
I35
Opening net book amount EOREFE 80,893 1455 3,386 1439 45,142 132315
Currency translation differences &5 3% (4,682) 2 (12) - (2616) (7,.278)
Additions HE = 3954 51 229 = 6,303
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE—-HHBA - - 1 - - 1
Disposal HE - = = (339) (20,337) (20,672)
Depreciation ik (1,788) (2,199) 977) (681) (1,916) (7,561)
Closing net book amount EXEEFE 74,423 320 2,449 2721 20273 103,108
At 31 March 2017 RZE-t§=A=1-HR
Cost KA 76,442 6,174 4818 3940 21,432 112,806
Accumulated depreciation Z:HITE (2019 (2.932) 2,369 (1.219 (1,159 (9,698)
Net book amount REFE 74423 3202 2409 2721 20273 103,108
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14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

15

Notes:

0]

As at 31 March 2017, the Group has not obtained the property
ownership certificate for the property with carrying values of
approximately RMB66 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$74.4 million) from the relevant PRC government authorities.
In the opinion of the Directors, the absence of formal title to the
property does not impair its values to the Group as the Group
has paid in full purchase consideration and the probability of
being evicted on the ground of an absence of formal title is
remote.

As at 31 March 2017, the vessel was pledged to secure an other
payable, details of which are set out in note 28(ii).

As at 31 March 2017, the registration of the vessel under the
name of the Group has yet been completed. In the opinion of
the Directors, the absence of formal title to the vessel does not
impair its value to the Group as the vendor has agreed the
vessels' risk and benefits has been passed to the Group and the
probability of being evicted on the ground of an absence of
formal title is remote.

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

14 Y%  RERS[W (@)

Wi

(i)

MN-ZE—tE=A=+—0 " A£EHX
HAEBBERABPILEEENAARE
66,000,000 7T ( 8 & B 974,400,000 7% 7T )
MEDSEEMEESE - ESFRE - AR
AEEE BRI NZEMENBENRER
AEBEERBSF ERE-EMEREOKES
B MAERZDENERERETSS
HUASEMEERRE -

R-ZE—tF=A=+—8 MMER—
SHMENFIRZER - HFHEEHNHE
28(ii) °

R-ZE—tF=A=+—H #BHHET
RARBETZFEMNMARTK - EER
% ARET ERE B ANERR RS
EEEAKE  BAKERRRGENE
BREMBEEZ S R - SURERZM
MBEREE RIS S EHARENEE
Hig-

15 REWE

2017 2016
—E—+tF AN

HK$’000 HK$'000

FaExT FET

Acquisition during the year REEAEA 11,688 -

Change in fair value (Note 8) N EEE (HES) (288) =

Balance at the end of the year FRER 11,400 -
Unrealised losses on property revaluation REIR

(Note 8) BiHEE (:ES) (288) =
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15 INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued)

(a)

(b)

()

Valuation processes of the Group

The Group measures its investment property at fair
value. The fair value of the Group’s investment
property has been determined on the basis of
valuation carried out by Peak Vision Appraisals
Limited, an independent and professionally qualified
valuer.

The management of the Group has discussions with
the valuer on the valuation assumptions and valuation
results when the valuation is performed at annual
reporting date.

Valuation techniques

The fair value of investment property located in Hong
Kong is determined using direct comparison approach
by reference to recent sales price of comparable
properties on a price per square feet basis and
adjusted to reflect the quality of the investment
property. Higher discount for lower quality property
will result in a lower fair value measurement.

Information about fair value
measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (level 3)

15 REWME®)

(a)

(b)

()

rEBZHERR
AEBEAABHEERENE -
AEBRENEND A BREBY
BB BT AR
AT 2 (B o

REEREE BETHER &K
BEREC B2 E W HERR
FAEESR -

fh{ER %

NREBBZEENEZ ASETIE
RERLBAETE  BE2EH
LEMERET T REBEETE
ZAMEE  BORAKBEREY
XESFHAR REEEMES
BRmE  YEERREZARN
BFFE8UE -

FRERERTTHEBARK
BeAREREB(E=R)2E&
%I’

Range of
Fair Value at Valuation Unobservable unobservable
31 March 2017 techniques inputs inputs
R-ZE—tF
=A=+—H FHBEZ FABR
ZANRE HELSE W ABE BABEEE
HK$°000
FET
Investment
property
in Hong Kong
REBZREWE
— Residential Direct comparison  Discount on quality  (6%)-12%
property 11,400 approach of property
- EEWE BEELBE RMELEE (6%)-12%

fEifraE
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15 INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued) 15 REWME®)
(d) The following amounts have been recognised in the (d TreBEERGEABEEREME2E
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other WS RAPIER -

comprehensive income:

2017 2016
—E—tF —T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FETT
Rental income AU A 48 =
Direct operating expenses arising from BE4R KA ZIZREME
investment property that generated EEZHESERS
rental income (24) -
As at 31 March 2017, no investment property was pledged RZZE—+F=A=+—H HiEKE
as collateral for the Group’s borrowings. MEERAEBNERERRER S o
16 GOODWILL 16 BHE
HK$'000
FExT
cosT R
At 31 March 2016 and 1 April 2016 RZF—ARF=A=1+—HEK
—E—R"FHEA—H 1,000
Acquisition of Shenzhen Fortune (Note 32(1))  YgiE =18 = (KL 323)) 1,071
Acquisition of Ningbo Noble Century W B =R A 3w = (M2t 32(311)

Industrial (Note 32(ii)) 3
At 31 March 2017 RZE—+tF=A=+—H 2,074
IMPAIRMENT AR
At 31 March 2016 and 1 April 2016 RZZE—AR"F=A=1+—HEK

—E—R"FHEA—H -
Impairment loss recognised in the year FRERZBEREE 1,074
At 31 March 2017 RZZE—tEF=H=+—H 1,074
CARRYING AMOUNTS IRE£
At 31 March 2017 RZE—+F=A=+—H 1,000

At 31 March 2016 R-ZZE—RF=ZA=+—H 1,000
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16 GOODWILL (continued) 16 BEE &)

Goodwill arose from acquisition of (i) 100% equity interest
in Comercializadora Ven 2010 C.A Limited and its subsidiary
(“Comercializadara Ven 2010") on 9 July 2014; (ii) 70% equity
interest in Shenzhen Fortune Import & Export Co., Ltd
(“Shenzhen Fortune”) on 1 April 2016 (Note 32(i)); and (iii)
100% equity interest in Ningbo Noble Century Industrial
International Trading Co., Ltd (“Ningbo Noble Century
Industrial”) on 25 August 2016 (Note 32(ii)).

Goodwill has been allocated for impairment testing
purposes to the following cash-generating units (“CGUS").

— The operating activities of Comercializadora Ven 2010
which is engaged in the finance leasing business;

— the operating activities of Shenzhen Fortune which is
engaged in frozen foodstuff trading business; and

— the operating activities of Ningbo Noble Century
Industrial which is engaged in methanol trading
business.

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs have been
determined based on a value in use calculation which uses
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by the directors covering a five-year period, and a discount
rate of 8%, with reference to the cost of capital of the
Group and weighted market average.

Cash flow projections during the budget period are based
on similar gross margins and inflation throughout the
budget period.

In view of the actual revenue and results from the
Shenzhen Fortune and Ningbo Noble Century Industrial
have fallen below their original expectation, the
management has adjusted downward the cash flow
projections which resulted in the impairment loss on
goodwill being recognised for the year ended 31 March
2017 (2016: Nil).

In the opinion of the directors, no impairment 10ss on
goodwill was required for the Comercializadora Ven 2010
for the year ended 31 March 2017 (2016: Nil). The directors
believe that any reasonably possible change in the key
assumptions on which the recoverable amount is based
would not cause the carrying amount of the group of units
to exceed the aggregate its recoverable amount.

BEAOR=_ZT—NFEANBKEC
EEASERARLREWNBAR ([CihE
1) 2 100% A (VR ZF—~F
MA—BWERIMBEELOBREA
AR EE 1) 70%M% 7N #E 25 (B 5%
320) + R(R=ZF—"ENA=Z+HH
WS R CIRERBRE AR AR ([E
WA HR 2 ) 100% A% 725 4 25 (BT 5 32(ii))
FrEE4E »

BEEREANABNMOEEATR
SEABM((REELEM]) -

— ChHRBBZEEEH  NEERE
GICE

— FNREZELRY  AELR
EmEHES &

— ERCHREZILLEEY  BREF

ReELEM 2z RO BIIREER
BEETHE(ERESALERESF
R MHRRE  EREF8%(2ER
SEERNRARINETSFY) 2R K
R RIBAEEITHE) MEE -

ZIAE MR AR R ER TN E
MR BERERHRER LR -

ENFINBERBRCHREZERKRA
REETREZENRYEE WEEE
ETHAReRERA  BHEBEE_T
—tF=RA=+—BHIEFERREER
BEER(CZE—RF: 8-

EEZRA REBEE_FT—LtF=A
=T -BIEFECHBESHEEARNE
(ZZ2—RF: &) BFHEE TKRE
SHEMRBENERBRROTASER
e T2ERASEEMREERB
HAlYg ol ¢ R A -
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17 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSET 17 Htbe@EE

2017 2016
—E—+F S
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTER FAT
Addition through acquisition of FERUHBHTE A RE 0

a subsidiary (Note 32(iii)) (Bf 7 32 ) 6,263 -
Change in fair value NRBEED (2,598) -
3,665 =

Non-current portion of other Hib g &EINEBEH
financial asset 3,125 -
Current portion of other financial asset — E fth & gt & &= BN ERER 5 540 -
3,665 =

The other financial asset of the Group as at 31 March 2017
represented the profit guarantee provided by the vendor
(the "Vendor”) to the Group arising from the acquisition of
Shenzhen Qianhai Jiulongfu Industrial Company Limited
(“Qianhai Jiulongfu”) (the “Profit Guarantee”). Pursuant to
the Capital Increase Agreement, the Profit Guarantee
provided that for the period of five-years commencing from
the date of completion of capital injection by the Group to
Qianhai Jiulongfu, the audited profit after tax of Qianhai
Jiulongfu for each guaranteed period with 365 days shall
not be less than RMB10 million. Any shortfall between the
guaranteed profits and actual profits for the relevant
guaranteed period will be compensated by the Vendor.
Further details of the acquisition of Qianhai Jiulongfu are
included in note 32(iii) to the financial statements.

The Profit Guarantee represents a right to the return of
previously transferred consideration for the acquisition of
Qianhai Jiulongfu when the specified conditions are met
and hence constitutes a kind of contingent consideration
arrangement to be accounted for as a financial asset at fair
value through profit or loss in accordance with HKFRS 3
and HKAS 39. The Profit Guarantee was initially recognised
in the consolidated balance sheet at the acquisition-date at
a fair value determined by Peak Vision Appraisals Limited,
an independent professionally qualified valuer.

R-ZZ—+E=A=+—H KAEEY
HEihSmEEARE L ([EH]) stk
Y NEREFXER AR (RIEN
BEAR ) M &= B R (A i AR 7B ([ 7
RFE]) - BB EW & - RAREBRTE
BASE RGN BERIE AT H B
FTRFHEA  REERAB365H 2 &
REBEEZBRHEEMNETLRAR
#510,000,0007T - A E B ERBEAE
BaAEMRF B F A AR EEGHE
FEE - BEKERE NLERNFEH
B 75 3R 2 B 5 32ii) ©

it IR 78 A i 2 A TE IR 18 P U= SE BT
RUERENERAEERENEN
Rt BRUARERS - REFEMH
SEAEIR/EBF LS ERNF 395
ABRINBEARBFABRENEHRE
E o aMRERLRKBEALBUE
EAEMREFEERRABEEZAN
BEGEEEABRAK -
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17 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSET (continued)
The fair value of the Profit Guarantee was determined to be
approximately HK$6,263,000 (equivalent to RMB5,390,000)
and approximately HK$3,665,000 (equivalent to
RMB3,250,000) by Peak Vision Appraisals Limited at the
acquisition-date and as at 31 March 2017, respectively,
using a discount rate of 16.42% and 17.71% per annum,
respectively, under Monte Carlo simulation and taking into
consideration of whether the Profit Guarantee is probable
to meet. A fair value loss on the other financial asset of
HK$2,598,000 was recognised in profit or loss during the

year ended 31 March 2017.

18 FINANCE LEASE PAYMENT
RECEIVABLES

17 Hthe@EE &)
REERR-Z—+F=A=+—08"
BRBTHERARBETHNREFREA
R ABE D B4 56,263,000 7T (FEE A
R ¥ 5,390,000 7T ) & 49 3,665,000 7 7T (18
R4 ARHE3,250,0007T) - HiRES
R 7 A MAER ERK R AR E IS B
BEE16.42% 2 17.71%BAIE KT8 o
H & @& E A B8 2,598,000 7T
EREE— T +tFE=A=1+—HIEF
EiBam P RER o

18 EWREEENIA

2017 2016
—E—+t5F A
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Current portion of finance lease IHENEAEL o
payment receivables 73,956 13,639
Non-current portion of finance lease FE W B E & FIBIERNHAE
payment receivables 84,576 70,322

158,532 83,961
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18 FINANCE LEASE PAYMENT
RECEIVABLES (continued)

18 EWmERERE @)

Present value of minimum

Minimum lease payments lease payments

BRIEHEERIE RIEHEERERE
2017 2016 2017 2016
—E2—-tF —ZZFT—FRF B-—tF Z=—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBxT T FH&x FET
Within one year —F R 88,571 19,101 73,956 13,639
In the second to fifth F_EERF
years, inclusive (BEEEME) 101,593 79,576 84,576 70,322
190,164 98,677 158,532 83,961
Less: Unearned finance & @ A EIR & WS
income (31,632) (14,716)  N/ARiEH N/ANE
Present value of KK EFKRIE
minimum lease RE
payment receivables 158,532 83,961 158,532 83,961
Less: Current portion of 3 : FEW R EFHE
finance lease payment  FXIEENHAZE S
receivables (73,956) (13,639)
Non-current portion of  fE Uk g & & 708
finance lease payment  3EENERER 5
receivables 84,576 70,322

As at 31 March 2017 and 2016, the finance lease payment
receivables were secured over the leased assets mainly by
machineries and equipments.

All the Group's finance lease payment receivables are
denominated in RMB and the maturity date for each finance
lease contract is normally not more than 5 years. The
interest rate inherent in the leases is fixed at the contract
date for the entire lease term. The effective interest rate is
approximately 5% to 18% (2016: 5% to 18%) per annum.

There was no unguaranteed residual values of assets
leased under finance leases as at 31 March 2017 and 2016.
The finance lease payment receivables at the end of the
reporting period are neither past due nor impaired.

R-B—+tFR_B—RF=A=+—
B RUREHEREMBERZHESR
EZ R kR -

REB A RKBERERIEIUAA
RENE mMESHERAEAREIAE
—RR BB F  c REEEEHAN - 8
FRUAGRBEMEBEEE AL - BRE
FEL BB E18%( T —/NF : 5% E
18%) °

R-B—+tFR_F—R"F=A=+—
B YEREHERTEHBEEEZR
ERFREE - RBEHR - BREBE
MEFBREARBHTIARE -
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19

20

INVENTORIES 19 FE
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F&T TFET
Bunkers on board M _EREFR 48 668
Frozen foodstuff* RIRE M 12,375 =
12,423 668
* Included in the frozen foodstuff inventories amounted to * R=ZB—tF=H=+—H" ?7/%ﬁﬁ'uﬁ
HK$2,546,000, being in transit as at 31 March 2017 (2016: Nil). B 852,546,000 8 TNEEXET (=
T—NE )

TRADE RECEIVABLES 20 FEWERR
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trade receivables FEUBE X 421,749 22,790

Included in the Group's trade receivables as at 31 March
2017 was approximately HK$133,729,000 due from a
customer, the shareholder of which subsequently became
a minority shareholder of a subsidiary of the Group during
the year.

The Group's trade receivables are generally with credit
periods of 30 to 90 days (2016: 30 to 90 days). The
maximum exposure to credit risk at the balance sheet date
is the carrying amount of the trade receivables. The Group
does not hold any collateral as security.

The carrying amounts of trade receivables approximate to
their fair values.

REBEE_T—tF=A=+—H &%
BeRKEZIEAEERE—R2EFPE
#4974 133,729,000 H 7T - ERRERR
REERARRAEE —FHMBLEZD
IR -

AEENEZRIERZEEH —RAE
EVAR(ZZT—RF:308E0K) °
REER  EAREREERRIIES
FEM R 2 BREE - AEEW EIFAE
R ERER

BHRMER REEREE R ERS
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20 TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 20 FEWERR (&)
An aged analysis of the trade receivables at the balance REEH REZAM(ERKZEE
sheet date, based on the date of invoice (or date of revenue B WER) 28 ZEUGRIER R DT a0
recognition, if earlier), is as follows: T:
2017 2016
—E—+F T RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
0to 30 days 0£30H 46,799 13,581
31 to 60 days 31£260H 48,416 9,209
61 to 90 days 61290H 59,277 -
91 to 180 days 912180 H 113,206 =
More than 180 days 180 H A E 154,051 -
421,749 22,790
The aged analysis of the trade receivables that is not TRACRE 2 E S EWFIERER ST
considered to be impaired is as follows: /NN
2017 2016
—E—+t5F ZE—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Neither past due nor impaired B AR HEA TN AR B 111,511 22,790
Past due but not impaired BHAE AR RE
0 to 30 days 0£30H 82,708 -
31 to 90 days 31290H 60,811 -
91 to 180 days 912180 H 153,844 -
more than 180 days 180 HIA E 12,875 -
421,749 22,790
The carrying amount of trade receivables is denominated at FEWERR Z BREEAARBTIE -

Renminbi.
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21 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER

BE - AAFRIEREMELRK

RECEIVABLES b
2017 2016
—E—+t5F T —RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Trade deposits paid (note (7)) ERESiES () 47,361 180,263
Deposit paid for acquisition of ERWEER 2 Ze
a business (note (i) (B & (i) - 8,000
Deposit paid for finance lease BENREREL RS
arrangements (note (iii)) (BR3E GiD)) - 75,222
Value added tax recoverable JE W B 0 5K 52,167 =
Other deposits paid, prepayments and  E #2124 - BN FHKIE &
other receivables H A e U GRIR 26,687 21,921
126,215 285,406

Notes:

The amount represents trade deposits paid to suppliers for
trading of methanol, seafood and electronic products. The entire
amount is expected to be recovered within the next twelve
months.

On 7 July 2014, the Group entered into a memorandum of
understanding (the “MOU A”) with an independent third party
(the “Vendor A") in relation to a possible subscription and/or
acquisition (the “Possible Acquisition A") of a company (the
“Target Company”) and its subsidiaries which are principally
engaged in the trading of plastic pellets, seafood and electronic
components business in Hong Kong and the PRC.

Pursuant to the MOU A, a refundable deposit in the sum of
HK$8,000,000 had been paid to the Target Company. In the
event that the formal agreement in relation to the Possible
Acquisition A is entered into, such refundable deposit shall form
part of the consideration. In the event that the formal agreement
is not entered into on or before the date falling six months from
the date of the MOU A which has been subsequently extended
to 7 July 2016, or such later date the Group and the Vendor A
may agree, the MOU A shall cease and terminate, and the Target
Company shall forthwith refund the above deposit.

No formal agreement has been entered on 7 July 2016 and
accordingly the MOU A has been lapsed with the deposit
refunded in full by the Target Company to the Company.

Mo

IESBEENTHER 2FE  BELE
FEMBZHES - 2MEBBHHRAREL
T EARKE -

AEEN_T-NELAEREBTE
=7 ([BHFH DRI — DT (137
REBTHTR])  ATRERBR SRS (T
BEWBERT ) —TERNEERPENE
PR BEMREFTLHESEBE AR
(TERRAR)EEMBAT -

R AT T - ATRIEFT & 8,000,000
BTEXNTEEREAR - Wt A sl =
HFRTZIER % - % ARER] & HHEK
REEFRHD o WRREFHTET B L
mAEAER (BEEEE_Z—KF
tAER)H A (RARERET F A
e 2 8% B H3) WIS IER a5 - A
REFCETEEELRELE  MBEREA
B RMERER TREEN S LA R E -

RoE—AFLALBERTIERR
% ESRESEFRERN - AER
BEES T OESEVE
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21 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 21 ¢ - {1518 R 2 b 2K

RECEIVABLES (continued) I8 (&)

Notes: (Continued) PiEE (&)

@iy Amount represents deposit paid to a lessee (the “Lessee”) for a @iy SBERUTEMEBELHEINT—RF
proposed finance lease arrangement. On 26 January 2016, the AATEBRADZFTE - RZE—RF—
Group and the Lessee entered into a termination agreement, B=+RH » NREEEEAHEAIT LI
pursuant to which the parties agreed to terminate the finance & B AN FRERIIRERER
lease arrangement and the deposit was repaid by the Lessee in HEREBAEETS - LIRS B ([ %
return for an entrusted loan in the amount of RMB54.79 million FAAZEHR— %%’]AE%SAJ%,OOOE(*@
(equivalent to approximately HK$64.10 million) granted by the B R 464,100,000 7)) ZEFEE K °
Group to the Lessee, which was completed in April 2016. B RENEFTET Eﬁ/\_g—/\im

AFER °
(iv)  The carrying amounts of deposits, prepayment and other (iv) 1&e - ENFEREMERRIEZREEE
receivables are denominated in the following currencies: ATRBIEEET(E -
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHTT
HKS$ Vo 8,446 23,778
us$ =TT - 15,423
EUR BT 195 64,738
RMB ARE 117,574 181,467
126,215 285,406

22 HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS 22 BHEEERE
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHIT

Equity securities held-for-trading: BIEEBERAES !

— Listed in Hong Kong —RBHEBLEM 64,100 61,955
The held-for-trading investments are stated at fair value at REBERENGEERRAREBEZRY -
the balance sheet date. The fair values of listed equity EHBEARZZAAELRRZ MK
securities are determined by reference to the bid prices on REETE o

the stock exchange.
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23

LOAN RECEIVABLES

23 EBWER

2017 2016
—E—+tF —ZT—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Current portion of loan receivables JEUR E FR BN ER R 1 84,510 5,133
Non-current portion of loan receivables fElk & 5% 3EENERER(D 27,736 441
112,246 5,574

Analysed as: DHTEAT -
Within one year —F R 84,510 5,133
In the second to fifth years, inclusive ~ F_ZFhE (AEEEMSE) 27,736 411
112,246 5,574
2017 2016
—ZE—+t5F —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&TT
Loan receivables BUE R 109,157 5,570
Interest receivables FEULFI B 3,089 4
112,246 5,574

The aged analysis of the loan receivables, that are not
considered to be impaired, are as follows:

TRADRE ZBRER ZRE DT
T

2017 2016

—E—+tF —T—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHIT

Neither past due nor impaired BE R %81 B IR AR R (B 106,395 5,574
Past due but not impaired B E R RE

Less than 1 month LR —1E A 11 -

1to 3 months 12 31E A 5,612 -

3 months to 1 year 3EAENF 228 =

112,246 5,574
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23

LOAN RECEIVABLES (continued)
The carrying amounts of the loan receivables are
denominated in the following currencies:

23 FEWER =)

FEW S TR 2 BREEIA T 5 E¥EHE

2017 2016

—E—4F —E—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHBxT FHB7T

HKS BIT 36,537 5,574
RMB AR 75,709 =
112,246 5,574

The credit quality of loan and interest receivables that are
neither past due nor impaired has been assessed by
reference to historical information about counterparty
default rates.

One of the customers of loan receivables with principal
amount of RMB46,299,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$52,225,000) as at 31 March 2017, failed to make
instalment to the loan receivable in the amount of
approximately RMB4,955,000 (approximately HK$5,589,000).
The Group has commenced a litigation against this
customer for recovery of the outstanding amount. Other
loan receivables which have been past due mainly
represented occasional delay in repayment with no
indication of significant deterioration of credit quality of
these loan receivables. As such, no individual impairment
allowance was made in respect of the loan receivables
which have been past due as at 31 March 2017 (2016: Nil).

Loan receivables are interest-bearing at approximately 4%
to 18% (2016: 4% to 18%) and are repayable with fixed
terms agreed with the Group’s customers. The maturity
date for each loan contract is normally not more than 4
years and were unsecured as at 31 March 2017. The
directors of the Company consider that the fair values of
loan receivables are not materially different from their
carrying amounts. The maximum exposure to credit risk at
each of the balance sheet dates is the carrying value of the
receivables mentioned above.

R i B 7 5 R 2 4 B M B AR R LB 2
BEEN2EEBHTRNENBER
BEFTRA -

R_T—+F=fA=+—8B Hbh—%
NEFBA AN R 46,299,000 7T (5 7
#952,225,000787T) 2 FEWERE F A8
BENHSEH A ARY 49550007 (18
B 7 495,589,000/ 7T ) 2 FEWE K o A&
EBEERZEFREMAFRNE HRE
BrRE HMO@HsERNEER
RERTEEERMEY  WEPRET
HEERZ EEEEEZEEL - Bt
MR-+ FE=A=+—B2E@H
HAE R - ANEE I EEHERIRERE
TERFE) o

FEMEFRAKIA% ZE18%( = F—755F : 4%
E18%)FH R UNEAREESHTEN
BElEHRAEER SEXSRIHE—
BRIABRIF YR _F—tF=A
=t+—HAEEAR - ARAEFRE
EUREFN AR ERLREELEE AN
ZR -REGEEAHMHEENZIAEE
R - 72 kPt FEUGRIBEY AREIE ©
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24 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

25

24 BERBITEF

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET T

Cash at bank and on hand RITNFHERES 98,144 499,817

The carrying amounts of cash and bank balances are

RekfTEFZREENRTIIEE

denominated in the following currencies: 7 :
2017 2016
—E—+tF A S
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET AT
HK$ BT 26,105 390,475
Us$ ETT 8,509 25,339
EUR BT 103 35,369
RMB AR¥ 63,427 48,634
98,144 499,817

The conversion of RMB-denominated balances into foreign
currencies and the remittance of such foreign currencies
denominated bank balances and cash out of the PRC are
subject to relevant rules and regulation of foreign exchange
control promulgated by the PRC government.

RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS

The amounts as at 31 March 2017 represented RMB
denominated bank deposits which will be released upon
the full settlement of the relevant bills payable amounting
to approximately HK$40.9 million. The deposits carried
interest at average interest rate of 0.36% per annum.

75 R 48 8 50 R A NS I 78 L TSNS
RITHERERECELPE - AETH
B BLINEE B84 2 ARRAAR A FUESR ©

25 ZRFBITERK

R-T—+F=A=+—8 ZFKEHE
ARBHERTEFNBERNEESEOR
40,900,000 T Z B RIBEEREE
BAERR - FFIRFHFE036ETE -

2017 2016
—E—tF ZERF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Analysed as: DT
Within one year —F R 40,935 -

In the second to fifth year inclusive

F_EFRF(BREEEWF) -

40,935
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26 SHARE CAPITAL 26 A
(a) Authorised capital (@) ZERA
Number of Nominal
shares value
g4 HE
HK$' 000
FH&xT
As at 31 March 2015, ordinary shares R—Z—RE=A=+—0H -
of HK$0.10 each FEMEmEQI10EITLL
LB 1,000,000,000 100,000
As at 31 March 2016 and 1 April 2016, R=—Z—~E=A=+—H
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each RZT—R"FHA—H
FIEE10E T L
EERiilib 1,000,000,000 100,000
Share subdivision (Note (ji)) A& 1 7 48 (B3 (i) 4,000,000,000 -
As at 31 March 2017, ordinary shares W—ZE—+&=H=+—8 -
of HK$0.02 each FRMmEQC02E T L
EmAR 5,000,000,000 100,000
(b) Issued and fully paid capital (b) EBTRHBEZEREX
Number of Nominal
shares value
%3 & H HE
HK$' 000
FHxT
As at 1 April 2015, ordinary shares of W—Z—FHFMA—H -
HK$0.10 each BREEO0.10B T
Rl 337,600,000 33,760
Placing of new shares (Note (i) Bic & FT AR A (BT (i) 398,520,000 39,852
As at 31 March 2016 and 1 April 2016, A=—ZE—~F=A=+—H
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each RZE—XNFHA—H -
FREE0I10B T2
LBAR (D 736,120,000 73,612
Share subdivision (Note (ji)) A& 15 #7 48 (B9 5 (i) 2,944,480,000 =
As at 31 March 2017, ordinary shares W=—ZE—+&=H=+—8 -
of HK$0.02 each ERREE0.02B T2
TR, 3,680,600,000 73,612
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26 SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
Issued and fully paid capital (Continuead)

(b)

Notes:

0]

The Company completed the placing of a total of
398,520,000 ordinary shares with net proceeds of
approximately HK$694 million during the year, details of
which are as follows:

Oon 17 April 2015, the Company entered into a placing
agreement with a placing agent to place up to 67,520,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each at a placing price of
HK$1.00 per placing share. The closing market price of
the shares of the Company on that date was HK$1.00.
The placing was completed on 6 May 2015 and a total of
67,520,000 ordinary shares with nominal value of
HK$6,752,000 were issued to not less than six
independent placees. Net proceeds of approximately
HK$65.5 million has been fully applied into the finance
leasing business of the Group.

On 17 September 2015, the Company further entered into
a placing agreement with a placing agent to place up to
81,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each at a placing
price of HK$1.70 per placing share. The closing market
price of the shares of the Company on that date was
HK$1.92. The placing was completed on 5 October 2015
and total of 81,000,000 ordinary shares with nominal
value of HK$8,100,000 were issued to not less than six
independent placees. Net proceeds of approximately
HK$134.1 million has been fully applied into the trading
business of the Group.

On 15 December 2015, the Company further entered into
a placing agreement with a placing agent to place up to
250,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each at a placing
price of HK$2.00 per placing share. The closing market
price of the shares of the Company on that date was
HK$3.60. The placing was completed on 8 March 2016
and a total of 250,000,000 ordinary shares with nominal
value of HK$25,000,000 were issued to not less than six
independent placees. Net proceeds of approximately
HK$494.4 million has been fully applied for business
development and working capital of the Group.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the
shareholders of the Company at a special general
meeting on 5 September 2016, every one share of the
Company of HK$0.10 each were subdivided into five
subdivided shares of HK$0.02 each.

All the shares issued during the year rank pari passu with
the existing shares of the Company in all aspects.

26 MRA(#)

(b) EBRTRBRZRA(E)

Wi

(i)

RER KRR ZEREESEA &
398,520,000 i EiBAR AR 1 + FT1S3K
T 48 7% %8 #9694,000,00078 7T © H
FEARENE :

R-ZZE—FFMNA++EH " AAA
s ERIBT RS HE - SREC
ERGUREEI10BTRERS
67,520,000 (% & X E (B 0.10%8 7T 2
LB o ARARNHRE R 2K
MEA100BT - BRER-_T—A
FRANBER AHLBEESR
6,752,000 7T 2 67,520,000 f% & 3
RIPEEETF T LRNBE AR
A ° P15 3} I8 5 B8 47 65,500,000 7
TERHARAEEREREEL -

RZZ—FRFNA++EH ' KAAF
INERERIE N E R - 81
L& R 1D ABLEE 1,708 Tl & &%
% 81,000,000 % & % 1 {E 0.10 78 7T
ZEBBGD o ARBRNARERZ
WHERINAETL  RER =T
—RAF+ARARK  AHEEE
/8,100,000 7% 7T 2 81,000,000 A% &
BRMEBLE T AL RSB B
B A ° T8 518 5549 134,100,000
BITOEHRARRNEEE K -

R-EBE—RFE+-A+HHE &2
AEREERIBIIES RS
FRECE B 15 LABE & (8 2.00 8 T e &
£ % 250,000,000 A% & A% @ {E0.10
BT LB o ARRRNDAE
A2 WHEA360BT - BER=
T-XNEZANAERK  AfEmE
{&/5 25,000,000 77T ,2 250,000,000
R @A D BB T AORANEE
VNAERRAFTEREBFED
494,400,000 78 JT0 B BB A 1E RT3
BREEES -

RIEAATRER =T —<FAA
BRBTZREESIARBEL &
BAEER - 5 REREHE010%
T2 ARARGFABEBRERE
{B0.028TE 2 FRAIRIA °

FRE I FE B TT 2 B 10 & 75 TH £
ARRBRAERMD ZEHERMAL
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26 SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 26 B (&)
(c) Share Option Scheme (c) MBAiR#ESTE

At the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 2 September 2013, the shareholders of the
Company approved the adoption of the Share Option
Scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”). The Share
Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a
period of 10 years from 2 September 2013, unless
otherwise terminated. The purpose of the Share
Option Scheme is to provide the Company with a
flexible and effective means of incentivizing,
rewarding, remunerating, compensating and/or
providing benefits to the directors, employees and
other participants of the Company and the Group.

The maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme must not in aggregate exceed 30% of
the issued share capital of the Company in issue from
time to time.

The total number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme must not in aggregate exceed
10% of shares in issue on 2 September 2013 (i.e.
72,400,000 shares) unless the Company seeks the
approval of the shareholders in general meeting for
refreshing the 10% limit under the Share Option
Scheme. Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed
by the shareholders of the Company at the annual
general meeting on 2 September 2014, the 10% limit
under the Share Option Scheme was refreshed to
33,760,000 consolidated shares (after the
consolidation of every ten shares of HK$0.01 each
into one share of HK$0.10 each which was effective
in January 2015). Further, pursuant to an ordinary
resolution passed by the shareholders of the
Company at the annual general meeting on 26 August
2016, the 10% limit under the Share Option Scheme
was further refreshed to 73,612,000 shares.

The exercise price, vesting period, the exercisable
period and the number of shares subject to each
option will be determined by the Board at the time of
grant. No option has been granted by the Company
under the Share Option Scheme since its adoption to
the date of this report.

RARB =T —=FNA=HETT
ZBREAFARE - AARRER
R AN B I R T B0 (T AE AR R AT
gl1) o BRBITIRIESN - BB HERT &I
BT =—FNLA-_HBEBEAW
REM - BE+F - BkETEE
EARARE RS BT RE GBS
MREES ST ERES BT RE
R EERMZT - 2E - BiS
HERRBH -

1T AR IR P A i =t &I P X o 18 i
ARITEEH) P A BB XM T AJ BEBE T Y
BHEE ARESTFBBAR
AN B TR A AY 30% ©

EITE R IR AR AT S T &
FrEEREM AT EITHRD R
H EHETBBBARZT—=FAN
BA-Z—RABETKRMD Z10%CH
72,400,000 %) -+ MEAR B A HEKAR
R K S A 33T IR AR A
FTEITE T Z 10%fREE - RIEA A A
BRA-ZT—NFNA-—BHETZ
REBAFRASRBZLBRER
BERETEI T 2 10%RECEHE
33,760,0006 D (A= —Hh
F—AEB+REREEN B ITA
HAE—REREECI0ME L £
%) BN BBEADRRBRER =
E—RENA T RNERIT 2R
BERSEBLERER  BR
BT Z10%REEE—FEH
%73,612,000 f% °

EEeRNEREBRERETEN
BREZITEE REH  17EH
KT RBRNEE - BFRABHE
A BE - ANRE W ERIRHT
R BB -
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27

28

TRADE PAYABLES 27 ETER
The aged analysis of the trade payables is as follows: JERTERFEBREC D ATAAT ¢
2017 2016
—E—+tF T —RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET BT
0to 90 days 0%F90H 96,913 5,208
91 to 180 days 91£180H 92,269 -
181 to 365 days 1812 365 H 24,519 -
213,701 5,208
The carrying amounts of trade payables are denominated FERTERRZ BREIE A T3 & FI(E
in the following currencies:
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
US$ ETT - 5,208
RMB AR 213,701 =
213,701 5,208
ACCRUALS, OTHER PAYABLES AND 28 EEETIEFE - HiENARERE
DEPOSIT RECEIVED Wize
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Trade deposit received (note (i) BEWE SiEE () - 110,021
Accruals and other payables (note (i)  fEzt2 B Kk E b e+ 38
(B 3E (i) 38,903 49,497
38,903 159,518
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28 ACCRUALS, OTHER PAYABLES AND
DEPOSIT RECEIVED (continued)

Notes:

(i) The amount represents the trade deposits received from a
customer for trading of methanol.

(if) Included in the accruals and other payables was RMB12 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$13.5 million) (2016: RMB24
million (equivalent to approximately HK$28.7 million)), being
bank loans (the “Vessel Loan”) due by the vendor (the “Vendor”)
to a bank in the PRC (the “PRC Bank”) to be paid up/taken up by
the Group in respect of the Group's acquisition of the vessels
(the “Vessels”) during the year ended 31 March 2016. As the
Vendor and the PRC Bank were still in negotiation with the
repayment arrangement, it has yet been repaid and was
accounted for as other payables as at 31 March 2017 and 2016.
The Vessel Loan is secured by the Vessels of the Group with a
carrying value of HK$20.3 million (2016: HK$45.1 million) as at 31
March 2017.

(i) The carrying amounts of accruals, other payables and deposit
received are denominated in the following currencies:

28 EEFtER - HMESRERDE
Wizg (&)

Wi

0]

(iif)

I SEER - 2ET R FEESEE -

T ERAREMENFETRFEE —EAR
12,000,000t (#8 8 7 4713,500,0007 7T )
—ZT—"F : AR¥ 24,000,000 (HHE
M #928,700,0008 7T ) F H AL E X
N/ AEERAEER T — X F=A
=+—RAIEFEAGUEEMA (T m
BRRHAES(EH )X —HEBERNET
(TEAIRTT]) ZBTER([MAER]) -
HRES RZBE AR T E R T R
a5 ZMMERR —E—LER TN
F=A=t+—HHREE  THIIIEL
b FEAST SRIEBREE - MM EFUAREBR =
T—+4= A =+—Hm{& % 20,300,000
7T (—Z— 754 1 45,100,00078 7T) 2 M
AAVEIR IR o

EETER - RMENFERERIRE AT
S B E

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—REF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHT FH T

HKS podics 2,701 3,673
USs$ =TT 370 13,707
EUR BT 349 96,683
RMB AR 35,483 45,455

38,903 159,518
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29

30

31

AMOUNT DUE TO A DIRECTOR 29 EN—B|EEFIE
Amount due to a director is unsecured, interest free and [EBN—2EEREAEEM 2R RIE
repayable on demand. The carrying amount of the balance EREEE  ZSESRZEABENET
is denominated in HK$ and is approximate to its fair value. HIE - WEERAAEES
AMOUNT DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING 30 FENFEERERRIE
INTERESTS
Amount due to non-controlling interests is unsecured, FEAtIEIE R R A A EE A R a K
interest free and repayable on demand. The carrying RERKEE ZEEBZEREERS
amount of balance as at 31 March 2017 and 2016 is E—+FR_F-—ARF=ZA=+—HH
denominated in RMB and HK$ respectively and is BIAARKEE T E - WEHENRE
approximate to its fair value. B -
BANK BORROWING, SECURED 31 SRITIBEE - BEME
2017 2016
—ZE—+tF T —RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Secured bank loan BEFRITEE - 62,363

Notes:

(i) The Group's trade finance facilities amounting to US$30 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$233 million) (2016: US$50
million (equivalent to approximately HK$388 million)), of which
none has been utilized as at 31 March 2017 (2016: HK$62.4
million had been utilized which was secured by the Group's bills
receivables amounting to HK$62.4 million).

(if) At 31 March 2016, the bank loan of approximately RMB52 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$62.4 million) bore interest at
flat-rate of 3.5% per annum.

GEX

0) AEE 2 B 5 & %= 5 E 530,000,000
3 7T (488 7233,000,000/8 7t (= ZF — X
4 :50,000000% Jt( H & B &
388,000,000/87L)) + EFR=T—tF=
BA=+—BEEBEFEA(=ZZ—~F:
62,400,000 TEF AT HAANEE SRS
62,400,000 7 7T 2 FE U = IR EHAF) ©

iy RZZE—R"EFE=ZA=1+—8 " RTERY
AR ¥ 52,000,000 7t (48 & 7 49 62,400,000
BT BAFI B W IAT BFEFIRISEAE o
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32 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(i)

On 1 April 2016, the Group acquired 70% equity
interest of a company, which holds a licence to
import frozen meats to the PRC, at a consideration of
RMB700,000.

Details of the fair value of identifiable assets and

32 ISR A A

(i)

RZE—R"EMA—AB ' "EE
KRB A K ¥ 700,000 7T U B — RE 4+
AR EE DS RABEREZ AR
70% R AN #Ews o

HAREREERABZANER

liabilities acquired and goodwill at the date of RUEE R 2 EIT ¢
acquisition are as follows:
HK$'000
FERT
Plant and equipment B =YSE) 1
Amount due from a shareholder FEU— & IR R IR 1,654
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables &4 « TE 2008 K H e U 20E 13
Cash and bank balances e RRTTET 32
Bank borrowing RITEE (1,838)
Accruals and other payables FEETE A & E b e (S 38 (192)
(330)
Non-controlling interests FEFE R 99
Goodwill arising on acquisition WHEEE 2B 1,071
Satisfied by: BUATAHRNER !
Cash Re 840

Net cash outflow arising on the acquisition
is as follows:

RUBRELE RSB T

Purchase consideration settled in cash PAIR & S BB R (E (840)
Cash and bank balances acquired Wk 2 I & RIRTT 84 32
(808)

The non-controlling interests recognised at the
acquisition date were measured by reference to the
non-controlling interests proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net
liabilities.

Shenzhen Fortune Import & Export Co., Ltd
contributed approximately HK$66,304,000 to the
Group's revenue and a loss after tax of approximately
HK$483,000 to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income during the
period from the acquisition date to 31 March 2017.

Had the business combination taken place at the
beginning of the year ended 31 March 2017, the
revenue of the Group and the loss of the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2017 would remain
unchanged. The pro forma information is for
illustrative purpose only.

RS B IR Z IR g Ty 2
Z IR PR B b o PR (G B 0T R AR
BEEFECHRSEIILIIFE -

FYITMEEE L OARA ARUKE
Az —+tF=A=+—H1t
RN ERAEEREMEERK
I AN K B E B4 66,304,000
BITHRANANEBRR & EBEELY
483,000 7T °

HEBEHFRBL-T—EF=H
ST-HAEFEZFENEE AR
ERBE—_T—tF=A=t—H
L FEZWAMBEEBRETE -
HHEZEREHZKARE -
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32 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(if)

On 25 August 2016, the Group acquired 100% equity
interest of a company, which holds an operating
licenses for hazardous chemicals in the PRC, at a
consideration of RMB2.

Details of the fair value of identifiable assets and

32 WIEHEBLQ R @)

(if)

R-ZZE—XRFNAZ+HB  &&
EARBARK2 TWE—BHE
R BEE BRI Bam 2 7R &
A A]100% AR A HE R

AT EREEMABRZANER

liabilities acquired and goodwill at the date of RER BT
acquisition are as follows:
HK$'000
FExT
Accruals and other payables FERTE A R B A FE T IR ©)
@)
Goodwill arising on acquisition WHEEE 2 e 3
Satisfied by: BUATHNER :
Cash RE -
Net cash flow arising on the acquisition REAMEEZBRESRAT !
is as follows:
Purchase consideration settled in cash RS AWERE -
Cash and bank balances acquired WolE 2 38 R ERTT A R -
Ningbo Noble Century Industrial International Trading BEREMECIREBREREZERATR

Co., Ltd contributed approximately HK$nil to the
Group's revenue and a loss after tax of approximately
HK$7,000 to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income during the
period from the acquisition date to 31 March 2017.

Had the business combination taken place at the
beginning of the year ended 31 March 2017, the
revenue of the Group and the loss of the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2017 would remain
unchanged. The pro forma information is for
illustrative purpose only.

WERARE—T—tF=A=+1—
BILHER - ERaBEa R MR
E AT AAEERRES TR
AAR R IR B R4 7,00078 7T ©

HWEBAHRBE—_T—LF=A
ST HAUEFEZENEE AR
BRBIL—T—tF=A=+—H
LFFEZ WA R E BRI RS TE -
HHEZEERHEHH AR
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32 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(iii)

On 12 September 2016, Noble Century Trading
Company Limited (“NC Trading”), an indirect wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
capital increase agreement (the “Capital Increase
Agreement”) with a vendor (the “Vendor”) in relation
to a capital injection of totalling RMB190 million into
Shenzhen Qianhai Jiulongfu Industrial Company
Limited (“Qianhai Jiulongfu”).

Pursuant to the Capital Increase Agreement, (i) the
registered capital of Qianhai Jiulongfu shall be
increased from RMB10 million to RMB200 million; and
(i) NC Trading agree to pay up RMB150 million in cash
and the Vendor agree to pay up RMB40 million in
cash to the registered capital of Qianhai Jiulongfu as
enlarged.

A registration in relation to (i) the increase in
registered capital of Qianhai Jiulongfu and (ii) NC
Trading become the owner of 75% equity interest in
Qianhai Jiulongfu was made to the local government
authority on 26 September 2016 (the “Registration”).

Pursuant to the Capital Increase Agreement, the
Vendor warrants and guarantees (the “Profit
Guarantee”) to NC Trading that the audited profit after
tax of Qianhai Jiulongfu for each guaranteed period
(as defined in the Company’s announcement dated
12 September 2016) with 365 days shall not be less
than RMB10 million. Provided that the guaranteed
profit for any guaranteed period with less than 365
days shall be adjusted on a pro rata basis based on
the number of days elapsed in such guaranteed
period.

The Profit Guarantee should be for the 5-year period
following the completion of the RMB150 million
capital injection by NC Trading to Qianhai Jiulongfu or
until the date which NC Trading ceases to hold any
equity interest in Qianhai Jiulongfu. In the event that
the actual profit after tax is less than the relevant
Profit Guarantee, the Vendor shall pay the amount
equal to such shortfall to NC Trading.

32 WIEHEBLQ R @)

(iii)

RZZE—RNFNA+=H  ~QF
ZEBEE2EWB AR R &
SERAR(CwES])HER
(BRI E (18 E
&) "ABERERIIENENLER
BEEXARAR([AENERDEA
B EEE A R 190,000,000 7T ©

BIFEE R - () B2 QR 2
& A5 B A R # 10,000,000 7T 12 =
A B # 200,000,000 7T ; & ()= 52
SRBENIAEMBZRARZEEXR
& A E A R % 150,000,000
T MEARENRERANENE
BRREBAZMERTEARE
40,000,000 7T, ©

BROEMATBNEREMER
R (NVEHmE SR ARENERT75%
BREREREAZ - EZFE(E

RNER-T-RFAAZ-1+KH
AR B 22 -

BIFIEEHZE  EARCHESR
BRER(CEFRE]D - DG NE
BNEER AEA365 B 2 FEREAEI (A
ARBSE-_ZT—XRFHLA+_H
NEFIER) ZEEZGRTE R
A5 A 5 A R # 10,000,000 7T °
HET AT A B 1A 365 B 2 #E 1R HARS
AR A E R A R B
FBEIRLL B o

wEANRERERAR B CREZAA
BAERBRETRIEZEEARK
150,000,000 7T B HAfEs+ I F #Af -
SECIHESH T BERERIENER
EAAIRAE 2 A Lk o W TR
ZERSN DR BARERERZSN - R
BhARCHREZXNEENER
EBLIHIRA
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32 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(iii)

(Continued)

Pursuant to the Capital Increase Agreement, NC
Trading is also entitled a put option (the “Put Option”),
at its sole and absolute discretion, to sell and the
Vendor shall purchase the equity interest in Qianhai
Jiulongfu held by NC Trading (in whole or in part) by
serving a written notice to the Vendor upon the
occurrence of certain events as defined in the above
mentioned announcement.

Pursuant to the Capital Increase Agreement, upon
the completion of the Registration, NC Trading is
entitled to 75% equity interest in Qianhai Jiulongfu
and Qianhai Jiulongfu will become an indirect non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.

Subsequent to the completion of the Registration, on
26 September 2016, NC Trading and the Vendor
entered into a interpretation memorandum, pursuant
to which, NC Trading and the Vendor agreed that:

(@ both parties are entitled to the equity interest (to
share the profit or loss) in Qianhai Jiulongfu as
stated at 75%:25% in the Capital Increase
Agreement; and

(b)  both parties agreed to share the paid-up capital
based on the actual cash injection by each
party.

In the opinion of the directors, the acquisition of
Qianhai Jiulongfu was completed on 26 September
2016 and the acquisition was considered as a
business combination for accounting purpose.

At the acquisition date, the fair value of the Profit
Guarantee and Put Option were determined by
reference to a valuation performed by Peak Vision
Appraisals Limited, an independent professionally
qualified valuer.

The fair value of the Profit Guarantee and Put Option
as at 26 September 2016 of HK$6,263,000 and HK$ nil
respectively were measured based on Monte Carlo
simulation.

32 WIEHEBLQ R @)

(iii)

(%)

RIBREWZ  CInE S EERA
HiE ([Roh HARE ) - R HER KLk
EEELEAETAZIBNE - &8
RAETHELERBA  ChHhESME
—REEREERLEMNE AR
BECmE SIS NEREEHK
#B o B HE -

RIBRE W= RNEZELK
WEZBREA RS NER7S%K
& MAVENEBHRABAREZ
FEIFEREMBAT -

R-ZE—RELA -+ NBHERLRT
A& CIRB S HEE LRI Z2EE
S B CHRESHEEHRE

=N

@ EHBARERBEEWMS
75% : 25% < B # RN
EmNERE &

by BFRERESHIERRS
TEBRNZEWEAR -

EER/ ER-ZT—RFENA
—HRAEKRERIENER - M
ZWBR B LT RARERE
B o

i NRFE K R0h B U iE A A
RERBEBIEXAERMBENSR
BERRARETEEEE

i NRFE & s B —F — R
NAZTRBUARBRENEFE
B 2 5t B 2 Bl 7% 6,263,00078 7T &
BT
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32 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 32 WEEHIE AT (&)

(i) (Continued) @iy (&)
Details of the fair value of identifiable assets and R REREERBEZALER
liabilities acquired at the date of acquisition are as WEERMT :
follows:
HK$°000
Note FET
Other receivable H fh e U RIR 11,620
Cash and bank balances Re MIRTTHET 104
Other payables E e FRIA (104)
11,620
Capital to be injected by the Group EEBEREBAEEH
as purchase consideration FEAZEAR 174,300
Capital to be injected by non-controlling  FE3ZEIREZR &) A 2 B
interests 46,480
232,400
Non-controlling interests e (58,100)
174,300
The provisional fair value of consideration R({BEE 2 BE AR (E:
transfer:
Cash consideration HEREB 174,300
Fair value of the Profit Guarantee RUHE BRFRE 2 AR E 17
as at the date of acquisition (6,263)
168,037
Gain on bargain purchase AW 6,263
Satisfied by: AT ER:
Cash He 174,300
Fair value of the Profit Guarantee R B aAREBEZ ANE
as at the date of acquisition (6,263)
168,037

Net cash inflow arising on the acquisition  FUEREE ZHESRALT :
is as follows:
Cash and bank balances acquired Wk 2 38 & RIRTT 464 104
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32 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(iii)

(Continued)

The non-controlling interests recognised at the
acquisition date were measured by reference to the
non-controlling interests proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net
assets.

Qianhai Jiulongfu contributed approximately
HK$26,384,000 to the Group's revenue and a profit
after tax of approximately HK$468,000 to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income during the period from the
acquisition date to 31 March 2017.

Had the business combination taken place at the
beginning of the year ended 31 March 2017, the
revenue of the Group and the loss of the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2017 would have been
approximately HK$2,137,192,000 and approximately
HK$19,113,000, respectively. The pro forma
information is for illustrative purpose only.

At 31 March 2017, with reference to the valuation
report prepared by the independent professionally
qualified valuer, Peak Vision Appraisals Limited, the
directors of the Company were of the opinion that
the fair value of Profit Guarantee and Put Option were
approximately HK$3,665,000 (equivalent to
RMB3,250,000) and HKS$ Nil (RMB Nil) respectively. A
loss on fair value change on Profit Guarantee of
approximately HK$2,598,000 was recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Oon 19 September 2016, the Group completed the
acquisition of the remaining 20% equity interest in an
original 80% owned subsidiary, Noble Century KS
Group Limited, at a consideration of HK$20,000. The
difference of HK$697,000 between the consideration
paid and the debit balance of the non-controlling
interests arising from the acquisition was recognized
in the Group's equity.

32 WIEHEBLQ R @)

(iii)

(iv)

(%)

RIS B IR Z IR g s 2
Z IR R R PR A KU 00 R R
BEFECHERSR LGS -

RKEBZE=-_TE—+F=A=1+—
HIEHRMA - A NBERELREE
HREMEERSERFAAERR
A 49 26,384,000 7 T WA A B B Fd
1% %5 F1 49 468,000 7T °

HEBEHRBL—T—EF=H
St HLEFEZENELE KK
ERHE—_T—+tF=A=1T—H
LFEFEZWRAMEER D RIK A
2,137,192,00078 7T 5 19,113,000 8
TC o WEEERHEMHFARE -

R-ZE—+tF=F=+—H &%
By BEGEMSETHEERAR
ZEEHRER  ARAREEREG
FR7E MR 2 AR ED R4
73,665,000 T (HHE R AR
3,250,000 7T ) R &\ T (A R #&
)  BHNFEEAABEHEIR
2,598,000 TE R e Bm k&
b 2 ES R P HER o

RZF-—RFEAATNA XEE
VAFRAE 20,0008 TLIE B BB R R
80% 2B AR (CnMAREE
RXE]) &R T 20% M4 - NI+
Stz KBRS 2 577 A
ERFTEE &£ 2 697,000 8 TZEZE R
AREEE DT HER
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33 GAIN ON DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 26 January 2016, the Group entered into a disposal
agreement (the “Disposal”) with an independent third party.
Pursuant to the disposal agreement, the Group (i) disposed
of its 100% equity interest in Ace Plus Ventures Limited
(“Ace Plus”), an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, and (ii) assigned the shareholder’s loan of
approximately HK$38.2 million in full owing from Ace Plus
to the Group for a cash consideration of HK$26 million.

33 HE—ENBLRNE

R-ZE—-—RNFE—HA=-Z+B  Kx&H
H—BYE=FFIV—HHEHR(
EFH])) REBEHEWEHE  A5EEIN
IR & (B 26,000,000 7 7T (i) H & Ace Plus
Ventures Limited ([Ace Plus]) + & & &l
ZEEE2ENB AR Z 100% MR AR -

K2 (i) 7 B 3 Ace Plus fe AN 52 [ 2 f%
% T 7K 49 38,200,000 7 7T, ©

The Disposal was completed on 26 January 2016. The major HEFEER-_ZE—"F—HA=1+/<AH
classes of assets and liabilities of Ace Plus as at the ST o Ace PUSRHE KB ZEEE
completion date of the Disposal were as follows: EREEERINT
Note HK$'000
P5E FHETT
Plant and equipment B KBS 14 24,969
Deposits, prepayments and other & BRNFEIER
receivables Hofh fE U ERIR 715
Inventories =& 1,032
Cash and bank balances RE NIRITET 35
Trade payables FEfSERERX (1,575)
Accruals and other payables FEST & A N E A BIE (1)
Amount due to the Group A EEFIE (38,184)
(13,019)
Assignment of amount due to the Group % fE it AN 2 [E 118 38,184
25,165
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE BB A Tk 835
26,000
Satisfied by: AT HRE -
Cash He 26,000
Net cash inflow arising on the disposal BHEMEELEZ
is as follows: WEFRALT :
Consideration settled in cash PIR& T2 RE 26,000
Cash and bank balances disposed HEZIR e RIBITER (35)

25,965
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34 COMMITMENTS
(@) Capital commitments
The Group had the following capital commitments as
at the balance sheet date:

34 EiE

(a)

BRERE
AEENEEBAATEARALRE

2017 2016
—E—+tF —ERF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
Contracted but not provided for: B ETAB R B -
— Acquisition of companies — lEAF - 16,339
— Capital contribution to a —FET—HIEEE
non-wholly owned subsidiary BEHHB AR 145,230 =
145,230 16,339
(b) Operating lease commitments (b) REHEHRE
The future aggregate minimum lease payments under RAAT R LB EIE T 2 KK
non-cancellable operating leases are as follows: XEMENFRLELNT :
2017 2016
—2-tF —T-R%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHET
Not later than 1 year TIEBR 145 3,261 2,945
Later than 1 year but not later than B 1 F{BNER 546
5 years 2,142 5,221
5,403 8,166
None of the leases include contingent rentals. MEHESSHAES -
(c) Operating lease rental receivable (c) KERNEWIK

The Group had contracted with tenants for the
following future minimum lease payments receivable
under non-cancellable operating lease:

REE B2 EAGE ABLIA T AT #EH
REME 2 KRR R RERERIA
RIMAHA

2017 2016

—E—+HF —E—RF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FHIT

Not later than 1 year TN 14 335 -
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35 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(@) Reconciliation of loss before taxation to (a)

35 ZERETRER
BREABRESEXKRTAR

cash used in operations SZHER
2017 2016
—ZE—t5F —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET F&TT
Loss before taxation MrELATE IR (12,178) (15,892)
Finance costs B R AN 1,412 720
Depreciation e 7,561 3,164
Impairment loss on property, VI - R RBVREREIE
plant and equipment - 9,652
Impairment loss on goodwill e RERE 1,074 =
Write-off of property, LS &R i
plant and equipment - 47
Impairment loss on other receivable £t & Ug ZR (E 518 9,229 1,216
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary T & — BB A AW - (835)
Gain on disposal of property, MEYE « BB REIV I
plant and equipment (960) =
Gain on bargain purchase AEUIE (6,263) =
Interest income FE A (547) (196)
Unrealised loss/(gain) on BIEEBHRERER
held-for-trading investments &8, () 10,860 (5,540)
Unrealised loss of HittemEEQAAEBE
other financial asset 2,598 -
Dividend income & B UA - (320)
Unrealised loss on of RERIGEYFEAHBE
investment property revaluation 288 -
Cash generated from/(used in) RetEEECEHAILE
operations before working ¥BE/(FTR)RE
capital changes 13,074 (7,984)
Increase in trade receivables JE U BR SR (398,959) (22,790)
Decrease/(increase) in FEMWZE R A, (3G n)
bills receivables 62,369 (62,369)
Decrease/(increase) in deposits, e~ BFRIE R EA
prepayments and other receivables  fEUFRIER 4 (3L Hn) 161,255 (206,994)
Increase in net finance lease FE U B B AH & IR SRR N
payment receivables (74,571) (14,114)
(Increase)/decrease in loan FEME R (3 ), m
receivables (106,672) 10,648
Increase in inventories FEILN (11,755) (571)
Increase in trade payables JE T BRFIE hn 208,493 839
Increase in bills payables ANES el 40,935 =
(Decrease)/increase in accruals, FEETER - HttEM IR
other payables and deposit received K& B Uik & Crid>), /AN (99.282) 1,382
Cash used in operations REEZMARS (205,113) (301,953)
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35 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
(b) Major non-cash transaction
() During the year ended 31 March 2017, the
Group recognised a non-cash transaction
arising from the consideration of the disposal of

5 RERESHRERE)

(b) EEFREXRSZ
) BE-_ZT—tF=A=+—H
JJ:EFW AREEERKE
EBMMZERERHH

a vessel of approximately HK$21.4 million. 21,400,000787T °
(i)  During the year ended 31 March 2016, the (il BE-_ZE—X"F=A=1+—
Group recognised a non-cash transaction HERN  N&EED 5 H#ERK
arising from the consideration of the disposal of BRE—HHBARKREE
a subsidiary and acquisition of vessels of HK$26 EHsREBZIEBEERS
million and approximately HK$45.5 million 26,000,000 7T K #945,500,000
respectively. BT ©
36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36 BFHAEALRS
Key management compensation FTEEE ASRM
The remuneration of key management personnel of the BREERNAEBETEEEABHNME W0
Group during the year was as follows: T
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Salaries, allowances and other benefits %4 - 285 & E b 78 K 8,057 6,915
Contributions to retirement benefits RIREF B R
scheme 108 75
8,165 6,990

37 ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY
The directors of the Company regard Superb Smart Limited,
a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, as
being the ultimate holding company of the Company.

37 RAERAT
ARREFENRBRE XS EMK L
2 Superb Smart Limited A& 78 A &) fx 4245
NG
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38 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE 38
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

Information about the balance sheet of the Company

(@

ARREERBERRREEEEY

(@)

ARBNBEERAZBEERBRER

at the balance sheet date is as follows: W
2017 2016
—E—+tF —T— R
HK$'000 HK$'000
T T
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Plant and equipment B ] 2,976 4,603
Interests in subsidiaries GNP 2o 798,863 459,936
801,839 464,539
Current assets REEE
Deposits, prepayments and e BNRER
other receivables H A U GRIR 2,445 2,009
Held-for-trading investments RIEEEKRE 64,100 61,955
Amount due from a subsidiary JE W — R B A B 3k E 2,669 =
Cash and bank balances e RIRTTETT 9,172 377,220
78386 441,184
Total assets BEHAE 880,225 905,723
EQUITY ER
Capital and reserves BEXR#E
Share capital A&z 73,612 73,612
Reserves ke 797,701 824,959
Total equity RSB 871,313 898,571
LIABILITIES =L
Current liabilities REBEE
Accruals, other payables and JEETER - HibERN
deposit received FIEREWIES 2,702 2,773
Amount due to a director B —REEFIE 6,210 4,379
Total liabilites ~  #®#&&% 8912 7182
Total equity and liabilities EERkEEEE 880,225 905,723
Net current assets RBEEFE 69,474 434,032
Total assets less current liabilities g E @ BB ABEE 871,313 898,571

Zheng Juhua

B IE
Director

EF

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by
the Board of Directors on 28 June 2017 and was

signed on its behalf.

Chan Chi Yuen
Director
E

ApRZEERBERENR -_F—t
FARAZTN\BRESEHENH
RERE -
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38 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE 38 ARREEABRERERE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (continued) ()
(b) Information about the reserve movement of the by ZARATREERZFEEEEER WD
Company at the balance sheet date as follows: N
Retained
earnings/
Share  Contributed  (Accumulated
premium surplus losses) Total
REEBF/
R EE EdRH (RHER) am
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TR TAL
At 1 April 2015 R-ZE—h&EMA—H 140,355 34,178 2,201 176,734
Placing of new shares EEHRH 665,368 - - 665,368
Transaction costs attributable 24787k fElh
to issue of new shares THKA (10,315) - - (10,315)
Loss for the year rEEBE = = (6,828) (6,828)
At31 March 2016 R=2—7~F=A=1-H 795,408 34,178 (4,627) 824,959
At 1 April 2016 R-ZE—~ENA—H 795,408 34,178 4,627) 824,959
Loss for the year rEEBE = = (27,258) (27,258)
At 31 March 2017 N-E—+tF=A=1—H 795,408 34,178 (31,885) 797,701
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39 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 39 FEMBAF

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31

TIRERRAR-E—LF=A=+—

March 2017: BZFEWMERA :
Particulars of issued/ Percentage of

Place of incorporation/ registered and fully paid Principal activities and shares held by

Name registration share capital place of operation the Company

8 RIBE/ R ERTRMREERE TEXBREEHY KARFBRAED L

Shares held directly:

ERRE

Noble Century Investment Group Limited  British Virgin Islands 1 share of US$1 each Investment holdings 100%
RBERRNE 1REREE1ZT RN RERR

Shares held indirectly:

B#EE

Noble Century Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 Money lending operated in Hong Kong 100%

R BERAR Bk 10,0007 REBEEEERY

CRAI)BEREERAR People’s Republic of China~~ US$40,000,000 Finance leasing operated in the PRC 100%
i 40,000,000% 7 RABLERENERHS

Noble Century S Group Limited Hong Kong HK$100,000 Investment holdings and mould 100%

trading in Hong Kong and the PRC

(ChEAEEARAR 36 100,000/ 7 REBRRNERRFEILEEAES

ErR(AINESBRAR People’s Republic of China~ RMB200,000,000 Electronic products trading in the PRC 100%
i AR 200,000,00070 RPESEEfERE S

MR E (R BB AT People’s Republic of China~ HK$40,000,000 Seafood trading in the PRC 100%
i 40,000,000 RPEEEEEES

Hialli Pacfic Industrial Co., Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 Methanol trading in the PRC 100%

BEREEXERAR A 100000077 KBS eREE S5

B CRHMBERAR People’s Republic of China~ RMB10,000,000 Vessel Chartering operated mainly in 100%
ﬁF AR10,000,0007C Hong Kong and the PRC

IENBARTESEHHMEERY

MIMRZENAERAF People’s Republic of China~ RMB2,000,000 Frozen food trading in the PRC 70%
?ﬂ AR 2,000,0007T RPESELFRRES

CHRETE (I BRAR People’s Republic of China~ RMB50,000,000 Provision of entrusted loan in the PRC 100%
el AR E50,000,0007T RPBIEEZTER

AMIFTENEREXERAR People’s Republic of China~ RMB37,375,000 Electronic products trading in the PRC 75%
HE AR 37,375,000 RPESEEfERE S

Empower King Limited British Virgin Islands 100 shares of US$1 each  Investment property held in Hong Kong 100%
RBERRNE 0REREEIZT  REBRERENE

ki
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39

40

41

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion of
the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

Significant restrictions

Cash and bank balance of approximately HK$48,983,000
(2016: approximately HK$73,203,000) are held in the PRC
and are subject to local exchange control regulations.
These exchange control regulations provide for restrictions
on exporting capital from the country, other than through
normal dividends.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period on 14 June
2017, the Group entered into a memorandum of
understanding (the “MOU 2") with an independent third
party (the “Vendor 2). Pursuant to the MOU 2, the Group
may acquire 100% equity interest of a company and its
subsidiaries (the “Possible Acquisition 2“), which is
principally engaged in equity investment funds
management, equity investment and asset management in
the PRC.

The consideration for the Possible Acquisition 2 will be
subject to further negotiation between the Group and the
Vendor 2 and is expected to be satisfied by the Company
by way of cash, allotment and issue of the Company new
shares and/or the issue of convertible bonds carrying rights
to convert into the Company new shares, or a combination
of any of the above means or by any other kind of
consideration.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES
Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to
conform with the current year’s presentation.

39

40

41

FEMB AT (@)

EERA FEFIINADANBEDR
EYENFERBERERAEEEE

FETEBHG - EERATIHEMKH

BATZHBEESBERARIE

ERRE

e MIRITHETF#48,983,000/8 T (=&
— 734 :73,203,00078 7T ) £ BB E ST
B SMNEE FIRP o X F B HINEE B
HROIBESEL B EINR S - HEEB
—RRACE BWERID -

HREE

RBERRBRE-_ZT—LF A +H
B ARRE-BYFEF=HTEFT )
RN — 00 AR R R S iR (T AR R 1 8%
— D REFBETE - AEEREE
WE—REERTEAREREREES
B PRERENEEEERBZAF
N BB R )2 100% A AN HE 25 (T AJ BE MK
i

AREBEFRA_ZAREBEFAKELRE
HoE—FER UFREHRKERIAER
& BBRBETRRANBM KRB
TTH SRR R L3 SRR B F A 2 7]
BMERESFXN > HEES ERERTTAX
- EAEAEBKELR -

bEgHF
ETUBRTREESFAGTARFL
25 -
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2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
“E—+HF —T-RF —T-hHF —ET-HF —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHET FHET FHET FHET
Results E3
Revenue WA 2,137,192 1,373,585 322,056 12,943 -
(Loss)/profit before taxation BELAT (E38) % F (12,178) (15,892) 8,816 (3,487) (31,409)
Taxation charge HIEY (6,880) (2,680) (835) - -
(Loss)/profit attributable to P WUNSESY DN
owners of the Company (B18),/ &5 (17,693) (18,754) 7,983 (3,487) (31,409)
(Loss)/profit attributable to FEIE R R A
non-controlling interests (E518),/ %M (1,365) 182 2 - -
(Loss)/profit for the year AEE (E8),/ &5 (19,058) (18,572) 7,981 (3,487) (31,409)
Dividends e = - - - -
Assets and liabilities BEEREE
Total assets BEME 1,153,763 1,155,855 352,003 207,353 82,354
Total liabilities BEBE 308,716 278,083 136,378 147,141 51,350
Net assets BESE 845,047 877,772 215,625 60,212 31,004
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